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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION
 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”), the other reports, statements, and information that we have previously filed or
that we may subsequently file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and public announcements that we have
previously made or may subsequently make include, may include, incorporate by reference or may incorporate by reference certain
statements that may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included or incorporated by
reference in this Annual Report and those reports, statements, information and announcements address activities, events or
developments that Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter referred to as “we”. “us”, “our”, “Company” or
“Barfresh”) expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future. Any statements in this document about expectations, beliefs, plans,
objectives, assumptions or future events or performance are not historical facts and are forward-looking statements. These
statements are often, but not always, made through the use of words or phrases such as “may”, “should”, “could”, “predict”,
“potential”, “believe”, “will likely result”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, “seek”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “projection”, “would”,
“outlook” and similar expressions. Accordingly, these statements involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties, which could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in them. Any forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the factors discussed throughout this document. All forward-looking statements concerning economic conditions, rates of
growth, rates of income or values as may be included in this document are based on information available to us on the dates noted,
and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements.

 
Management cautions that forward-looking statements are qualified by their terms and/or important factors, many of which are
outside of our control, involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results and events to differ
materially from the statements made, including, but not limited to, the following risk factors. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or
achievements.
 
Certain risks and uncertainties could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-
looking statements made by us, and you should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Actual results or
outcomes may differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by us, and you should not place undue
reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made and
we do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events or circumstances after
the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time,
and it is not possible for us to predict which will arise. In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our business or the
extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statements. See “Risk Factors” set forth in Item 1A.
 

PART I
 

Item 1. Business.
 
Business Overview
 
We are engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of ready to blend beverages, particularly, smoothies, shakes and frappes. Our
products are portion controlled ready to blend beverage ingredient packs or “beverage packs”. They contain all of the ingredients
necessary to make the beverage, including the base (either sorbet, frozen yogurt or ice cream), fruit pieces, juices and ice.
Ingredients used are natural, no syrups or powders.
 
We own the domestic and international patents and patents pending, as well as related trademarks for our products. In November
2011 we acquired the patent rights in the United States and Canada. The Canadian patent has been granted and the United States
patent is “patent pending”. On October 15, 2013, we acquired all of the related international patent rights, which were filed pursuant to
the Patent Cooperation Treaty, have been granted in 13 jurisdictions and are pending in the remainder of the jurisdictions that have
signed the treaty. In addition, on October 15, 2013, we purchased all of the trademarks related to the patented products.
 
We have been developing flavor profiles of our smoothies that we believe will be appealing to tastes in the United States. We have
been in discussions with a number of companies including both large and small quick service restaurant (“QSR”) chains and national
food services companies that serve alternative venues such as stadiums, arenas and universities with national footprints in the United
States and have reached preliminary agreements with three potential customers to begin testing in the near future. We are in
ongoing negotiations with a number of other companies. In addition to the large retail fast food and fast casual chains, we will sell to
food distributors that supply products to the food services market place. Finally, we intend to monetize the international patents
outside of our current area of operations, North America, by expanding contract manufacturing to other countries and selling either
through selling agents or our own sales personnel or by entering into some form of license or royalty agreements with third parties.
 
Our plan is to utilize contract manufacturers to manufacture our products in the United States. Ice cream manufacturers are best
suited for our products. Our first production line has been installed and commissioned in Salt Lake City and is currently producing
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products being sold to our customers as well as new product development for new large customers.
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Although we do not have a contract with any suppliers for the raw materials needed to manufacture smoothie packs we believe that
there are a significant number of sources available and we do not anticipate becoming dependent on any one supplier. As demand
for our range of products grows, we will look to contract a level of our raw material requirements to ensure continuity of supply.

 
We currently have two employees and one consultant selling our product. The process of obtaining orders from potential customers
will likely follow the following process:
 
 • Meet with and introduce products to customer;
   
 • Develop flavor profiles for the specific customer;
   
 • Participate in test marketing of the product with the flavors developed for the customer; and
   
 • Agree to a roll out schedule for the customer.
 
Although we have agreements with potential customers, representing approximately 10,000 outlets, to develop flavors and test our
products and have begun to develop flavor profiles for others, we have no assurance that we will supply any chain with our products.
During the year ended March 31, 2014 we began shipping our products to one of the customers we have contracts with and to a
number of smaller customers.

 
Most recently, as part of our expansion due to the acquisition of the international patents, we engaged a leading regional Australian
food ingredient supply and product developer as our wholesaler and distributor. Our first order to Australia shipped in January 2014.
 
Our Corporate History and Background
 
We were incorporated on February 25, 2010 in the State of Delaware. The Company was originally formed to acquire scripts for
movie opportunities, to produce the related movies and to sell, lease, license, distribute and syndicate the movies and develop other
related media products related to the movies. As the result of the reverse merger, more fully described below, we are now engaged in
the manufacturing and distribution of ready to blend beverages, particularly, smoothies, shakes and frappes.
 
Reorganization and Recapitalization
 
During January, 2012, we entered into a series of transactions pursuant to which we acquired Barfresh Inc., a Colorado corporation
(“Barfresh CO”), spun-out our prior operations to our former principal shareholder, completed a private offering of our securities for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $999,998, conducted a four for one forward stock split and changed the name of the
Company. The following describes the foregoing transactions:
 

 

• Acquisition of Barfresh CO. We acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Barfresh CO in exchange for the issuance of
37,333,328 shares of our $0.000001 par value common stock pursuant to a Share Exchange Agreement between us, our
former principal shareholder, Barfresh CO and the former shareholders of Barfresh CO. As a result of this transaction,
Barfresh CO became our wholly owned subsidiary and the former shareholders of Barfresh CO became our controlling
shareholders.

   

 
• Spinout of prior business. Immediately prior to the acquisition of Barfresh CO, we spun-out our previous business operations

to a former officer, director and principal shareholder, in exchange for all of the shares of our common stock held by that
person. Such shares were cancelled immediately following the acquisition.

   

 
• Financing transaction. Immediately following the acquisition of Barfresh, we sold an aggregate of 1,333,332 shares of our

common stock and five-year warrants to purchase 1,333,332 shares of common stock at a per share exercise price of $1.50 in
a private offering for gross proceeds of $999,998, less expenses of $26,895.

   

 
• Change of name. Subsequent to the merger, we changed the name of the Company from Moving Box Inc. to Barfresh Food

Group Inc.
   

 
• Forward stock split. Subsequent to the merger, we conducted a four for one forward stock split of the Company’s common

stock.
 
Our Products
 
Our products are portion controlled beverage ingredient packs, suitable for smoothies, shakes and frappes that can also be utilized for
cocktails and mocktails. They contain all of the ingredients necessary to make either a smoothie, shake or frappe, including the ice.
All of the ingredients used are real, no syrups or powders. Simply add water, empty the packet into a blender, blend and serve.
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The following shows our product with the package opened:
 

 
 

We have completed the development of our product range and we now have the following flavors available for sale as part of our
standard line:
 
Smoothies:

 

 
 

5

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

Shakes:

 
 
Frappes:
 

 
 
In addition to our standard product range we are also currently working on customized flavor profiles for some of our key accounts.
 
Some of the key benefits of our products for the operators that use it include:
 
 • Portion controlled
   
 • Zero waste
   
 • Product consistency – every time you make a smoothie
   
 • Unitized inventory
   
 • Long shelf life (24 months)
   
 • Little to no capital investment necessary
   
 • Very quick to make (less than 60 seconds)
   
 • Ability to itemize the ingredients of the smoothie on their menus
   
 • Products require less retail space
 
Some of the key benefits of our products for the end consumers that drink our products include:
 

• All natural
   

• No artificial colors
   

• No artificial flavors
   

• From as little as 150 calories (per serving)
   

• At least ¼ cup of real fruit per serving
   

• Dairy free options
   

• Kosher approved
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• Gluten Free

 
Customer Marketing Material
 
We have developed a range of consumer marketing materials that assist our customers in selling their blended beverages. Examples
of our “SMOO” branded marketing materials are detailed below.
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Research and Development

 
We incurred $47,035 and $103,293 in research and development expenses for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014, and March
31, 2013, respectively.
 
Competition
 
There is significant competition in the smoothie market at both the consumer purchasing level and also the product level.
 
The competition at the consumer level is primarily between specialized juice bars (e.g. Jamba Juice) and major fast casual and fast
food restaurant chains (such as McDonalds). Barfresh does not compete specifically at this level but intends to supply its product to
customers that fall within these segments to enable them to compete for consumer demand.
 
There may also be new entrants to the smoothie market that may alter the current competitor landscape.
 
The existing competition from a product perspective can be separated into three categories:
 
 • Specialized juice bar products: The product is made in-store and each ingredient is added separately.
   

 
• Syrup based products: The fruit puree is supplied in bulk and not portion controlled for each smoothie. These types of

products still require the addition of juice, milk or water and/or yogurt and ice. While there are a number of competitors for
this style of product, the two dominant competitors are Island Oasis and Minute Maid, which are both owned by Coca Cola.

   

 
• Portion pack products: These products contain only the fruit and yogurt and require the addition of juice or milk and ice.

The two dominant competitors are General Mills’ Yoplait Smoothies and Inventure Group’s Jamba Smoothies.

We believe our ability to offer customers equipment packages with no upfront cost is a significant competitive advantage and will
assist us in gaining traction in the market and securing long-term agreements with our customers. We also believe that our product’s
attributes will make it more attractive to those of our competitors. However, there are other factors that may influence the adoption of
a particular product by customers, including their dependence on prior relationships with our competitors.
 
Intellectual Property
 
We own the domestic and intellectual property rights to our products’ sealed pack of ingredients.
 
In November 2011 we acquired patent applications filed in the United States (Patent Application number 11/660415) and Canada
(Patent Application number 2577163) from certain related parties. The United States patent was originally filed on December 4, 2007
and its current status is patent pending. The Canadian patent was originally filed on August 16, 2005 and it has been granted.
 
On October 15, 2013, we acquired all of the related international patent rights, which were filed pursuant to the Patent Cooperation
Treaty, have been granted in 13 jurisdictions and are pending in the remainder of the jurisdictions that have signed the PCT. In
addition, we purchased all of the trademarks related to the patented products.
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Governmental Approval and Regulation
 
We are not aware of the need for any governmental approvals of our products.

 
Since we will initially be utilizing a contract manufacturer, regulations of the United States Food and Drug Administration as they apply
to the manufacturing will be the responsibility of the contract manufacturers. Before entering into any manufacturing contract, we will
determine that the manufacturer has met all government requirements.
 
We will be subject to certain labeling requirements as to the contents and nutritional information of our products.
 
Environmental Laws
 
We do not believe that we will be subject to any environmental laws, either state or federal. Any laws concerning manufacturing will
be the responsibility of the contract manufacturer.
 
Employees
 
We have 7 full time employees. From time to time, we may hire additional workers on a contract basis as the need arises.
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors
 
An investment in the Company’s securities involves significant risks, including the risks described below. The risks included below
are not the only ones that the Company faces. Additional risks presently unknown to us or that we currently consider immaterial or
unlikely to occur could also impair our operations. If any of the risks or uncertainties described below or any such additional risks and
uncertainties actually occur, our business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations could be negatively affected.
 
Risks Related to Our Business
 
We have a history of operating losses and there can be no assurance that we can achieve or maintain profitability.
 
We have a history of operating losses and may not achieve or sustain profitability. These operating losses have been generated while
we market to potential customers. We cannot guarantee that we will become profitable. Even if we achieve profitability, given the
competitive and evolving nature of the industry in which we operate, we may be unable to sustain or increase profitability and our
failure to do so would adversely affect the Company’s business, including our ability to raise additional funds.
 
A worsening of economic conditions or a decrease in consumer spending may adversely impact our ability to implement
our business strategy.
 
Our success depends to a significant extent on discretionary consumer spending, which is influenced by general economic conditions
and the availability of discretionary income. While there are signs that conditions may be improving, there is no certainty that this
trend will continue or that credit and financial markets and confidence in economic conditions will not deteriorate again. Accordingly,
we may experience continuing declines in revenue during economic turmoil or during periods of uncertainty. Any material decline in
the amount of discretionary spending, leading cost-conscious consumers to be more selective in restaurants visited, could have a
material adverse effect on our revenue, results of operations, business and financial condition.
 
The challenges of competing with the many food services businesses may result in reductions in our revenue and operating
margins.
 
We compete with many well-established companies, food service and otherwise, on the basis of taste, quality and price of product
offered, customer service, atmosphere, location and overall guest experience. Our success depends, in part, upon the popularity of
our products and our ability to develop new menu items that appeal to consumers across all four day parts. Shifts in consumer
preferences away from our products, our inability to develop new menu items that appeal to consumers across all day parts, or
changes in our menu that eliminate items popular with some consumers could harm our business. We compete with other smoothie
and juice bar retailers, specialty coffee retailers, yogurt and ice cream shops, bagel shops, fast-food restaurants, delicatessens,
cafés, take-out food service companies, supermarkets and convenience stores. Our competitors change with each of the four day
parts, ranging from coffee bars and bakery cafés to casual dining chains. Many of our competitors or potential competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resources than we do, which may allow them to react to changes in the market quicker than
we can. In addition, aggressive pricing by our competitors or the entrance of new competitors into our markets, as evidenced by
McDonald’s Corporation’s inclusion of fruit smoothies on their menu, could reduce our revenue and operating margins. We also
compete with other employers in our markets for hourly workers and may become subject to higher labor costs as a result of such
competition.
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Fluctuations in various food and supply costs, particularly fruit and dairy, could adversely affect our operating results.
 
Supplies and prices of the various ingredients that we are going to use to can be affected by a variety of factors, such as weather,
seasonal fluctuations, demand, politics and economics in the producing countries.
 
These factors subject us to shortages or interruptions in product supplies, which could adversely affect our revenue and profits. In
addition, the prices of fruit and dairy, which are the main ingredients in our products, can be highly volatile. The fruit of the quality we
seek tends to trade on a negotiated basis, depending on supply and demand at the time of the purchase. An increase in pricing of
any fruit that we are going to use in our products could have a significant adverse effect on our profitability. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to secure our fruit supply.
 
Our business depends substantially on the continuing efforts of our senior management and other key personnel, and our
business may be severely disrupted if we lose their services.
 
Our future success heavily depends on the continued service of our senior management and other key employees. If one or more of
our senior executives is unable or unwilling to continue to work for us in his present position, we may have to spend a considerable
amount of time and resources searching, recruiting, and integrating a replacement into our operations, which would substantially
divert management’s attention from our business and severely disrupt our business. This may also adversely affect our ability to
execute our business strategy. In addition, of any of our senior executives joins a competitor or forms a competing company, we may
lose customers, suppliers, know-how and key employees.
 
Our senior management’s limited experience managing a publicly traded company may divert management’s attention from
operations and harm our business.
 
With the exception of our Chief Financial Officer, our senior management team has relatively limited experience managing a publicly
traded company and complying with federal securities laws, including compliance with recently adopted disclosure requirements on a
timely basis. Our management will be required to design and implement appropriate programs and policies in responding to increased
legal, regulatory compliance and reporting requirements, and any failure to do so could lead to the imposition of fines and penalties
and harm our business.
 
We may be unable to attract and retain qualified, experienced, highly skilled personnel, which could adversely affect the
implementation of our business plan.
 
Our success depends to a significant degree upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate skilled and qualified personnel. As we
become a more mature company in the future, we may find recruiting and retention efforts more challenging. If we do not succeed in
attracting, hiring and integrating excellent personnel, or retaining and motivating existing personnel, we may be unable to grow
effectively. The loss of any key employee, including members of our senior management team, and our inability to attract highly
skilled personnel with sufficient experience in our industries could harm our business.
 
Product liability exposure may expose us to significant liability.
 
We may face an inherent business risk of exposure to product liability and other claims and lawsuits in the event that the development
or use of our technology or prospective products is alleged to have resulted in adverse effects. We may not be able to avoid
significant liability exposure. Although we believe our insurance coverage to be adequate, we may not have sufficient insurance
coverage, and we may not be able to obtain sufficient coverage at a reasonable cost. An inability to obtain product liability insurance
at acceptable cost or to otherwise protect against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the commercialization of our
products. A product liability claim could hurt our financial performance. Even if we avoid liability exposure, significant costs could be
incurred that could hurt our financial performance and condition.
 
Our inability to protect our intellectual property rights may force us to incur unanticipated costs.
 
Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to obtain and maintain protection in the United States and internationally for certain
intellectual property incorporated into our products. Our intellectual properties may be challenged, narrowed, invalidated or
circumvented, which could limit our ability to prevent competitors from marketing similar solutions that limit the effectiveness of our
patent protection and force us to incur unanticipated costs. In addition, existing laws of some countries in which we may provide
services or solutions may offer only limited protection of our intellectual property rights.
 
Our products may infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties, and third parties may infringe our proprietary
rights, either of which may result in lawsuits, distraction of management and the impairment of our business.
 
As the number of patents, copyrights, trademarks and other intellectual property rights in our industry increases, products based on
our technology may increasingly become the subject of infringement claims. Third parties could assert infringement claims against us
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in the future. Infringement claims with or without merit could be time consuming, result in costly litigation, cause product shipment
delays or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements. Royalty or licensing agreements, if required, might not be available
on terms acceptable to us, or at all. We may initiate claims or litigation against third parties for infringement of our proprietary rights or
to establish the validity of our proprietary rights. Litigation to determine the validity of any claims, whether or not the litigation is
resolved in our favor, could result in significant expense to us and divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel from
productive tasks. If there is an adverse ruling against us in any litigation, we may be required to pay substantial damages,
discontinue the use and sale of infringing products, and expend significant resources to develop non-infringing technology or obtain
licenses to infringing technology. Our failure to develop or license a substitute technology could prevent us from selling our products.
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If securities or industry analysts do not continue to publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, about
our business, our share price and trading volume could decline.

 
The trading market for our common stock may be impacted, in part, by the research and reports that securities or industry analysts
publish about our business or us. There can be no assurance that analysts will cover us, continue to cover us or provide favorable
coverage. If one or more analysts downgrade our stock or change their opinion of our stock, our share price may decline. In addition,
if one or more analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the
financial markets, which could cause our share price or trading volume to decline.
 
We will continue to incur increased costs as a result of operating as a public company, and our management will be
required to devote substantial time to compliance initiatives and corporate governance practices.
 
As a public company, we will continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and other applicable securities rules and regulations impose various
requirements on public companies, including establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure and financial controls and
corporate governance practices. Our management and other personnel will need to continue to devote a substantial amount of time to
these compliance initiatives. Moreover, these rules and regulations will increase our legal and financial compliance costs and make
some activities more time-consuming and costly.

 
We cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur to continue to operate as a public company, nor can we
predict the timing of such costs. These rules and regulations are often subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their
lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and
governing bodies which could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by
ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices.
 
We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we fail to maintain an effective
system of internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results or prevent
fraud.
 
Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Section 404, we are required to furnish a report by our management
on our internal control over financial reporting. As such, our management has conducted this evaluation and, as of March 31, 2014,
identified the following material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting:
 

 

• We do not have an audit committee: While we are not currently obligated to have an audit committee, including a member
who is an “audit committee financial expert,” as defined in Item 407 of Regulation S-K, under applicable regulations or listing
standards; however, it is management’s view that such a committee is an important internal control over financial reporting,
the lack of which may result in ineffective oversight in the establishment and monitoring of internal controls and procedures.

   

 
• We do not have a majority of independent directors on our board of directors, which may result in ineffective oversight in the

establishment and monitoring of required internal controls and procedures.
   
 • Inadequate Segregation of Duties: We have an inadequate number of personnel to properly implement control procedures.
 
Management believes that these material weaknesses have not had an effect our financial results and has concluded that disclosure
controls and procedures remain effective. Nonetheless, effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary to provide
reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our operating
results could be harmed. We will need to continue to dedicate internal resources, potentially engage outside consultants and adopt a
detailed work plan to modify and document the adequacy of internal control over financial reporting, continue steps to improve control
processes as appropriate, validate through testing that controls are functioning as documented and implement a continuous reporting
and improvement process for internal control over financial reporting. Continued identification of one or more material weaknesses in
our internal control over financial reporting could result in an adverse reaction in the financial markets due to a loss of confidence in
the reliability of our financial statements.
 
We are operating without independent directors.

 
We do not have independent directors. Riccardo Delle Coste and Steven Lang own greater than 60% of the Company’s common
stock, comprise the majority of the board of directors and also serve as officers of the Company. The Company is operated without
the oversight of independent directors and material agreements and transactions, including those with related parties, are not
approved with the oversight of independent directors.
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Failure to comply with the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act could subject us to penalties and other adverse
consequences.

 
As a Delaware corporation, we are subject to the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which generally prohibits United States
companies from engaging in bribery or other prohibited payments to foreign officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business. Some foreign companies, including some that may compete with our Company, may not be subject to these prohibitions.
Corruption, extortion, bribery, pay-offs, theft and other fraudulent practices may occur from time-to-time in the Angola or any other
countries in which we conduct our business. However, our employees or other agents may engage in conduct for which we might be
held responsible. If our employees or other agents are found to have engaged in such practices, we could suffer severe penalties and
other consequences that may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
 
Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock
 
Riccardo Delle Coste and Steven Lang have voting control over matters submitted to a vote of the shareholders, and they
may take actions that conflict with the interests of our other shareholders and holders of our debt securities.
 
Riccardo Delle Coste and Steven Lang, together, control more than 50% of the votes eligible to be cast by shareholders in the
election of directors and generally. As a result, Messrs. Delle Coste and Lang have the power to control all matters requiring the
approval of our shareholders, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers and other significant corporate
transactions.

 
Our common stock is quoted on the OTCQB, which may have an unfavorable impact on our stock price and liquidity.
 
Our common stock is quoted on the OTCQB, which is a significantly more limited trading market than the New York Stock Exchange,
NYSE MKT or the NASDAQ Stock Market. The quotation of the Company’s shares on the OTCQB may result in a less liquid market
available for existing and potential shareholders to trade shares of our common stock, could depress the trading price of our common
stock and could have a long-term adverse impact on our ability to raise capital in the future.
 
There is limited liquidity on the OTCQB, which may result in stock price volatility and inaccurate quote information.
 
When fewer shares of a security are being traded on the OTCQB, volatility of prices may increase and price movement may outpace
the ability to deliver accurate quote information. Due to lower trading volumes in shares of our common stock, there may be a lower
likelihood of one’s orders for shares of our common stock being executed, and current prices may differ significantly from the price
one was quoted at the time of one’s order entry.
 
If we are unable to adequately fund our operations, we may be forced to voluntarily file for deregistration of our common
stock with the SEC.
 
Compliance with the periodic reporting requirements required by the SEC consumes a considerable amount of both internal, as well
external, resources and represents a significant cost for us. If we are unable to continue to devote adequate funding and the
resources needed to maintain such compliance, while continuing our operations, we may be forced to deregister with the SEC. If we
file for deregistration, our common stock will no longer be listed the OTCQB, and it may suffer a decrease in or absence of liquidity as
after the deregistration process is complete, our common stock will only be tradable on the “Pink Sheets”.
 
Because we became public by means of a “reverse merger”, we may not be able to attract the attention of major brokerage
firms.
 
Additional risks may exist since we became public through a “reverse merger”. Securities analysts of major brokerage firms may not
provide coverage of us since there is little incentive to brokerage firms to recommend the purchase of our common stock. We cannot
assure you that brokerage firms will want to conduct any secondary offerings on behalf of our Company in the future.
 
Future sales of our common stock in the public market could lower the price of our common stock and impair our ability to
raise funds in future securities offerings.
 
Future sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales may
occur, could adversely affect the then prevailing market price of our common stock and could make it more difficult for us to raise
funds in the future through a public offering of our securities.

 
Our common stock is thinly traded, so you may be unable to sell at or near asking prices or at all if you need to sell your
shares to raise money or otherwise desire to liquidate your shares.
 
Currently, the Company’s common stock is quoted in the OTCQB and future trading volume may be limited by the fact that many

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



major institutional investment funds, including mutual funds, as well as individual investors follow a policy of not investing in OTCQB
stocks and certain major brokerage firms restrict their brokers from recommending OTCQB stocks because they are considered
speculative, volatile and thinly traded. The OTCQB market is an inter-dealer market much less regulated than the major exchanges
and our common stock is subject to abuses, volatility and shorting. Thus, there is currently no broadly followed and established
trading market for the Company’s common stock. An established trading market may never develop or be maintained. Active trading
markets generally result in lower price volatility and more efficient execution of buy and sell orders. Absence of an active trading
market reduces the liquidity of the shares traded there.
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The trading volume of our common stock has been and may continue to be limited and sporadic. As a result of such trading activity,
the quoted price for the Company’s common stock on the OTCQB may not necessarily be a reliable indicator of its fair market value.
Further, if we cease to be quoted, holders would find it more difficult to dispose of our common stock or to obtain accurate quotations
as to the market value of the Company’s common stock and as a result, the market value of our common stock likely would decline.
 
Our common stock is subject to price volatility unrelated to our operations.
 
The market price of our common stock could fluctuate substantially due to a variety of factors, including market perception of our
ability to achieve our planned growth, quarterly operating results of other companies in the same industry, trading volume in our
common stock, changes in general conditions in the economy and the financial markets or other developments affecting the
Company’s competitors or the Company itself. In addition, the OTCQB is subject to extreme price and volume fluctuations in general.
This volatility has had a significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies for reasons unrelated to their
operating performance and could have the same effect on our common stock.
 
We are subject to penny stock regulations and restrictions and you may have difficulty selling shares of our common stock.
 
Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTCQB. Our common stock is subject to the requirements of Rule 15(g)-9, promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act as long as the price of our common stock is below $5.00 per share. Under such rule, broker-
dealers who recommend low-priced securities to persons other than established customers and accredited investors must satisfy
special sales practice requirements, including a requirement that they make an individualized written suitability determination for the
purchaser and receive the purchaser’s consent prior to the transaction. The Securities Enforcement Remedies and Penny Stock
Reform Act of 1990, also requires additional disclosure in connection with any trades involving a stock defined as a penny stock.
Generally, the Commission defines a penny stock as any equity security not traded on a national exchange that has a market price of
less than $5.00 per share. The required penny stock disclosures include the delivery, prior to any transaction, of a disclosure schedule
explaining the penny stock market and the risks associated with it. Such requirements could severely limit the market liquidity of the
securities and the ability of purchasers to sell their securities in the secondary market.
 
Because we do not intend to pay dividends, shareholders will benefit from an investment in our common stock only if it
appreciates in value.
 
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our preferred stock or common stock. For the foreseeable future, it is
expected that earnings, if any, generated from our operations will be used to finance the growth of our business, and that no
dividends will be paid to holders of the Company’s common stock. As a result, the success of an investment in our common stock will
depend upon any future appreciation in its value. There can be no guarantee that our common stock will appreciate in value.
 
The price of our common stock may become volatile, which could lead to losses by investors and costly securities
litigation.
 
The trading price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could fluctuate in response to factors such as:
 
 • actual or anticipated variations in our operating results;
   
 • announcements of developments by us or our competitors;
   

 
• announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital

commitments;
   
 • adoption of new accounting standards affecting the our industry;
   
 • additions or departures of key personnel;
   
 • introduction of new products by us or our competitors;
   
 • sales of the our common stock or other securities in the open market; and
   
 • other events or factors, many of which are beyond our control.
 
The stock market is subject to significant price and volume fluctuations. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of
a company’s securities, securities class action litigation has often been initiated against such a company. Litigation initiated against
us, whether or not successful, could result in substantial costs and diversion of our management’s attention and Company resources,
which could harm our business and financial condition.
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Investors may experience dilution of their ownership interests because of the future issuance of additional shares of our
common stock.
 
We intend to continue to seek financing through the issuance of equity or convertible securities to fund our operations. In the future,
we may also issue additional equity securities resulting in the dilution of the ownership interests of our present shareholders. We may
also issue additional shares of our common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for our common stock in
connection with hiring or retaining employees, future acquisitions or for other business purposes. The future issuance of any such
additional shares of common stock will result in dilution to our shareholders and may create downward pressure on the trading price
of our common stock.
 
Provisions in our corporate charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of our company, which
may be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove
our current management.
 
Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acquisition or other change
in control of our company that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which you might otherwise receive a
premium for your shares. These provisions could also limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of
our common stock, thereby depressing the market price of our common stock. In addition, because our board of directors is
responsible for appointing the members of our management team, these provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our
board of directors. In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, which prohibits a person who owns in excess of 15% of our outstanding voting stock from
merging or combining with us for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person acquired in excess of
15% of our outstanding voting stock, unless the merger or combination is approved in a prescribed manner.
 
Item 2. Properties.
 
Our principal executive offices are located in 90 Madison Street, Suite 701, Denver, Colorado 80206. The executive office is co-
located with the office of Corporate Finance Group, a company that is owned by our Chief Financial Officer. In addition, we lease
office space at 8530 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 450, Beverly Hills, CA 90121 for $6,700 per month.
 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
 
Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are party to or have property that is the subject of any material pending legal proceedings.
We may be subject to ordinary legal proceedings incidental to our business from time to time that are not required to be disclosed
under this Item 1.
 
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
 
Not applicable.

 
PART II

 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
 
Market Information
 
Our common stock is currently traded on the OTCQB under the symbol “BRFH”. Our common stock had been quoted on the OTC
Bulletin Board since July 27, 2011 under the symbol MVBX. Effective February 29, 2012, our symbol changed to BRFH based on the
forward split and name change. On March 21, 2012, our common stock was delisted to Pink Sheets. On January 21, 2014, we
registered our common stock under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act. The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid
quotations for the applicable period. These quotations as reported by the OTCQB reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up,
markdown, or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

 
   Bid Quotation  

Financial Quarter Ended   High ($)   Low ($)  
March 31, 2014    0.84   0.40 
December 31, 2013    0.62   0.30 
September 30, 2013    0.24   0.50 
June 30, 2013    0.36   0.22 
March 31, 2013    0.44   0.22 
December 31, 2012    0.58   0.22 
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September 30, 2012    0.73   0.30 
June 30, 2012    0.33   0.22 
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Holders

 
At June 24, 2014, there were 65,247,660 shares of our common stock outstanding. Our shares of common stock are held by
approximately 47 stockholders of record. The number of record holders was determined from the records of our transfer agent and
does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held in the names of various security brokers, dealers, and
registered clearing agencies.

 
Dividends

 
We have never declared or paid a cash dividend. Any future decisions regarding dividends will be made by our board of directors. We
currently intend to retain and use any future earnings for the development and expansion of our business and do not anticipate
paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our board of directors has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends.
Even if our board of directors decides to pay dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon our future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors that the board of
directors may deem relevant.
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

 
There were no sales of equity securities during the period covered by this Annual Report that were not registered under the Securities
Act that were not included in a Quarterly Report on Form 10Q or a Current Report on Form 8K.

 
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Company

 
There were no purchases of equity securities made by the Company in the fourth quarter covered by this report.
 
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
 
The following table provides information, as of March 31, 2014, with respect to equity securities authorized for issuance under our
equity compensation plan:

 

Plan Category  

Number of
Securities to be

Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding

Options,
Warrants and

Rights 
(a)   

Weighted-
Average Exercise

Price of
Outstanding

Options, Warrants
and Rights 

(b)   

Number of
Securities
Remaining

Available for
Future Issuance

Under Equity
Compensation

Plans (excluding
securities

reflected in
Column(a))(c)  

          
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders   0  $ 0   0 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders   800,000  $ 0.50   8,200,000 
             
TOTAL   800,000  $ 0.50   8,200,000 

 
Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

 
Not applicable because we are a smaller reporting company.

 
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
 
The information and financial data discussed below is derived from the audited financial statements of Barfresh for its fiscal years
ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. The financial statements of Barfresh were prepared and presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States. The information and financial data discussed below is only a summary and
should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements and related notes of Barfresh contained elsewhere in this Annual
Report. This discussion and analysis may contain forward-looking statements based on assumptions about our future business. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors. See
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements” above for a discussion of forward-looking statements and the significance
of such statements in the context of this Annual Report.
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We are engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of ready to blend beverages, particularly, smoothies, shakes and frappes. Our
products are portion controlled ready to blend beverage ingredient packs or “beverage packs”. They contain all of the ingredients
necessary to make the beverage, including the base (either sorbet, frozen yogurt or ice cream), fruit pieces, juices and ice.
Ingredients used are natural, no syrups or powders.
 
We own the domestic and international patents and patents pending, as well as related trademarks for our products. In November
2011 we acquired the patent rights in the United States and Canada. The Canadian patent has been granted and the United States
patent is “patent pending”. On October 15, 2013, we acquired all of the related international patent rights, which were filed pursuant to
the Patent Cooperation Treaty, have been granted in 13 jurisdictions and are pending in the remainder of the jurisdictions that have
signed the treaty. In addition, on October 15, 2013, we purchased all of the trademarks related to the patented products.

 
We have been developing flavor profiles of our smoothies that we believe will be appealing to tastes in the United States. We have
been in discussions with a number of companies including both large and small quick service restaurant (“QSR”) chains and national
food services companies that serve alternative venues such as stadiums, arenas and universities with national footprints in the United
States and have reached preliminary agreements with three potential customers to begin testing in the near future. We are in
ongoing negotiations with a number of other companies. In addition to the large retail fast food and fast casual chains, we will sell to
food distributors that supply products to the food services market place. Finally, we intend to monetize the international patents
outside of our current area of operations, North America, by expanding contract manufacturing to other countries and selling either
through selling agents or our own sales personnel or by entering into some form of license or royalty agreements with third parties.
We began selling product to Australia during the final months of our fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.
 
To date, we have funded our operations through the sale of our equity securities, issuance of convertible debt, issuance of promissory
notes and advances from related parties.

 
The acquisition of the international patents and trademarks on October 15, 2013 was funded through an advance of $672,157 from
an affiliate of a Director and significant shareholder. $200,000 of the advance was satisfied through the participation in the Company’s
December 20, 2013 private placement of notes and warrants by affiliate of the Director, and an affiliate of an Officer and Director and
significant shareholder. The net proceeds to the Company from the private placement that closed on December 20, 2013, including
the aforementioned $200,000, was $775,000. The $775,000 in notes bears interest at a rate of 2% per annum and is due and
payable on December 20, 2014, with certain provisions for extension. Warrants to purchase 1,291,667 shares of the Company’s
common stock were issued to these investors and the warrants have an exercise price of $0.45 per share. In addition to the related
parties discussed above, $500,000 of notes was purchased by a significant shareholder. All of the related parties participated in the
offering upon the same terms offered to other investors. The balance of the remaining loan for the acquisition of the patents and
trademarks, including interest, was paid in cash, in full by the Company.

 
Our plan is to utilize contract manufacturers to manufacture our products in the United States. Ice cream manufacturers are best
suited for our products. Our first production line has been installed and commissioned in Salt Lake City and is currently producing
products being sold to our customers as well as new product development for new large customers.
 
Although we do not have a contract with any suppliers for the raw materials needed to manufacture smoothie packs we believe that
there are a significant number of sources available and we do not anticipate becoming dependent on any one supplier. As demand
for our range of products grows, we will look to contract a level of our raw material requirements to ensure continuity of supply.

 
We currently have two employees selling our product. The process of obtaining orders from potential customers will likely follow the
following process:
 

 • Meeting with and introducing products to customer
   

 • Developing flavor profiles for the specific customer
   

 • Participate in test marketing of the product with the flavors developed for the customer
   

 • Agree to a roll out schedule for the customer.
 

Although we have agreements with potential customers representing approximately 10,000 outlets to develop flavors and test our
products and have begun to develop flavor profiles for others, we have no assurance that we will supply any chain with our products.
During the year ended March 31, 2014 we began shipping our products to one of the customers we have contracts with and to a
number of smaller customers.
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In addition to the large retail fast food and fast casual chains, we will sell to food distributors that supply products to the food services
market place.

 
There can be no assurance that we will not become dependent on one or a few major customers.

 
We intend to monetize the international patents outside of our current area of operations, North America, by expanding contract
manufacturing to other countries and selling either through selling agents or our own sales personnel or by entering into some form of
license or royalty agreements with third parties. Most recently, as part of our expansion due to the acquisition of the international
patents, we engaged a leading regional Australian food ingredient supply and product developer as our wholesaler and distributor.
Our first order was shipped to Australia in January 2014.
 
Critical accounting Policies
 
Our financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”).
 
We were in the development stage from December 4, 2009 through March 31, 2013. Our fiscal year ending March 31, 2014 is the
first year during which we are considered an operating company and is no longer in the development stage.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheets and revenues and expenses during the years reported.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 
Intangible Assets
 
Intangible assets are comprised of patents, net of amortization. The patent costs are being amortized over the life of the patent,
which is twenty years from the date of filing the patent application. In accordance with ASC Topic 350 Intangibles - Goodwill and
Other (“ASC 350”), the costs of internally developing other intangible assets, such as patents, are expensed as incurred. However, as
allowed by ASC 350, costs associated with the acquisition of patents from third parties, legal fees and similar costs relating to patents
have been capitalized.
 
Property, Plant and Equipment
 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are being amortized over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term that includes any expected renewal periods that are deemed to be
reasonably assured. The estimated useful lives used for financial statement purposes are:
 

Furniture and fixtures: 5 years
Equipment: 7 years
Leasehold improvements: 2 years

 
Revenue Recognition
 
We recognize revenue when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered,
the sales price is determinable, and collection is reasonably assured.
 
Research and Development
 
Expenditures for research activities relating to product development and improvement are charged to expense as incurred. We
incurred $47,035 and $103,293, in research and development expenses for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Rent Expense
 
We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the reasonably assured lease term as defined in ASC Topic 840, Leases
(“ASC 840”). In addition, our lease agreement provides for rental payments commencing at a date other than the date of initial
occupancy. We include the rent holidays in determination of straight-line rent expense. Therefore, rent expense is charged to
expense beginning with the occupancy date. Deferred rent was $1,866 and $5,066 at March 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively and will
be charged to rent expense over the life of the lease.
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Results of Operations

 
Results of Operation for Year Ended March 31, 2014 as Compared to the Year Ended March 31, 2013
(References to 2014 and 2013 are to the year ended March 31, 2014 and 2012 respectively, unless otherwise specified.)
 
Revenue and cost of revenue

 
Revenue for 2014 was $110,085 as compared to $8,928 in 2013. We began shipping to new customers in 2014 whereas in 2013 only
a limited number of customers were testing our products.

 
Cost of revenue for 2014 was $48,534 as compared to $8,884 in 2013. Our gross profit was $61,551 (55.9%) and $44 for 2014 and
2013, respectively. The significant change in our cost and gross profit relates primarily to selling prices. Our selling prices to overseas
customers yields higher gross profit. We anticipate that our gross profit percentage in 2014 is more indicative of our expected results
going forward than the percentage in 2013.

 
Operating expenses

 
Our operations during 2014 and 2013 were directed towards increasing sales and finalizing flavor profiles.
 
Our general and administrative expenses increased $463,105 as we grew the business and is not necessarily indicative of the rate of
future increases.
 
The following is a breakdown of our general and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:
 

  2014   2013   Difference  
Personnel cost  $ 877,646  $ 434,747  $ 442,899 
Stock based compensation/options   291,631   103,488   188,143 
Consulting fees   259,346   569,514   (310,168)
Legal and professional fees   176,334   173,353   2,981 
Travel   166,621   156,921   9,700 
Investor and public relations   122,224   70,202   52,022 
Marketing and selling   109,104   82,817   26,287 
Rent   77,007   38,119   38,888 
Research and development   47,035   103,293   (56,258)
Other expenses   140,322   71,713   68,611 
  $ 2,267,270  $ 1,804,167   463,105 

 
Personnel cost represents the cost of employees including salaries, employee benefits and employment taxes. Personnel cost
increased $442,899 (102%) from 434,747 to 877,646. During 2014 we had more personnel than in 2013. In addition the average
salary was high due to hiring more experienced personnel. One consultant in 2013 became an employee in 2014. We anticipate
personnel cost to increase in the future.
 
Stock based compensation, which includes stock issued and warrants granted to employee, and non-employees increased $188,143
(189%) from $103,488 in 2013 to 291,631. The increase is due to grants made to an Officer and Director. Stock based compensation
is used as an incentive to attract new employees and to compensate existing employees.
 
Consulting fees decreased by $310,168 (54.5%) from $569,514 in 2013 to $259,346 in 2014. During 2014 and 2013, we had from
four to six consultants providing services to us. As of March 31, 2014 we have only two consultants providing services. Future
consulting fees will be variable depending on our needs.
 
Legal and professional fees as well as travel cost did not vary significantly.
 
Investor and public relation expenses increased $52,022 (74.1%) from $70,202 in 2013 to $122,224 in 2014. We are currently using
an outside firm to assist us with our investor and public relations needs. We incurred the cost associated with attending two investor
conferences in 2014. We anticipate continuing the use of outside sources and attending conferences in the future.
 
Marketing and selling expenses increased $26,287 (31.7%), from $82,817 in 2013 to $109,104 in 2014. The increase relates
primarily to sample expenses. We gave away more products in 2014 than in 2013.

 
Rent expense is primarily for our location in Beverly Hills, California. Our rent expense is approximately $6,700 per month. The lease
on the office commenced in October 2012 and expires in October 2014. We are currently negotiating with our landlord to extend the
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lease.
 
Research and development expenses decreased by $56,258 (54.5%) from $103,293 in 2013 to $47,035 in 2014. Research and
development represents the cost of developing flavor profiles of our products and the development of future equipment. We anticipate
cost continuing in future periods, the amounts of which cannot be estimated at this point in time. Our research and development cost
will be dependent on new formulations and new flavor profiles as our customer base increases.
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Other expenses consist of ordinary operating expenses such as office, telephone, insurance, and stock related costs. These costs
have increased as our business has grown. We anticipate additional increases in these expenses.

 
We had operating losses of $2,290,562 and $1,839,499 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Interest expense increased $96,399 (26.9%) from $196,489 in 2013 to $292,888 in 2014. Interest primarily relates to convertible debt
that was issued in August 2012 and renewed in September 2013 and short term notes that were issued in December 2013.
 
Interest expense includes direct interest of $96,339 and $30,822 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, calculated based on the interest rate
stated in our various debt instruments.
 
In addition, interest expense includes non-cash amortization of the debt discount of $228,165 and $165,689, for 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
 
Interest expense also included various finance charges of $1,447 for the year ended March 31, 2014.
 
We had net losses of $2,583,450 and $2,035,988 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
As of March 31, 2014 we had working capital of $1,824,889.
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014 we used cash of $1,885,160 in operations, $699,561 for the purchase of patents and
trademarks, $104,532 for investment in equipment.
 
We received $4,806,500 less expenses of $295,320 for a net amount of $4,511,180 for the sale of (i) 14,226,000 shares our common
stock and (ii) warrants to purchase 14,739,000 shares of common stock, which have terms from three to five year and exercise prices
between $0.25 and $0.60 per share.
 
We issued $775,000 in short-term notes payable, $500,000 of which was purchased by a significant shareholder, $100,000 was
purchased by an affiliate of an Officer, Director and significant shareholder and $100,000 was purchased by an affiliate of a director
and significant shareholder. The short-term notes are due and payable in one year but we have the right to a six month extension.
We also issued 1,291,667 warrants to the short-term note holders for the right to purchase shares of our common stock. Each
warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of our common stock at a price of $0.45 per share, may be exercised on a cashless
basis and is exercisable for a period of five years. In addition we borrowed $485,132 and repaid $515,404 in advances from related
parties. The advance from related parties was primarily used towards the acquisition of the patents and trademarks and the cash
used to repay the advances came from the issuance of the short-term debt. We also repaid $40,000 and borrowed $20,000 of
principal on our convertible debt.

 
Our operations to date have been financed by the sale of securities, the issuance of convertible debt and the issuance of short-term
debt, including related party advances. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations with the capital raised we will
be required to raise additional funds either in the form of capital or debt. There are no assurances that we will be able to generate the
necessary capital or debt to carry out our current plan of operations.

 
The aggregate minimum requirements under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2014 are as follows:

 
Fiscal Years ending March 31, 2015   $ 39,993 

 
The aggregate amount of principal payments due as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

 
Fiscal Years ending March 31,     
2014   $ - 
2015    775,000 
2016    420,000 
   $ 1,195,000 

 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

 
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that are material to stockholders.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
18

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
 
Not applicable because we are a smaller reporting company.

 
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

 
Our consolidated financial statements are included beginning immediately following the signature page to this report. See Item 15 for
a list of the consolidated financial statements included herein.

 
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
 
None.
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15(f). Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2014.
 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, for the Company.
 
Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of its
management and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
 
Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control, and accordingly,
even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and may not
prevent or detect material misstatements. In addition, effective internal control at a point in time may become ineffective in future
periods because of changes in conditions or due to deterioration in the degree of compliance with our established policies and
procedures.

 
Our management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2014. The
framework used by management in making that assessment was the criteria set forth in the document entitled “Internal Control –
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in 1992 which
assessment identified material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a control deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that creates a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement in annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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Management identified the following material weaknesses:
 

 

• We do not have an audit committee: While we are not currently obligated to have an audit committee, including a member
who is an “audit committee financial expert,” as defined in Item 407 of Regulation S-K, under applicable regulations or listing
standards; however, it is management’s view that such a committee is an important internal control over financial reporting,
the lack of which may result in ineffective oversight in the establishment and monitoring of internal controls and procedures.

   

 
• We do not have a majority of independent directors on our board of directors, which may result in ineffective oversight in the

establishment and monitoring of required internal controls and procedures.
   
 • Inadequate Segregation of Duties: We have an inadequate number of personnel to properly implement control procedures.
 
Since the assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting did identify material weaknesses,
management considers its internal control over financial reporting to be ineffective.

 
Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control, and accordingly,
even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and may not
prevent or detect material misstatements. In addition, effective internal control at a point in time may become ineffective in future
periods because of changes in conditions or due to deterioration in the degree of compliance with our established policies and
procedures.

 
Management believes that the material weakness set forth above did not have an effect on our financial results.
 
In an effort to remediate the identified material weakness and enhance our internal control over financial reporting, we plan to engage
additional accounting personnel to ensure that we are able to properly implement internal control procedures at such time as funds
are available.
 
This report shall not be deemed to be filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of
that section, and is not incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof,
regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.

 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended March
31, 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 
Item 9B. Other Information.
 
None

 
PART III

 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
 
Directors and Executive Officers
 
The following sets forth information about our directors and executive officers as of the date of this Report:
 
Name  Age  Position
Riccardo Delle Coste  35  President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
Steven Lang  61  Director
Arnold Tinter  69  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Director
 
Riccardo Delle Coste has been the Chairman of our board of directors, President and Chief Executive Officer since January 10,
2012. He has also been the President and Chief Executive Officer of Barfresh Inc., a Colorado corporation and our wholly owned
subsidiary (“Barfresh CO”), since its inception. Mr. Delle Coste is also the Managing Director of Barfresh Food Group. Mr. Delle
Coste is the inventor of the patent pending technology and the creator of Smoo Smoothies. Mr. Delle Coste started the business in
2005 and developed a unique system using controlled pre-packaged portions, to deliver a freshly made smoothie that is quick, cost
efficient, healthy and with no waste. In building the business, he is responsible for securing new business tenders and maintaining
key client relationships. He is also responsible for the development of new product from testing to full-scale production, establishment
of the manufacturing facilities that have all necessary accreditation (HACCP, Halal, and Kosher), technology development, product
improvement and R&D with new product launches. Mr. Delle Coste also has over five years of investment banking experience. Mr.
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Delle Coste attended Macquarie University, Sydney, Australia while studying for a Bachelor of Commerce for 3.5 years but left to
pursue business interests and did not receive a degree.
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Qualifications: Mr. Delle Coste has 17 years of experience within retail, hospitality and dairy industries and is a member of the Dairy
Institute of Australia.

 
Steven Lang was appointed as Director of the Company on January 10, 2012. He has also served as Secretary of Barfresh CO since
its inception. Prior to joining Barfresh CO, from 2003 to 2007, Mr. Lang was a director of Vericap Finance Limited, a company that
specializes in providing advice to and investing in Australian companies with international growth potential. From 1990 to 1999, he
served as a director of Babcock & Brown’s Australian operations where he was responsible for international structured finance
transactions. Mr. Lang received a Bachelor of Commerce and a Bachelor of Laws from the University of New South Wales in 1976
and a Master of Laws from the University of Sydney in 1984. He has been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and was licensed to practice foreign law in New York.

 
Qualifications: Mr. Lang has over 35 years of experience in business, accounting, law and finance and served as Chairman of an
Australian public company.

 
Arnold Tinter was appointed as Director, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Company on January 10, 2012. Mr. Tinter
founded Corporate Finance Group, Inc., a consulting firm located in Denver, Colorado, in 1992, and is its President. Corporate
Finance Group, Inc., is involved in financial consulting in the areas of strategic planning, mergers and acquisitions and capital
formation. He is the chief financial officer to two other public companies: LifeApps Digital Media Inc. and Arvana Inc. From 2006 to
2010 he was the chief financial officer of Spicy Pickle Franchising, Inc., a public company, where his responsibilities included
oversight of all accounting functions, including SEC reporting, strategic planning and capital formation. From May 2001 to May 2003,
he served as chief financial officer of Bayview Technology Group, LLC, a privately held company that manufactured and distributed
energy-efficient products. From May 2003 to October 2004, he also served as that company’s chief executive officer. Prior to 1990,
Mr. Tinter was chief executive officer of Source Venture Capital, a holding company with investments in the gaming, printing and retail
industries. Mr. Tinter currently serves as a director of LifeApps Digital Media Inc., a public company. Mr. Tinter received a B.S.
degree in Accounting in 1967 from C.W. Post College, Long Island University, and is licensed as a Certified Public Accountant in
Colorado.
 
Qualifications: Mr. Tinter has over 40 years of experience as a Certified Public Accountant and a financial consultant. During his
career he served as a director of numerous public companies.
 
Employment Agreements
 
There are no employment agreements between the Company and its officers and directors.
 
Term of Office
 
Directors are appointed for a one-year term to hold office until the next annual general meeting of shareholders or until removed from
office in accordance with our bylaws. Our officers are appointed by our board of directors and hold office until the earlier of
resignation or removal.
 
Director Independence
 
We use the definition of “independence” standards as defined in the NASDAQ Stock Market Rule 5605(a)(2) provides that an
“independent director” is a person other than an officer or employee of the company or any other individual having a relationship,
which, in the opinion of the Company’s board of directors, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out
the responsibilities of a director. We have determined that none of our directors are independent.
 
Board Committees
 
We do not have an audit, nominating or compensation committee. We intend, however, to establish an audit committee and a
compensation committee of our board in the future. We envision that the audit committee will be primarily responsible for reviewing
the services performed by our independent auditors and evaluating our accounting policies and our system of internal controls. The
compensation committee will be primarily responsible for reviewing and approving our salary and benefits policies (including stock
options) and other compensation of our executive officers.
 
Family Relationships
 
There are no family relationships among any of our officers or directors.
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Legal Proceedings
 
To the best of our knowledge, none of our executive officers or directors are parties to any material proceedings adverse to the
Company, have any material interest adverse to the Company or have, during the past ten years:
 

 
• been convicted in a criminal proceeding or been subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and

other minor offenses);
   

 
• had any bankruptcy petition filed by or against him/her or any business of which he/she was a general partner or executive

officer, either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;
   

 
• been subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent

jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his/her involvement in any type of
business, securities, futures, commodities or banking activities;

   

 
• been found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commodity

Futures Trading Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not
been reversed, suspended, or vacated;

   

 

• been subject to, or party to, any judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree , or finding, not subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, relating to an alleged violation of (i) any Federal or State securities or commodities law or regulation,
(ii) any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies including, but not limited to, a temporary or
permanent injunction, order of disgorgement or restitution, civil money penalty or temporary or permanent cease-and-desist
order, or removal or prohibition order or (iii) any law or regulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud or fraud in connection with any
business entity; or been the subject of, or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any self-regulatory organization (as defined in Section 3(a)(26) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78c(a)(26))), any
registered entity (as defined in Section 1(a)(29) of the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. 1(a)(29))), or any equivalent
exchange, association, entity or organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a
member.

 
Code of Ethics
 
The Company has not yet adopted a code of ethics.
 
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) requires our directors and executive officers
and beneficial holders of more than 10% of our common stock to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes
in ownership of our equity securities.

 
To our knowledge, based solely upon a review of Forms 3 and 4 and amendments thereto furnished to Barfresh under 17 CFR
240.16a-3(e) during our most recent fiscal year and Forms 5 and amendments thereto furnished to Barfresh with respect to our most
recent fiscal year or written representations from the reporting persons, we believe that during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014
our directors, executive officers and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock complied with all Section 16(a) filing
requirements with the exception of the following: Riccardo Delle Coste, Arnold Tinter and Steven Lang each filed a late Form 3 filing;
Arnold Tinter and Steven Lang each filed a late Form 4 filing.
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation.
 
The following table summarizes all compensation for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 received by our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, who were the only executive officers of the Company in fiscal year 2014, our “Named Executive Officers”:
 

Name and 
Principal 
Position  Year   

Salary
($)   

Bonus 
($)   

Stock 
Awards 

($)   

Option 
Awards 

($)   

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)   

Change in
Pension 

Value and
Nonqualified

Deferred
Compensation

Earnings 
($)   

All Other
Compensation

($)   
Total 

($)  
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Riccardo Delle
Coste, 
Chief Executive
Officer   2014   117,517                           117,517 
   2013   36,450                       36,450 
                                     
Arnold Tinter, 
Chief Financial
Officer   2014   72,000       160,000               232,000 
   2013   48,000                     48,000 
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table
 
At March 31, 2014, the Company had no outstanding equity awards to its Named Executive Officers.
 
Employment Agreements
 
There are no employment agreements between the Company and its officers and directors.
 
Compensation of Directors
 
The following table summarizes the compensation paid to our directors for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014:

 
  Fees                 
  Earned or         Non-Equity        
  Paid in   Stock   Option   Incentive Plan   All Other     

.1 Name  .2 Cash   .3 Awards   .4 Awards   .5 Compensation   .6 Compensation   .7 Total  
Riccardo Delle Coste  $ 0   0   0   0   0  $ 0 
Arnold Tinter  $ 0                  $ 0 
Steven Lang  $ 12,500   0  $ 115,119(1)  0   0  $ 127,619 

 
(1) On February 14, 2014, Steven Lang was granted an option to purchase 800,000 shares of the Company’s common stock

under the Company’s 2014 Equity Incentive Plan at a purchase price of $0.50 per share. The option was fully vested at the
time of grant and has a term of three years, expiring on February 14, 2017.

 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

 
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
 
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our shares of common stock beneficially owned as of June 24, 2014 for (i)
each shareholder known to be the beneficial owner of 5% or more of our outstanding shares of common stock, (ii) each Named
Executive Officer and director, and (iii) all executive officers and directors as a group. A person is considered to beneficially own any
shares: (i) over which such person, directly or indirectly, exercises sole or shared voting or investment power, or (ii) of which such
person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership at any time within 60 days through an exercise of stock options or warrants or
otherwise. Unless otherwise indicated, voting and investment power relating to the shares shown in the table for our directors and
executive officers is exercised solely by the beneficial owner or shared by the owner and the owner’s spouse or children.

 
For purposes of this table, a person or group of persons is deemed to have “beneficial ownership” of any shares of common stock that
such person has the right to acquire within 60 days of June 24, 2014. For purposes of computing the percentage of outstanding
shares of our common stock held by each person or group of persons named above, any shares that such person or persons has the
right to acquire within 60 days of June 24, 2014 is deemed to be outstanding, but is not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any other person. The inclusion herein of any shares listed as beneficially owned does not
constitute an admission of beneficial ownership. Unless otherwise specified, the address of each of the persons set forth below is in
care of Barfresh Food Group Inc., 90 Madison Street, Denver CO 80206.
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Name and address of beneficial owner  

Amount and
nature of
beneficial
ownership   

Percent of
class o/s  

Riccardo Delle Coste (1) (2) (6) (7)   19,533,331   29.68%
         

R.D. Capital Holdings Pty Ltd. (1) (6) (7)   19,366,664   29.50%
         

Steven Lang (3) (4) (8) (9)   20,133,331   30.41%
         

Sidra Pty Limited (3) (8)   19,133,331   29.25%
         

Arnold Tinter (5)   800,000   1.23%
         
All directors and officers as a group (3 persons)   40,466,662   60.60%
         
Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP 
3200 Cherry Creek South Drive 
Suite 670 
Denver, CO 80209   17,934,138   23.82%
 
(1) Includes 18,966,664 shares owned by R.D. Capital Holdings Pty Ltd. and of which Riccardo Delle Coste is deemed to be a
beneficial owner.
 
(2) Mr. Delle Coste is the Chief Executive Officer, President and a Director of the Company.
 
(3) Includes 18,966,664 shares owned by Sidra Pty Limited of which Steven Lang is deemed to be a beneficial owner.
 
(4) Mr. Lang is a Director of the Company.
 
(5) Mr. Tinter is the Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and a Director of the Company.
 
(6) Includes 200,000 underlying shares of convertible debt owned and 200,000 shares underlying warrants related to convertible debt
owned by RD Capital Holdings Pty Ltd. Mr. Delle Coste is deemed to be a beneficially own these shares.
 
(7) Includes 166,667 shares underlying warrants issued in connection with a promissory note the holder of which is the Delle Coste
Family Trust. Mr. Delle Coste may be deemed to indirectly beneficially own these shares but disclaims beneficial ownership of these
shares pursuant to Rule 13d-4 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 
(8) Includes shares underlying warrants issued in connection with a promissory note the holder of which is Sidra Pty Limited.
 
(9) Includes 800,000 shares underlying options granted pursuant to the Company’s 2014 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan. The
options are fully vested, have an exercise price of $0.50 per share and expire on February 14, 2017.
 
Changes in control.
 
None
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
 
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
 
The following includes a summary of transactions since the beginning of fiscal 2014, or any currently proposed transaction, in which
we were or are to be a participant and the amount involved exceeded or exceeds the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the
average of our total assets at year end for the last two completed fiscal years and in which any related person had or will have a
direct or indirect material interest (other than compensation described under “Executive Compensation”). We believe the terms
obtained or consideration that we paid or received, as applicable, in connection with the transactions described below were
comparable to or better than terms available or the amounts that would be paid or received, as applicable, in arm’s-length
transactions.
 
The acquisition of the international patents on October 15, 2013 was funded through an advance of $672,157 from an affiliate of
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Steven Lang at an interest rate of 6.0%. Two hundred thousand ($200,000) of the advance was satisfied through the participation of
Riccardo Delle Coste and Steven Lang, separately through their affiliates, in the Company’s December 20, 2013 private placement of
notes and warrants. Five-year warrants to purchase 333,334 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $.45 per share were
issued to each of these related parties as part of their investment. The related parties participated in the offering upon the same terms
offered to other investors. The balance of the remaining loan, plus accrued interest of $5,617, was paid in full and in cash by the
Company prior to the end of 2013.
 
Lazarus Investment Partners LLP, a greater than 10% shareholder of the Company (“Lazarus”) participated in the private placement
that closed on December 20, 2013. Lazarus purchased a 2%, one-year $500,000 note and five-year warrants to purchase 833,333
shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.45 in this offering.
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014 and the year ended March 31, 2013 we received cash advances in the amounts of $12,975
and $30,272, respectively, from a relative of an officer of the Company. The advances bear no interest and were repaid.
 
Our principal executive offices are located in 90 Madison Street, Suite 701, Denver, Colorado 80206. The executive office is co-
located with the office of Corporate Finance Group, a company that is owned by our Chief Financial Officer. We use this property free
of charge.
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The Company’s policy with regard to related party transactions requires any related party loans that are (i) non-interest bearing and in
excess of $100,000 or (ii) interest bearing, irrespective of amount, must be approved by the Company’s board of directors. All
issuances of securities by the Company must be approved by the board of directors, irrespective of whether the recipient is a related
party. Each of the foregoing transactions, if required by its terms, was approved in this manner.
 
Director Independence
 
We use the definition of “independent director” of The NASDAQ Stock Market set forth in NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(a)(2) to
evaluate the independence of each of our directors. We have determined that none of our directors qualifies as an “independent
director”.
 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
 
Aggregate fees for professional services rendered to the Company by Eide Bailly LLP for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2014
were as follows.
 

  Fiscal 2014   Fiscal 2013  
Audit fees  $ 37,264  $ 19,180 
Audit related fees         
Tax fees       - 
All other fees       - 
Total  $ 37,264  $ 19,180 
 
As defined by the SEC, (i) “audit fees” are fees for professional services rendered by our principal accountant for the audit of our
annual financial statements and review of financial statements included in our Form 10-K, or for services that are normally provided
by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years; (ii) “audit-related fees” are
fees for assurance and related services by our principal accountant that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or
review of our financial statements and are not reported under “audit fees;” (iii) “tax fees” are fees for professional services rendered by
our principal accountant for tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning; and (iv) “all other fees” are fees for products and services
provided by our principal accountant, other than the services reported under “audit fees,” “audit-related fees,” and “tax fees.”
 
Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were for the audits of our financial statements
and reviews of our interim financial statements included in our annual and quarterly reports.
 
Audit Related Fees. The aggregate fees billed for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were for the audit or review of our
financial statements that are not reported under Audit Fees.

 
Tax Fees. Eide Bailly LLP did not provide us with professional services related to tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning for the
years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.
 
All Other Fees. Eide Bailly LLP did not provide us with professional services related to “Other Fees” for the years ended March 31,
2014 and 2013.
 
Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

 
Under the SEC’s rules, an audit committee is required to pre-approve the audit and non-audit services performed by the independent
registered public accounting firm in order to ensure that they do not impair the auditors’ independence. The SEC’s rules specify the
types of non-audit services that an independent auditor may not provide to its audit client and establish the audit committee’s
responsibility for administration of the engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm. The Company has not yet
established an Audit Committee. Accordingly, none of audit services and non-audit services described in this Item 14 were pre-
approved by an Audit Committee. However the services were approved by the Board of Directors.
 
There were no hours expended on the principal accountant’s engagement to audit the registrant’s financial statements for the most
recent fiscal year that were attributed to work performed by persons other than the principal accountant’s full-time, permanent
employees.
 

PART IV
 
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements

(a) 1. Financial Statements
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See Index to Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
 
2. Financial Statement Schedules
 

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either not applicable or the required information is
shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

 
3. Exhibits
 

See the Exhibit Index, which follows the signature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

 
(b) Exhibits
 
See Item 15(a) (3) above.
 
(c) Financial Statement Schedules
 
See Item 15(a) (2) above.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
   
Date: June 30, 2014 By: /s/ Riccardo Delle Coste

  
Riccardo Delle Coste
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

   
Date: June 30, 2014 By: /s/ Arnold Tinter
  Arnold Tinter

  
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

 
Signature  Capacity  Date
     
/s/ Riccardo Delle Coste  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director  June 30, 2014
Riccardo Delle Coste  (Principal Executive Officer)   
     
/s/ Arnold Tinter  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Director  June 30, 2014
Arnold Tinter  (Principal Financial Officer)   
     
/s/ Steven Lang  Director  June 30, 2014
Steven Lang     
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
To the Board of Directors
and Stockholders of Barfresh Food Group Inc.
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Barfresh Food Group Inc. (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2014
and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the years in
the two-year period ended March 31, 2014. Barfresh Food Group Inc.’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial
statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Barfresh Food Group Inc. as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in
the two-year period ended March 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
 

 

Greenwood Village, Colorado  
June 30, 2014  

 

 
F-2

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2014 and 2013
 

  2014   2013  
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash  $ 2,632,612  $ 85,957 
Accounts Receivable   68,640   7,413 
Inventory   76,913   12,712 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   12,007   226,602 
Receivable from related party   -   13,540 

Total current assets   2,790,172   346,224 
Property and equipment, net of depreciation   362,078   311,496 
Intangible asset, net of amortization   700,654   31,985 
Deposits   14,461   10,731 
Total Assets  $ 3,867,365  $ 700,436 

         
Liabilities And Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable  $ 175,851   247,682 
Accrued expenses   242,820   187,096 
Deferred rent liability   1,866   5,066 
Short-term notes payable - related party, net of discount   492,015   - 
Short-term notes payable, net of discount   52,731   - 
Advances from related party   -   30,272 
Convertible note - related party, net of discount   -   36,551 
Convertible note, net of discount   -   285,100 

Total current liabilities   965,283   791,767 
Convertible note - related party, net of discount   22,993   - 
Convertible note, net of discount   170,066   - 

Total liabilities   1,158,342   791,767 
         
Commitments and contingencies         
         
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):         
Preferred stock, $0.000001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or
outstanding   -   - 
Common stock, $0.000001 par value; 95,000,000 shares authorized; 65,247,660 and
50,366,660 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively   65   50 
Additional paid in capital   7,739,117   2,355,328 
Accumulated equity (deficit)   (5,030,159)   (2,446,709)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)   2,709,023   (91,331)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)  $ 3,867,365  $ 700,436 

 
See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

 
F-3

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013
 

  2014   2013  
Revenue  $ 110,085  $ 8,928 
Cost of revenue   48,534   8,884 
Gross profit   61,551   44 
         
Operating expenses:         

General and administrative   2,267,270   1,804,167 
Depreciation Amortization   84,843   35,376 

Total operating expenses   2,352,113   1,839,543 
         
Operating loss   (2,290,562)   (1,839,499)
         
Other expenses         

Interest   292,888   196,489 
         
Net (loss)  $ (2,583,450)  $ (2,035,988)

         
Per share information - basic and fully diluted:         

Weighted average shares outstanding   57,276,274  $ 48,707,429 

Net (loss) per share  $ (0.05)  $ (0.04)

 
See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Barfresh Inc.
Statement of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

For the Years Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013
 

     Additional           
  Common Stock   paid in   Unearned   Accumulated     
  Shares   Amount   capital   services   Deficit   Total  

Balance April 1, 2012   47,166,660  $ 47  $1,174,058  $(177,778)  $ (410,721)  $ 585,606 
Issuance of common stock and warrants
for cash, net of expenses of $17,500   1,600,000   2   382,498   -   -   382,500 
Issuance of stock for services to non-
employees   1,350,000   1   283,999   (100,000)   -   184,000 
Issuance of stock for services to employee   250,000   -   112,500       -   112,500 
Amortization of unearned services   -   -   -   131,111   -   131,111 
Equity based compensation   -   -   118,235   -   -   118,235 
Effect of beneficial conversion and
issuance of warrants in relation to
convertible debt   -   -   284,038   -   -   284,038 
Vested stock previously issued for services
classified as prepaid   -   -   -   146,667   -   146,667 
Net loss for the year ended March 31,
2013   -   -   -       (2,035,988)   (2,035,988)
Balance March 31, 2013   50,366,660   50   2,355,328   -   (2,446,709)   (91,331)
Issuance of common stock and warrants
for cash, net of expenses of $295,320   14,226,000   14   4,511,166   -   -   4,511,180 
Effect of beneficial conversion and
issuance of warrants in relation to
convertible debt   -   -   268,778   -   -   268,778 
Effect of issuance of warrants in relation to
debt   -   -   298,232   -   -   298,232 
Issuance of stock for services to non-
employees   55,000   -   28,730   -   -   28,730 
Issuance of stock for services to employee   600,000   1   239,999   -   -   240,000 
Equity based comp   -   -   36,884   -   -   36,884 
Net loss for the year ended March 31,
2014   -   -   -   -   (2,583,450)   (2,583,450)
   65,247,660  $ 65  $7,739,117  $ -  $ (5,030,159)  $ 2,709,023 

 
See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013
 

  2014   2013  
Cash flow from operating activities:         
Net loss for the period  $ (2,583,450)  $ (2,035,988)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Depreciation   53,951   33,195 
Stock based compensation   305,614   335,893 
Amortization of intellectual property   30,892   2,180 
Amortization of debt discount   228,164   165,689 
Amortization of unearned services   -   131,111 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities         
Accounts receivable   (61,227)   (7,413)
Receivable from related party   13,540   (13,540)
Inventory   (64,201)   (12,712)
Prepaid expenses   214,594   2,907 
Deposits   (3,730)   (10,731)
Accounts payable   (71,831)   236,786 
Accrued expenses   55,724   175,316 
Deferred rent   (3,200)   5,066 

Net cash used in operations   (1,885,160)   (992,241)
         
Cash flow from investing activities:         

Purchase of equipment   (104,532)   (195,550)
Purchase of patents   (699,561)   - 

Net Cash used in investing activities   (804,093)   (195,550)
         
Cash flow from financing activities:         

Issuance of common stock and warrants for cash   4,511,180   382,500 
Issuance of short term notes   775,000   440,000 
Repayment of convertible debt   (40,000)   - 
Issuance of convertible debt   20,000   - 
Advance from related party   485,132   30,272 
Repayment to related party   (515,404)   - 

Net cash provided by financing activities   5,235,908   852,772 
         
Net increase (decrease) in cash   2,546,655   (335,019)
Cash at beginning of period   85,957   420,976 
Cash at end of period  $ 2,632,612  $ 85,957 

         
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:         

Cash paid for interest  $ 63,875  $ - 

Cash paid for income taxes  $ -  $ - 

         
Non-cash financing activities:         

Common stock issued for services/stock based compensation  $ 268,730  $ 514,735 

Fair value of warrants issued with convertible notes  $ 142,873  $ 142,019 

Value of beneficial conversion of convertible notes  $ 125,905  $ 142,019 

Fair value of warrants issued with notes payable  $ 298,232  $ - 

 
See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 
Barfresh Food Group Inc., (“we,” “us,” “our,” and the “Company”) was incorporated on February 25, 2010 in the State of Delaware.
We are engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of ready to blend beverages, particularly, smoothies, shakes and frappes.
 
We were in the development stage from December 4, 2009 through March 31, 2013. Our fiscal year ending March 31, 2014 is the
first year during which we are considered an operating company and is no longer in the development stage.
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”).
 
Basis of Consolidation
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and our wholly owned subsidiaries Barfresh
Inc. and Smoothie Inc. All inter-company balances and transactions among the companies have been eliminated upon consolidation.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheets and revenues and expenses during the years reported.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, at the time of purchase, to be cash
equivalents.
 
Concentration of Credit Risk
 
The amount of cash on deposit with financial institutions exceeds the $250,000 federally insured limit at March 31, 2014. However,
we believe that cash on deposit that exceeds $250,000 in the financial institutions is financially sound and the risk of loss is minimal.
 
Fair Value Measurement
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures (“ASC 820”), provides a comprehensive framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures which are
required about fair value measurements. Specifically, ASC 820 sets forth a definition of fair value and establishes a hierarchy
prioritizing the inputs to valuation techniques, giving the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable value inputs. ASC 820 defines the hierarchy as follows:
 

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reported date. The types of
assets and liabilities included in Level 1 are highly liquid and actively traded instruments with quoted prices, such as equities
listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

 
Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, but are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reported date. The types of assets and liabilities in Level 2 are typically either comparable to actively traded securities or
contracts or priced with models using highly observable inputs.

 
Level 3 - Significant inputs to pricing that are unobservable as of the reporting date. The types of assets and liabilities
included in Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment or estimation, such as complex and
subjective models and forecasts used to determine the fair value of financial transmission rights.

 
Our financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, amounts due to a related party, notes
payable, and convertible notes. The carrying value of our financial instruments approximates their fair value due to their relative short
maturities.
 
Accounts Receivable
 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Accounts receivable are typically unsecured. Our credit policy calls for payment generally within 30 days. The credit worthiness of a
customer is evaluated prior to a sale. Currently there is no allowance for doubtful accounts as all of accounts are deemed collectable.
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
Intangible Assets
 
Intangible assets are comprised of patents, net of amortization. The patent costs are being amortized over the life of the patent,
which is twenty years from the date of filing the patent application. In accordance with ASC Topic 350 Intangibles - Goodwill and
Other (“ASC 350”), the costs of internally developing other intangible assets, such as patents, are expensed as incurred. However, as
allowed by ASC 350, costs associated with the acquisition of patents from third parties, legal fees and similar costs relating to patents
have been capitalized.
 
Property, Plant and Equipment
 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are being amortized over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term that includes any expected renewal periods that are deemed to be
reasonably assured. The estimated useful lives used for financial statement purposes are:
 

Furniture and fixtures: 5 years
Equipment: 7 years
Leasehold improvements: 2 years

 
Revenue Recognition
 
We recognize revenue when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered,
the sales price is determinable, and collection is reasonably assured.
 
Research and Development
 
Expenditures for research activities relating to product development and improvement are charged to expense as incurred. We
incurred $47,035 and $103,293, in research and development expenses for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Rent Expense
 
We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the reasonably assured lease term as defined in ASC Topic 840, Leases
(“ASC 840”). In addition, our lease agreement provides for rental payments commencing at a date other than the date of initial
occupancy. We include the rent holidays in determination of straight-line rent expense. Therefore, rent expense is charged to
expense beginning with the occupancy date. Deferred rent was $1,866 and $5,066 at March 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively and will
be charged to rent expense over the life of the lease.
 
Earnings per Share
 
We calculate net loss per share in accordance with ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share. Basic net loss per share is computed by
dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period, and diluted earnings per
share is computed by including common stock equivalents outstanding for the period in the denominator. At March 31, 2014 and
2013 any equivalents would have been anti-dilutive as we had losses for the years then ended.
 
Recent Pronouncements
 
We have reviewed all recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements and do not believe the future adoptions of
any such pronouncements may be expected to cause a material impact on our financial condition or the results of operations.
 
Note 2. Property Plant and Equipment
 
Major classes of property and equipment at March 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following:
 

  2014   2013  
Furniture and fixtures  $ 13,331  $ 11,070 
Equipment   372,617   330,321 
Leasehold Improvements   3,300   3,300 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



   389,248   344,691 
Less: accumulated depreciation   (87,146)  (33,195)
   302,102   311,496 
Equipment not in service   59,976   - 
Property and equipment, net of depreciation  $ 362,078  $ 311,496 

 
We recorded depreciation expense related to these assets of $53,951 and $33,195 for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
 

F-8

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
Note 3. Intangible Assets
 
As of March 31, 2014 and 2013, intangible assets consists of patent costs of $736,648 and $37,087, less accumulated amortization of
$35,994 and $5,102, respectively
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we acquired at a cost of $672,157, all of the international patent rights for a pre-portioned,
ready to blend packet for beverages, particularly, smoothies, shakes and frappes.
 
The amounts carried on the balance sheet represent cost to acquire, legal fees and similar costs relating to the patents incurred by
the Company. Amortization is calculated through the expiration date of the patent, which is December, 2025. The amount charged to
expenses for amortization of the patent costs was $30,892 and $2,180 for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Estimated future amortization expense related to intangible property as of March 31, 2014 is as follows:
 

Years ending March 31,   
Total

Amortization  
2014   $ 60,513 
2015    60,513 
2014    60,513 
2017    60,513 
2018    60,513 
Later years    398,089 

   $ 700,654 

 
Note 4. Advance from Related Party
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014 we received a cash advance from an affiliate of a director and shareholder of the Company in
the amount of $672,157 (Australian $710,000), which was used for the purchase of certain international patent rights. The advance
was repaid with interest calculated at 6.0% per annum, $5,617. The repayment was made in the form of a note in the amount
$200,000 and cash of $451,495, which was net of a foreign exchange gain of $26,280, as payments were due in Australian dollars.
 
During the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 we received cash advances in the amounts of $12,975 and $30,272, respectively,
from a relative of an officer of the Company. The advances bear no interest and were repaid.
 
Note 5. Short-Term Notes Payable (Related and Unrelated)
 
In December 2013, we closed an offering of $775,000 in short-term notes payable, $500,000 of which was purchased by a significant
shareholder, $100,000 was purchased by an affiliate of an officer, director and significant shareholder and $100,000 was purchased
by an affiliate of a director and significant shareholder. The short-term notes bear interest at a rate of 2% per annum and are due and
payable on December 20, 2014. We also issued 1,291,667 warrants to the short-term note holders for the right to purchase shares of
our common stock. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of our common stock at a price of $0.45 per share, may be
exercised on a cashless basis and are exercisable for a period of five years.
 
The fair value of the warrant, $0.38 per share, was calculated using the Black-Sholes option pricing model using the following
assumptions:
 
Expected life (in years)   5 
Volatility (based on a comparable company)   97%
Risk Free interest rate   1.66%
Dividend yield (on common stock)   - 
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
The relative value of the warrants was $298,232, which was the amount recorded as debt discount. The amounts recorded as debt
discount will be amortized over the life of the note, one year, and charged to interest expense. We estimated the effective interest
rate as calculated to be approximately 52% but will be paying cash at a rate of 2% per annum.
 
The balance at March 31, 2014 was comprised of:
 
Convertible notes payable, related and unrelated parties  $ 775,000 
Unamortized Debt discount   (230,254)
  $ 544,746 

 
Accrued expenses include interest related to the short term notes of $4,289 at March 31, 2014.
 
We have the right to extend the due date of the short-term notes to June 19, 2015 with notice to the holders given at least 30 days
and no more than 60 days prior to the initial due date. If we extend the short-term notes the interest rate will increase to 3% per
annum and we will be required to issue additional warrants (“Extension Warrants”). The Extension Warrants will have a 3 year term
and the exercise price will be determined based on the volume weighted average price for the 10 trading days preceding the original
due date of the short-term notes. The number of shares which may be purchased will be computed by dividing 56.25% of the unpaid
principal amount of the short-term notes held by the initial exercise price computed as set forth above.
 
Note 6. Convertible Note (Related and Unrelated)
 
In August 2012, we closed an offering of $440,000 of convertible notes, $50,000 of which was purchased by a significant shareholder
of ours. The notes bear interest at a rate of 12% per annum and were due and payable on September 6, 2013. In addition, the notes
are convertible at any time after the original issue date until the notes are no longer outstanding into our common stock at a
conversion price of $0.372 per share. We also issued 956,519 warrants to the note holders for the right to purchase shares of our
common stock. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of our common stock at a price of $0.46 per share for a term of
seven years.
 
When the convertible notes were due we settled the notes by repaying $40,000 of the notes in cash, issuing new convertible notes in
the amount of $400,000 and received payment for another new note in the amount of $20,000. The new notes bear interest at a rate
of 12% per annum and are due and payable on September 6, 2015. In addition the new notes are convertible at any time after the
original issue date until the new notes are no longer outstanding, into our common stock at a conversion price of $0.25 per share. We
also issued warrants to the new note holders for the right to purchase shares of our common stock. Each warrant entitles the holder
to purchase one share of our common stock at a price of $0.25 per share. There were 1,680,000 warrants issued. The warrants
previously issued with the original note have been cancelled.
 
In accordance with the guidance in ASC Topic 470-20 Debt with Conversion and Other Options (“ASC 470”), we first calculated the
fair value of the warrants issued and then determined the relative value of the notes and determined that there was a beneficial
conversion feature.
 
The fair value of the warrants, $0.13 per share, ($216,531 in the aggregate) was calculated using the Black-Sholes option pricing
model using the following assumptions:
 
Expected life (in years)   3 
Volatility (based on a comparable company)   85%
Risk Free interest rate   0.91%
Dividend yield (on common stock)   - 
 
The relative value of the warrants to the notes was $142,873, which was the amount recorded as a portion of the debt discount. We
also recorded a beneficial conversion feature on the convertible notes of $125,905. The amounts recorded as debt discount will be
amortized over the life of the notes, two years, and charged to interest expense. We estimated the effective interest rate as calculated
to be approximately 74% but will be paying cash at a rate of 12% per annum.
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
The balance at March 31, 2014 was comprised of:
 
Convertible notes payable, related and unrelated parties  $ 420,000 
Unamortized Debt discount   (226,941)
  $ 193,059 
 
Accrued expenses include interest related to the convertible notes of $28,445 at March 31, 2014.
 
The aggregate amount of principal payments due on the convertible notes as of March 31, 2014 are as follows:
 
Years ending March 31,     
2016   $ 420,000 

 
Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies
 
We lease office space under non-cancelable operating lease, which expires October 31, 2014.
 
The aggregate minimum requirements under non-cancelable leases as of March 31, 2014 are as follows:
 
Years ending March 31,     
2015   $ 39,993 

 
Rent expense was $77,007 and $38,119 for the year ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Note 8. Stockholders’ Equity
 
During prior periods we issued 1,850,000 shares of our common stock to non-employees for various consulting services. Pursuant to
the guidance in ASC Topic 505-50, Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees (“ASC 505-50”), the shares issued are being
amortized over the periods of the contracts, which range from one to two years. The shares were valued at the market price on the
date of grant. The aggregate value of the shares previously issued was $596,500. There is no unamortized balance at March 31,
2014.
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we terminated a contract with a non-employee. All previously unvested stock option expense
attributed to the non-employee, in the amount of $14,747 was reversed and credited to general and administrative expenses
 
We had consulting contracts that provided for the potential issuance of an additional 1,380,000 shares of our common stock. These
contracts have expired and there is no longer an obligation to issue any future shares.
 
Certain previously granted restricted stock rights and stock options were subject to performance conditions. As a result of the
employee termination the performance conditions will not be met. In accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation - Stock
Compensation (“ASC 718”), previously recognized unvested equity based compensation cost of $103,488 has been reversed during
the year ended March 31, 2014.
 
During the period from December 31, 2012 through May 9, 2013, we completed an offering of common stock units at a price of $0.25
per unit. Each unit consists of one share of common stock and a three year warrant to purchase one-half (1/2) share of our common
stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share (“Unit” or “Units”). We sold 3,200,000 units representing 3,200,000 shares and warrants
to purchase 1,600,000 shares for total consideration of $800,000 less $17,500 in cost, for a net amount received of $782,500.
 
The fair value of the warrants, $266,673, was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with an
allocation of the proceeds applied to the warrants. The difference between the warrant allocation and the proceeds was allocated to
the shares of common stock issued. The fair value of the warrants has been included in the total additional paid in capital. The
following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model:
 
Expected life (in years)   3 
Volatility (based on a comparable company)   100%
Risk Free interest rate   0.36%
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Dividend yield (on common stock)   - 
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
During July and August 2013 we completed an offering of common stock units at a price of $0.25 per unit. Each unit consists of one
share of common stock, a three-year warrant to purchase one share of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per share
(which may be exercised on a cashless basis), and a five-year warrant to purchase one-half (1/2) share of our common stock at an
exercise price of $0.50 per share (“Unit” or “Units) for total consideration of $1,906,500 less $267,645 in cost for a net amount
received of $1,638,855.
 
The fair value of the warrants, estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model was $3,089,919. The
estimated value was higher than the proceeds received from the sale of the units. Accordingly, the proceeds received less the par
value of the common stock, has been included in the total additional paid in capital. The following assumptions were used in the
Black-Scholes option pricing model:
 
Expected life (in years)        3 - 5  
Volatility (based on a comparable company)        87 - 106%
Risk Free interest rate        0.67 - 1.38%
Dividend yield (on common stock)   - 
 
During March 2014 we completed an offering of common stock units at a price of $.50 per unit. Each unit consists of one share of
common stock, a three-year warrant to purchase one share of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.60 per share (which may
be exercised on a cashless basis), and a five-year warrant to purchase one-half (1/2) share of our common stock at an exercise price
of $0.50 per share for total consideration of $2,500,000 less $27,675 in cost for a net amount received of $2,473,325. Included in the
cost of the offering is value of Units issued to legal counsel for services in connection with the offering.
 
The fair value of the warrants, estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model was $1,001,396. The
estimated value was higher than the proceeds received from the sale of the units. Accordingly, the proceeds received less the par
value of the common stock, has been included in the total additional paid in capital. The following assumptions were used in the
Black-Scholes option pricing model:
 
Expected life (in years)   3 
Volatility (based on a comparable company)   83%
Risk Free interest rate   91%
Dividend yield (on common stock)   - 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014 we issued 600,000 shares of common stock to officers and directors of the Company for
services rendered. In accordance with ASC 718 compensation expense in the amount of $240.000 was recognized in the statement
of operations for the year ended March 31, 2014. The fair value of the stock was based on the trading value of the shares on the date
of grant.
 
During ended March 31, 2014, we issued 30,000 shares of our common stock to non-employees for consulting services. Pursuant to
the guidance in ASC 505, the value of the shares was charged to expense in the amount of $16,230. The fair value of the stock was
based on the trading value of the shares on the date of grant.
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we issued options to purchase 800,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of
$0.50 per share to a Director of the Company. The options vested immediately and are exercisable for a period of 3 years from the
date of issuance, February 14, 2014. The fair value of the options, $115,119, which was charged to expenses, was estimated at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:
 
Expected life (in years)   3 
Volatility (based on a comparable company)   84%
Risk Free interest rate   0.91%
Dividend yield (on common stock)   - 
 
All other previously outstanding stock options issued to employees were cancelled during the year ended March 31, 2014.
 

F-12

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
The following is a summary of outstanding stock options issued to employees as of March 31, 2014
 

  
Number of

Options   
Exercise price

per share   

Average
remaining

term in years   

Aggregate intrinsic
value at date of

grant  
Outstanding April 1, 2012   -  $ -   -     
Issued during the period   625,000  $ 1.00   -     
Cancelled   -  $ -   -     
Outstanding March 31, 2013   625,000  $ 1.00   -  $ - 
Issued during the period   800,000  $ 0.50   2.88  $  
Cancelled   (625,000)  $ 1.00   -  $ - 
Outstanding March 31, 2014   800,000  $ 0.50   2.88  $ - 

Exercisable   800,000  $ 0.50   2.88  $ - 

 
Note 9. Outstanding Warrants

  
The following is a summary of all outstanding warrants as of March 31, 2014:
 

  
Number of
warrants   

Exercise price
per share   

Average
remaining term

in years   

Aggregate
intrinsic value

at date of grant  
Warrants issued in connection with private
placements of common stock   16,872,332  $ 0.25 - 1.50   2.88  $ 1,546,420 
Warrants issued in connection with private placement
of convertible notes   1,680,000  $ 0.25   2.45  $ - 
Warrants issued in connection with short-term notes
payable   1,291,667  $ .45   4.73  $ 64,583 
 
Note 10. Interest Expense
 
Interest expense includes direct interest of $63,276 and $30,800 for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
calculated based on the interest rate stated in our debt instruments.
 
In addition as more fully described in Note 6 above, interest expense includes non-cash amortization of the debt discount of $228,165
and $165,689 for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
 
Interest expense also included various finance charges of $1,447 for the year ended March 31, 2014.
 
Note 11. Income Taxes
 
Income tax provision (benefit) for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 is summarized below:
 

  2014   2013  
Current:         
Federal  $ -  $ - 
State   -   - 
Total current   -   - 
Deferred:         
Federal   (790,200)  (625,700)
State   (76,700)  (60,700)
Total deferred   (866,900)  (686,400)
Increase in valuation allowance   866,900   686,400 
Total provision  $ -   - 
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate before provision for
income taxes. The sources and tax effect of the differences are as follows:
 

  2014   2013  
Income tax provision at the federal
statutory rate   34.0%   34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit   3.3%   3.3%
Effect of net operating loss   (37.3%)  (37.3%)
   -%   -%

 
Components of the net deferred income tax assets at March 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
 

  2014   2013  
Net operating loss carryover  $ 1,706,500  $ 839,600 
Valuation allowance   (1,706,500)  (839,600)
  $ -  $ - 
 
ASC 740 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on the weight of evidence, it is more
than likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be recognized. After consideration of all the evidence,
both positive and negative, management has determined that a $1,706,500 and $839,600 allowance at March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, is necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. The change in the
valuation allowance for the current year is $866,900.
 
As of March 31, 2014, we have a net operating loss carry forward of approximately $4,575,100. The loss will be available to offset
future taxable income. If not used, this carry forward will expire as follows:
 
2030   $ 1,000 
2031   $ 63,800 
2032   $ 345,900 
2033   $ 1,840,300 
2034   $ 2,324,100 
 
As of March 31, 2014 we did not have any significant unrecognized uncertain tax positions.
 
Note 12. Business Segments
 
During the year ended March 31, 2014 we operate in only one segment and sold to two geographic location as follows:
 

  Revenue  
Australia  $ 65,760 
United States   44,325 
  $ 110,085 

 
During the year ended March 31, 2013 we operated in only one segment and one geographic location.
 
All of our asset are located in the United States.
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Barfresh Food Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2014 and 2013
(Continued)

 
The following is a breakdown of customer representing more than 10% of sales for the year ended March 31, 2014:
 

  
Revenue from

customer   
Percentage of
total revenue  

Customer A  $ 67,760   59.7%
Customer B   20,160   18.3%
Customer C   12,960   11.8%
  $ 100,880   89.8%

 
The following is a breakdown of customer representing more than 10% of sales for the year ended March 31, 2013
 

  
Revenue from

customer   
Percentage of
total revenue  

Customer B  $ 1,440   16.1%
Customer C   1,440   16.1%
Customer D   3,168   35.5%
Customer E   2,880   32.3%
  $ 8,928   100.0%

 
Note 13. Subsequent Events
 
Management has evaluated all activity and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the
financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements except as for the following:
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Exhibit
Number

 
Description

2.1  Share Exchange Agreement dated January 10, 2012 by and among Moving Box Inc., Andreas Wilcken, Jr., Barfresh
Inc. and the shareholders of Barfresh Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K as
filed January 17, 2012

3.1  Certificate of Incorporation of Moving Box Inc. dated February 25, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-168738) as filed August 11, 2010)

3.2  Bylaws of Moving Box, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-168738) as
filed August 11, 2010)

3.3  Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Moving Box Inc. dated February 13, 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K as filed February 17, 2012)

3.4  Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Smoothie Holdings Inc. dated February 16, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K as filed February 17, 2012)

4.1  Form of Series A Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K as filed January
17, 2012)

4.2  Form of Series B Warrant*
4.3  Form of Series C Warrant*
4.4  Form of Series D Warrant*
4.5  Form of PA Warrant*
4.6  Form of Series CN Warrant*
4.7  Form of Series N Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 10Q for the period ending December 31,

2013, as filed February 13, 2014)
4.8  Form of Note dated December 20, 2013 by Barfresh Food Group Inc. in favor of certain investors (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10Q for the period ending December 31, 2013, as filed February 13, 2014)
10.1  Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated December 20, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form

10Q for the period ending December 31, 2013, as filed February 13, 2014)
10.2  Intellectual Property Sale Deed by and between National Australia Bank Limited and Barfresh Inc. dated October 15,

2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed November 11, 2013)
10.3  Form of Subscription Agreement dated August 7, 2013 by and between Barfresh Food Group, Inc. and certain

investors*
10.4  Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated August 7, 2013 by and between Barfresh Food Group, Inc. and certain

investors*
10.5  Agreement of Sale, dated January 10, 2012, by and among Moving Box Inc. and Andreas Wilcken, Jr. (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K as filed January 17, 2012)
10.6  Form of Subscription Agreement dated January 10, 2012 by and between Moving Box, Inc. and certain investors.

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K as filed January 17, 2012)
10.7  Form of Lock Up Agreement dated January 10, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed January 17, 2012)
10.8  Amendment No. 2,dated January 10, 2012 to Agreement dated March 21, 2010, by and among Moving Box Inc.,

Moving Box Entertainment LLC, Garrett LLC, Ian McKinnon, Brad Miller, Andreas Wilcken, Jr. and Uptone Pictures,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed January17, 2012)

10.9  Investor Release dated January 10, 2012, by and among Moving Box Inc., Andreas Wilcken, Jr., Garrett LLC, Ian
McKinnon and Brad Miller (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Current Report on Form 8-K as filed January
17, 2012)

10.10+  Barfresh Food Group Inc. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan*
21.1  Subsidiaries*
 
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document*
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document*
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document*
  
* Filed herewith
+ Compensatory plan
 
In accordance with SEC Release 33-8238, Exhibit 32.1 and 32.2 are being furnished and not filed.  
 
Furnished herewith. XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration
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statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these
sections.
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NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES
INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD,
TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER (IF
REQUESTED BY THE COMPANY), IN A FORM REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS
NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD OR ELIGIBLE TO BE SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE
144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH
A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.
 

BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
 

SERIES B WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK
 

 
Warrant No. 2012-_______  Issuance Date: December __, 2012
 

Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, ____________________, the registered holder hereof
or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise
Price (as defined below) then in effect, upon exercise of this Series B Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Series B
Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, the “Warrant”), at any time or times on or
after the Issuance Date set forth above (“Issuance Date”), but not after 11:59 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date (as defined
below), ____________________ (subject to adjustment as provided herein) fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock
(as defined below) (the “Warrant Shares”).

 
This Warrant is issued pursuant to that certain Subscription Agreement, dated December __, 2012 by and among the

Company and the Investors signatory thereto identified therein (the “Subscription Agreement”). Except as otherwise defined herein,
capitalized terms in this Warrant shall have the meanings set forth in the Subscription Agreement.

 
1. Exercise of Warrant.
 

(a) Mechanics of Exercise.
 

( i ) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the
limitations set forth in Section 1(e)), this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder on any day on or after the
Issuance Date (the “Exercise Date”), in whole or in part, by delivery (whether via facsimile or otherwise) of a
written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to
exercise this Warrant. Within one (1) Trading Day following an exercise of this Warrant as aforesaid, the
Holder shall deliver payment to the Company of an amount equal to the Exercise Price in effect on the date
of such exercise multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant was so exercised (the
“Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash or via wire transfer of immediately available funds. The Holder shall not
be required to deliver the original of this Warrant in order to effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and
delivery of an Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect
as cancellation of the original of this Warrant and issuance of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase
the remaining number of Warrant Shares. Execution and delivery of an Exercise Notice for all of the then-
remaining Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the original of this Warrant after
delivery of the Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms hereof.
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(ii) On or before the first (1st) Trading Day following the date on which the Company
has received an Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by facsimile an acknowledgment of
confirmation of receipt of such Exercise Notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, to the Holder and the
Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). On or before the third (3rd) Trading Day following the date
on which the Company has received such Exercise Notice, the Company shall (i) provided that the Transfer
Agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer
Program, upon the request of the Holder, credit such aggregate number of shares of Common Stock to which
the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC
through its Deposit/Withdrawal at Custodian system, or (ii) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the
DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and deliver to the Holder or, at the Holder’s
instruction pursuant to the Exercise Notice, the Holder’s agent or designee, in each case, sent by reputable
overnight courier to the address as specified in the applicable Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the
Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee (as indicated in the applicable Exercise
Notice), for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise.
 

(iii) If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this
Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this Warrant submitted for exercise is greater
than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then, at the request of the Holder, the
Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3) Business Days after any exercise
and at its own expense, issue and deliver to the Holder (or its designee) a new Warrant (in accordance with
Section 5(d)) representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares purchasable immediately prior
to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is
exercised. No fractional shares of Common Stock are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but
rather the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole
number. The Company shall pay any and all taxes and fees which may be payable with respect to the
issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company’s failure to deliver Warrant Shares to the Holder on or prior to the second (2nd) Trading Day after
the Company’s receipt of the Aggregate Exercise Price shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Warrant.
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( b ) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $1.00, subject to
adjustment as provided herein.
 

(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company shall fail, for any reason or for no
reason, to issue to the Holder within the later of (i) three (3) Trading Days after receipt of the applicable Exercise
Notice (or four (4) Trading Days if the Exercise Notice is delivered after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) and (ii) two (2) Trading Days after the Company’s receipt of the Aggregate Exercise Price (or three (3)
Trading Days if the Company receives the Aggregate Exercise Price after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) (such later date, the “Share Delivery Deadline”), a certificate for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or
to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for such number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is
entitled upon the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant (as the case may be), and if after such Share Delivery Deadline
the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction
of a sale by the Holder of all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, or a sale of a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, issuable upon such
exercise that the Holder so anticipated receiving from the Company, then, in addition to all other remedies available
to the Holder, the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s
discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including
brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(including, without limitation, by any other Person in respect, or on behalf, of the Holder) (the “Buy-In Price”), at
which point the Company’s obligation to so issue and deliver such certificate or credit the Holder’s balance account
with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise
hereunder (as the case may be) (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor
its obligation to so issue and deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common
Stock or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the
Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise hereunder (as the case may be) and pay cash to the Holder in an
amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common
Stock multiplied by (B) the lowest Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock on any Trading Day during the period
commencing on the date of the applicable Exercise Notice and ending on the date of such issuance and payment
under this clause (ii).
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(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic
calculation of the number of Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant to the terms hereof, the Company shall promptly
issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with
Section 12.
 

(e) Limitations on Exercises. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Warrant, this
Warrant shall not be exercisable by the Holder hereof to the extent (but only to the extent) that the Holder together
with any of its affiliates would beneficially own in excess of 4.99% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the Common
Stock after giving effect to such exercise. To the extent the above limitation applies, the determination of whether this
Warrant shall be exercisable (vis-à-vis other convertible, exercisable or exchangeable securities owned by the
Holder or any of its affiliates) and of which such securities shall be exercisable (as among all such securities owned
by the Holder) shall, subject to such Maximum Percentage limitation, be determined on the basis of the first
submission to the Company for conversion, exercise or exchange (as the case may be). No prior inability to exercise
this Warrant pursuant to this paragraph shall have any effect on the applicability of the provisions of this paragraph
with respect to any subsequent determination of exercisability. For the purposes of this paragraph, beneficial
ownership and all determinations and calculations (including, without limitation, with respect to calculations of
percentage ownership) shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be implemented in a manner otherwise
than in strict conformity with the terms of this paragraph to correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may
be defective or inconsistent with the intended Maximum Percentage beneficial ownership limitation herein contained
or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such Maximum Percentage
limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to a successor Holder of this Warrant. For any
reason at any time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the Company shall within one (1) Business Day
confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding, including by
virtue of any prior conversion or exercise of convertible or exercisable securities into Common Stock, including,
without limitation, pursuant to this Warrant or securities issued pursuant to the Subscription Agreement. By written
notice to the Company, any Holder may increase or decrease the Maximum Percentage to any other percentage not
in excess of 9.99% specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase will not be effective until the 61st day
after such notice is delivered to the Company, and (ii) any such increase or decrease will apply only to the Holder
sending such notice and not to any other holder of the Warrants.
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(f) Insufficient Authorized Shares. The Company shall at all times keep reserved for issuance under
this Warrant a number of shares of Common Stock as shall be necessary to satisfy the Company’s obligation to issue
shares of Common Stock hereunder (without regard to any limitation otherwise contained herein with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock that may be acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant). If, notwithstanding the
foregoing, and not in limitation thereof, at any time while any of the Warrants remain outstanding the Company does
not have a sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve
for issuance upon exercise of the Warrants at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of
shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of the Warrants then
outstanding (the “Required Reserve Amount”) (an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall promptly
take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount sufficient to
allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for all the Warrants then outstanding. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized
Share Failure, but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure, the
Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares
of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting, the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy
statement or information statement and shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to solicit its stockholders’
approval of such increase in authorized shares of Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to
the stockholders that they approve such proposal.
 
2. Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Warrant Shares. If the Company, at any time on or after the Issuance

Date, (i) pays a stock dividend on one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock or otherwise makes a
distribution on any class of capital stock that is payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivides (by any stock split, stock
dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger
number of shares or (iii) combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its then
outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the Exercise Price shall be
multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately
before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately
after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant to clause (i) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the
record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution, and any adjustment
pursuant to clause (ii) or (iii) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the effective date of such subdivision
or combination. If any event requiring an adjustment under this paragraph occurs during the period that an Exercise Price is
calculated hereunder, then the calculation of such Exercise Price shall be adjusted appropriately to reflect such event.
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3. Noncircumvention. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its
Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of
arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or
performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all the provisions of this Warrant
and take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant
above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the
Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this
Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep
available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the exercise of the
Warrants, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of
the Warrants then outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise).
 

4 . Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in its
capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share
capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder,
solely in its capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give
or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock,
consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or
otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which it is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise
of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to
purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such
liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
 

5. Reissuance of Warrants.
 

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to
the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant
(in accordance with Section 5(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then
underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) to the Holder
representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.
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(b ) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably
satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant (as to which a written
certification and the indemnification contemplated below shall suffice as such evidence), and, in the case of loss,
theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary and reasonable
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and
deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant.
 

(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by
the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 5(d))
representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and
each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by
the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however, no warrants for fractional shares of Common Stock shall
be given.
 

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant
to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as
indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or
in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 5(a) or Section 5(c), the Warrant Shares designated
by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this
Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the
Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.
 
6. Registration Rights. The Holder is entitled to the benefit of certain registration rights with respect to this Warrant

and the Warrant Shares, pursuant to the Subscription Agreement.
 

7. Notices. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice
shall be given in accordance with the Subscription Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written
notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including in reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason
therefor.
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8. Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended and
the Company may take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if
the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder. The Holder shall be entitled, at its option, to the benefit of any
amendment of any other similar warrant issued under the Subscription Agreement. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
 

9 . Severability. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable
shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or
unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this
Warrant as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject
matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially
impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would
otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid
or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited,
invalid or unenforceable provision(s).
 

10. Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all
questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the
internal laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of
the State of Delaware or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than
the State of Delaware. Each of the Parties submits to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in the State of
Delaware, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the
action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in
any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to
preclude the Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on
the Company’s obligations to the Holder or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL
FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS
WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
 

11. Construction; Headings. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and
shall not be construed against any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of
reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.
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12. Dispute Resolution. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price,
the Bid Price or fair market value or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares (as the case may be), the Company or
the Holder (as the case may be) shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations (as the case may be) via
facsimile (i) within two (2) Business Days after receipt of the applicable notice giving rise to such dispute to the Company or
the Holder (as the case may be) or (ii) if no notice gave rise to such dispute, at any time after the Holder learned of the
circumstances giving rise to such dispute. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or
calculation (as the case may be) of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price or fair market value or the
number of Warrant Shares (as the case may be) within three (3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic
calculation being submitted to the Company or the Holder (as the case may be), then the Company shall, within two (2)
Business Days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price
or fair market value (as the case may be) to an independent, reputable investment bank selected by the Holder or (b) the
disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant. The Company shall
cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant (as the case may be) to perform the determinations or
calculations (as the case may be) and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days
from the time it receives such disputed determinations or calculations (as the case may be). Such investment bank’s or
accountant’s determination or calculation (as the case may be) shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
 

13. Remedies, Characterization, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this
Warrant shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction
Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein
shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this
Warrant. The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this instrument other than
as expressly provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, exercises and the like (and
the computation thereof) shall be the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided
herein, be subject to any other obligation of the Company (or the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a
breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such
breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the
holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach,
without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall
provide all information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the
Company’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this Warrant (including, without limitation, compliance with Section 2
hereof). The issuance of shares and certificates for shares as contemplated hereby upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be
made without charge to the Holder or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, provided that the
Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and
delivery of any certificate in a name other than the Holder or its agent on its behalf.
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14. Transfer. This Warrant may be offered for sale, sold, transferred or assigned without the consent of the Company,
except as may otherwise be required by the Subscription Agreement.
 

15. Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, $0.000001 par value per share, of the Company.
 

(b) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or other security (other than Options) that is at any
time and under any circumstances, directly or indirectly, convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable for, or which
otherwise entitles the holder thereof to acquire, any shares of Common Stock.
 

(c) “Expiration Date” means the date that is the three (3) year anniversary of the Issuance Date or, if
such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which trading does not take place on the Principal Market
(a “Holiday”), the next date that is not a Holiday.
 

(d) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common
Stock or Convertible Securities.
 

(e) “Per Share Market Value” means on any particular date (a) the last closing bid price per share of
the Common Stock on such date on the OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange on which the
Common Stock is then listed, or if there is no such price on such date, then the closing bid price on such exchange
or quotation system on the date nearest preceding such date, or (b) if the Common Stock is not listed then on the
OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange, the last closing bid price for a share of Common Stock
in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices) at the close of business on such date, or (c) if
the Common Stock is not then reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. (or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), then the average of the “Pink Sheet” quotes
for the five (5) Trading Days preceding such date of determination, or (d) if the Common Stock is not then publicly
traded the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by the Board.
 

( f ) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a
corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any other entity or a government or any department or agency
thereof.
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(g) “Principal Market” means the OTC Bulletin Board.
 

(h) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or,
if the Principal Market is not the principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities
exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded, provided that “Trading Day” shall not
include any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5
hours or any day that the Common Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange
or market (or if such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such
exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time) unless such day is otherwise
designated as a Trading Day in writing by the Holder.
 

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.
 

 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
  
 By:  
 Name:Riccardo Delle Coste
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
 

EXERCISE NOTICE
 

BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
 

The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase _________________ of the shares of Common Stock
(“Warrant Shares”) of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by Series A Warrant to
Purchase Common Stock No. _______ (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

 
1. Payment of Exercise Price. The Holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $___________________ to

the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
 
2. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to Holder, or its designee or agent as specified below, __________

Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant. Delivery shall be made to Holder, or for its benefit, to the following
address:

 
_______________________

 
_______________________

 
_______________________

 
_______________________

  
Date:    
   Registered Holder
    
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:  
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EXHIBIT B
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
 

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs ______________ to issue the above indicated
number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated ______________, from the Company
and acknowledged and agreed to by _______________.

 
Date:   BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
     
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:  
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NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES
INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD,
TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER (IF
REQUESTED BY THE COMPANY), IN A FORM REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS
NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD OR ELIGIBLE TO BE SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE
144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH
A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

 
BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.

 
SERIES C WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

 
Warrant No. C-_______  Issuance Date: ______, 2013

 
Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, ____________________, the registered holder hereof
or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise
Price (as defined below) then in effect, upon exercise of this Series C Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Series C
Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, the “Warrant”), at any time or times on or
after the Issuance Date set forth above (“Issuance Date”), but not after 11:59 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date (as defined
below), July __, 2016 (subject to adjustment as provided herein) fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock (as defined
below) (the “Warrant Shares”).

 
This Warrant is issued pursuant to that certain Subscription Agreement, dated ________, 2013 by and among the Company

and the Investors signatory thereto identified therein (the “Subscription Agreement”). Except as otherwise defined herein,
capitalized terms in this Warrant shall have the meanings set forth in the Subscription Agreement.
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1. Exercise of Warrant.
 

(a) Mechanics of Exercise.
 

(i) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the
limitations set forth in Section 1(e)), the purchase rights represented by this Warrant are exercisable by the
Holder in whole or in part at any time, or from time to time, by the surrender of this Warrant and the Notice of
Exercise annexed hereto as Exhibit A duly completed and executed on behalf of the Holder, at the office of
the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to the
Holder at the address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company), upon payment (i) in cash or by
check acceptable to the Company, or (ii) by cashless exercise as set forth in Section 1(a)(ii), below, of the
purchase price of the shares to be purchased.
 

(ii) This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised immediately prior to the
close of business on the date of its surrender for exercise as provided above and payment of the Exercise
Price if exercised for cash, and the person entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon
such exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the holder of record of such shares as of the close of
business on such date (the “Exercise Date”). As promptly as practicable on or after the Exercise Date, but in
no event more than three (3) business days thereafter (the “Warrant Share Delivery Date”), the Company at
its expense shall issue and deliver to the person or persons entitled to receive the same a certificate or
certificates for the number of shares issuable upon such exercise. In the event that this Warrant is exercised
in part, the Company at its expense will execute and deliver a new Warrant of like tenor exercisable for the
number of shares for which this Warrant may then be exercised.
 

(iii) The Holder, at its option, may exercise this Warrant in a cashless exercise
transaction pursuant to this subsection (c) (a “Cashless Exercise”). In order to effect a Cashless Exercise,
the Holder shall surrender this Warrant at the principal office of the Company together with an Exercise
Form, completed and executed, indicating Holder’s election to effect a Cashless Exercise, in which event the
Company shall issue Holder a number of shares of Common Stock computed using the following formula:

 
X = Y (A-B)/A
 
where: X = the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued to Holder.
 
Y = the number of shares of Common Stock for which this Warrant is being Exercised.
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A = the Market Price of one (1) share of Common Stock (for purposes of this Section 1(c), where “Market Price,” means the

Volume Weighted Average Price (as defined herein) of one (1) share of Common Stock during the ten (10) consecutive Trading Day
period immediately preceding the Exercise Date.

 
B = the Exercise Price.

 
As used herein, the “Volume Weighted Average Price” for any security as of any date means the volume weighted average

sale price on The NASDAQ Global Market (“NASDAQ”) as reported by, or based upon data reported by, Bloomberg Financial
Markets or an equivalent, reliable reporting service mutually acceptable to and hereafter designated by holders of a majority in
interest of the Warrants and the Company (“Bloomberg”) or, if NASDAQ is not the principal trading market for such security, the
volume weighted average sale price of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is
listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no volume weighted average sale price is reported for such security, then the last
closing trade price of such security as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no last closing trade price is reported for such security by
Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices of any market makers for such security that are listed in the over the counter market by the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. or in the “pink sheets” by the Pink OTC Market, Inc. If the Volume Weighted Average
Price cannot be calculated for such security on such date in the manner provided above, the volume weighted average price shall be
the fair market value as determined in good faith by the Company’s Board of Directors. “Trading Day” shall mean any day on which
the Common Stock is traded for any period on NASDAQ, or on the principal securities exchange or other securities market on which
the Common Stock is then being traded.

 
For purposes of Rule 144 and sub-section (d)(3)(ii) thereof, it is intended, understood and acknowledged that the Common

Stock issued upon Exercise of this Warrant in a Cashless Exercise transaction shall be deemed to have been acquired at the time
this Warrant was issued. Moreover, it is intended, understood and acknowledged that the holding period for the Common Stock
issued upon Exercise of this Warrant in a Cashless Exercise transaction shall be deemed to have commenced on the date this
Warrant was issued.

 
In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the closing price or the Volume Weighted Average Price of the Company’s
Common Stock or the arithmetic calculation of the Exercise Price or Market Price, the Company shall submit the disputed
determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within four (4) business days of receipt, or deemed receipt, of the Exercise
Notice, or other event giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and the Company are unable to
agree upon such determination or calculation within two (2) business days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation
being submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall, within two (2) business days submit via facsimile (i) the disputed
determination of the closing price or the Volume Weighted Average Price of the Company’s Common Stock to an independent,
reputable investment bank selected by the Company and approved by the Holder, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld
or delayed or (ii) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Exercise Price, Market Price to the Company’s independent, outside
accountant, or another accounting firm of national standing selected by the Company. The Company shall cause the investment bank
or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and notify the Company and the Holder of the
results no later than the later of (i) five (5) business days from the time it receives the disputed determinations or calculations or (ii)
five (5) business days from the selection of the investment bank and accounting firm, as applicable. Such investment bank’s or
accountant’s determination or calculation, as the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
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(b) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $0.25, subject to
adjustment as provided herein.
 

(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company shall fail, for any reason or for no
reason, to issue to the Holder within the later of (i) three (3) Trading Days after receipt of the applicable Exercise
Notice (or four (4) Trading Days if the Exercise Notice is delivered after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) and (ii) two (2) Trading Days after the Company’s receipt of the Aggregate Exercise Price (or three (3)
Trading Days if the Company receives the Aggregate Exercise Price after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) (such later date, the “Share Delivery Deadline”), a certificate for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or
to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for such number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is
entitled upon the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant (as the case may be), and if after such Share Delivery Deadline
the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction
of a sale by the Holder of all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, or a sale of a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, issuable upon such
exercise that the Holder so anticipated receiving from the Company, then, in addition to all other remedies available
to the Holder, the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s
discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including
brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(including, without limitation, by any other Person in respect, or on behalf, of the Holder) (the “Buy-In Price”), at
which point the Company’s obligation to so issue and deliver such certificate or credit the Holder’s balance account
with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise
hereunder (as the case may be) (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor
its obligation to so issue and deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common
Stock or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the
Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise hereunder (as the case may be) and pay cash to the Holder in an
amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common
Stock multiplied by (B) the lowest Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock on any Trading Day during the period
commencing on the date of the applicable Exercise Notice and ending on the date of such issuance and payment
under this clause (ii).
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(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic
calculation of the number of Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant to the terms hereof, the Company shall promptly
issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with
Section 12.
 

(e) Limitations on Exercises. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Warrant, this
Warrant shall not be exercisable by the Holder hereof to the extent (but only to the extent) that the Holder together
with any of its affiliates would beneficially own in excess of 9.99% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the Common
Stock after giving effect to such exercise and as a result of such exercise. To the extent the above limitation applies,
the determination of whether this Warrant shall be exercisable (vis-à-vis other convertible, exercisable or
exchangeable securities owned by the Holder or any of its affiliates) and of which such securities shall be exercisable
(as among all such securities owned by the Holder) shall, subject to such Maximum Percentage limitation, be
determined on the basis of the first submission to the Company for conversion, exercise or exchange (as the case
may be). No prior inability to exercise this Warrant pursuant to this paragraph shall have any effect on the
applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent determination of exercisability. For the
purposes of this paragraph, beneficial ownership and all determinations and calculations (including, without limitation,
with respect to calculations of percentage ownership) shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be
implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this paragraph to correct this
paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Maximum Percentage
beneficial ownership limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to
properly give effect to such Maximum Percentage limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to
a successor Holder of this Warrant. For any reason at any time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the
Company shall within one (1) Business Day confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of
Common Stock then outstanding, including by virtue of any prior conversion or exercise of convertible or exercisable
securities into Common Stock, including, without limitation, pursuant to this Warrant or securities issued pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement. By written notice to the Company, any Holder may increase or decrease the Maximum
Percentage to any other percentage specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase will not be effective
until the 61st day after such notice is delivered to the Company, and (ii) any such increase or decrease will apply only
to the Holder sending such notice and not to any other holder of the Warrants. At any time when this Warrant, in its
entirety or a portion thereof, is not exercisable by Holder in accordance with the Maximum Percentage limitation
described above, Holder may not assign or otherwise transfer this Warrant in its entirety (in the event that the entirety
of the Warrant is not exercisable as described) or the portion of this Warrant that is not exercisable as described (in
the event that a portion of this Warrant is not exercisable as described).
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(f) Insufficient Authorized Shares. The Company shall at all times keep reserved for issuance under
this Warrant a number of shares of Common Stock as shall be necessary to satisfy the Company’s obligation to issue
shares of Common Stock hereunder (without regard to any limitation otherwise contained herein with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock that may be acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant). If, notwithstanding the
foregoing, and not in limitation thereof, at any time while any of the Warrants remain outstanding the Company does
not have a sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve
for issuance upon exercise of the Warrants at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of
shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of the Warrants then
outstanding (the “Required Reserve Amount”) (an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall promptly
take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount sufficient to
allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for all the Warrants then outstanding. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized
Share Failure, but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure, the
Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares
of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting, the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy
statement or information statement and shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to solicit its stockholders’
approval of such increase in authorized shares of Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to
the stockholders that they approve such proposal.
 

Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Warrant Shares. (a) If the Company, at any time on or after the Issuance Date,
(i) pays a stock dividend on one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock or otherwise makes a
distribution on any class of capital stock that is payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivides (by any stock split, stock
dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger
number of shares or (iii) combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its then
outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the Exercise Price shall be
multiplied by a fraction (the “Adjustment Metric”) of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event and the number of Warrant Shares shall be divided by the Adjustment Metric. Any
adjustment made pursuant to clause (i) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution, and any adjustment pursuant to clause (ii) or
(iii) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the effective date of such subdivision or combination. If any
event requiring an adjustment under this paragraph occurs during the period that an Exercise Price is calculated hereunder,
then the calculation of such Exercise Price shall be adjusted appropriately to reflect such event.
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2. Noncircumvention. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Certificate

of Incorporation, Bylaws or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution,
issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of
this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all the provisions of this Warrant and take all action as may be required to
protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company (i) shall not increase the par value of
any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all
such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and non-
assessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the Warrants are outstanding,
take all action necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the
purpose of effecting the exercise of the Warrants, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be
necessary to effect the exercise of the Warrants then outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise).

 
3. Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in its capacity as a

holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share capital of the Company for
any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely in its capacity as the Holder
of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action
(whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice
of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which it is
then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as
imposing any liabilities on the Holder to purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of
the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.

 
4. Reissuance of Warrants.
 

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to
the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant
(in accordance with Section 5(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then
underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) to the Holder
representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.
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(b) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably
satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant (as to which a written
certification and the indemnification contemplated below shall suffice as such evidence), and, in the case of loss,
theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary and reasonable
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and
deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant.
 

(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by
the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 5(d))
representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and
each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by
the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however, no warrants for fractional shares of Common Stock shall
be given.
 

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant
to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as
indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or
in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 5(a) or Section 5(c), the Warrant Shares designated
by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this
Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the
Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.

 
5. Registration Rights. The Holder is entitled to the benefit of certain registration rights with respect to this Warrant and the

Warrant Shares, pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement. The Company shall prepare and, as soon as practicable, but in no
event later than the Filing Deadline, file with the SEC the Registration Statement on such applicable form covering the resale of all of
the Registrable Securities (subject to any cutbacks based on Rule 415 of the 1933 Securities Act). The Company shall use its
commercially reasonable best efforts to have such Registration Statement declared effective by the SEC as soon as practicable, but
in no event later than the applicable Effectiveness Date for such Registration Statement. Notices. Whenever notice is required to be
given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice shall be given in accordance with the Subscription
Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including
in reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason therefor.
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6. Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended and the

Company may take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company
has obtained the written consent of the Holder. The Holder shall be entitled, at its option, to the benefit of any amendment of any other
similar warrant issued under the Subscription Agreement. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an
authorized representative of the waiving party.

 
7. Severability. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by

a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended
to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not
affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this Warrant as so modified continues to express, without
material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or
unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of
the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in
good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which
comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).

 
8. Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all questions

concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal laws of the
State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Delaware or any
other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than the State of Delaware. Each of the
Parties submits to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in the State of Delaware, in any action or proceeding arising out
of or relating to this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any
such court. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law.
Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to preclude the Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the
Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on the Company’s obligations to the Holder or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling
in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO
REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING
OUT OF THIS WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
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9. Construction; Headings. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not

be construed against any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of reference and shall not
form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

 
10. Dispute Resolution. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid

Price or fair market value or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares (as the case may be), the Company or the Holder (as
the case may be) shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations (as the case may be) via facsimile (i) within two
(2) Business Days after receipt of the applicable notice giving rise to such dispute to the Company or the Holder (as the case may be)
or (ii) if no notice gave rise to such dispute, at any time after the Holder learned of the circumstances giving rise to such dispute. If the
Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or calculation (as the case may be) of the Exercise Price, the
Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price or fair market value or the number of Warrant Shares (as the case may be) within three (3) Business
Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation being submitted to the Company or the Holder (as the case may be),
then the Company shall, within two (2) Business Days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price, the
Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price or fair market value (as the case may be) to an independent, reputable investment bank selected by
the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant. The
Company shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant (as the case may be) to perform the determinations or
calculations (as the case may be) and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days from
the time it receives such disputed determinations or calculations (as the case may be). Such investment bank’s or accountant’s
determination or calculation (as the case may be) shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error. With regard to any
conflict of methods for dispute resolution as described in this paragraph compared to methods described in 1(a)(iii) above, the latter
shall prevail and be the applicable method in that circumstance.

 
11. Remedies, Characterization, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this Warrant

shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents, at law or
in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the right of the
Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company covenants
to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this instrument other than as expressly provided herein. Amounts set
forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, exercises and the like (and the computation thereof) shall be the amounts to be
received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided herein, be subject to any other obligation of the Company (or the
performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the
Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any
such breach or threatened breach, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an
injunction restraining any breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being
required. The Company shall provide all information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the
Holder to confirm the Company’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this Warrant (including, without limitation, compliance
with Section 2 hereof). The issuance of shares and certificates for shares as contemplated hereby upon the exercise of this Warrant
shall be made without charge to the Holder or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, provided that the
Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery
of any certificate in a name other than the Holder or its agent on its behalf.
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12. Transfer. This Warrant may be offered for sale, sold, transferred or assigned without the consent of the Company, except

as may otherwise be required by the Subscription Agreement.
 
13. Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, $0.000001 par value per share, of the Company.
 

(b) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or other security (other than Options) that is at any
time and under any circumstances, directly or indirectly, convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable for, or which
otherwise entitles the holder thereof to acquire, any shares of Common Stock.
 

(c) “Expiration Date” means the date that is the three (3) year anniversary of the Issuance Date or, if
such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which trading does not take place on the Principal Market
(a “Holiday”), the next date that is not a Holiday.
 

(d) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common
Stock or Convertible Securities.
 

(e) “Per Share Market Value” means on any particular date (a) the last closing bid price per share of
the Common Stock on such date on the OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange on which the
Common Stock is then listed, or if there is no such price on such date, then the closing bid price on such exchange
or quotation system on the date nearest preceding such date, or (b) if the Common Stock is not listed then on the
OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange, the last closing bid price for a share of Common Stock
in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices) at the close of business on such date, or (c) if
the Common Stock is not then reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. (or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), then the average of the “Pink Sheet” quotes
for the five (5) Trading Days preceding such date of determination, or (d) if the Common Stock is not then publicly
traded the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by the Board.
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(f) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a
corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any other entity or a government or any department or agency
thereof.
 

(g) “Principal Market” means the OTC Bulletin Board.
 

(h) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or,
if the Principal Market is not the principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities
exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded, provided that “Trading Day” shall not
include any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5
hours or any day that the Common Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange
or market (or if such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such
exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time) unless such day is otherwise
designated as a Trading Day in writing by the Holder.
 

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.
 

 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
  
 By:  
 Name:Riccardo Delle Coste
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
 

EXERCISE NOTICE
 

BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
 

The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase _________________ of the shares of Common Stock
(“Warrant Shares”) of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by Series C Warrant to
Purchase Common Stock No. _______ (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

 
1. Payment of Exercise Price. The Holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $___________________ to

the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
 
2. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to Holder, or its designee or agent as specified below, __________

Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant. Delivery shall be made to Holder, or for its benefit, to the following
address:

_______________________
_______________________
_______________________
_______________________

 
Date:    
   Registered Holder
    
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:   
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EXHIBIT B
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
 

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs ______________ to issue the above indicated
number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated ______________, from the Company
and acknowledged and agreed to by _______________.

 
Date:   BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
    
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:   
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NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES
INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD,
TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER (IF
REQUESTED BY THE COMPANY), IN A FORM REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS
NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD OR ELIGIBLE TO BE SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE
144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH
A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.
 

BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
 

SERIES D WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK
 
Warrant No. D-_______  Issuance Date: ______, 2013

 
Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, ____________________, the registered holder hereof
or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise
Price (as defined below) then in effect, upon exercise of this Series D Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Series D
Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, the “Warrant”), at any time or times on or
after the Issuance Date set forth above (“Issuance Date”), but not after 11:59 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date (as defined
below), July __, 2018 (subject to adjustment as provided herein) fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock (as defined
below) (the “Warrant Shares”).

 
This Warrant is issued pursuant to that certain Subscription Agreement, dated ________, 2013 by and among the Company

and the Investors signatory thereto identified therein (the “Subscription Agreement”). Except as otherwise defined herein,
capitalized terms in this Warrant shall have the meanings set forth in the Subscription Agreement.
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1. Exercise of Warrant.
 

(a) Mechanics of Exercise.
 
( i ) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the

limitations set forth in Section 1(e)), this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder on any day on or after the
Issuance Date (the “Exercise Date”), in whole or in part, by delivery (whether via facsimile or otherwise) of a
written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to
exercise this Warrant. Within one (1) Trading Day following an exercise of this Warrant as aforesaid, the
Holder shall deliver payment to the Company of an amount equal to the Exercise Price in effect on the date
of such exercise multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant was so exercised (the
“Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash or via wire transfer of immediately available funds. The Holder shall not
be required to deliver the original of this Warrant in order to effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and
delivery of an Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect
as cancellation of the original of this Warrant and issuance of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase
the remaining number of Warrant Shares. Execution and delivery of an Exercise Notice for all of the then-
remaining Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the original of this Warrant after
delivery of the Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms hereof.

 
(ii) On or before the first (1st) Trading Day following the date on which the Company

has received an Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by facsimile an acknowledgment of
confirmation of receipt of such Exercise Notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, to the Holder and the
Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). On or before the third (3rd) Trading Day following the date
on which the Company has received such Exercise Notice, the Company shall (i) provided that the Transfer
Agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer
Program, upon the request of the Holder, credit such aggregate number of shares of Common Stock to which
the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC
through its Deposit/Withdrawal at Custodian system, or (ii) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the
DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and deliver to the Holder or, at the Holder’s
instruction pursuant to the Exercise Notice, the Holder’s agent or designee, in each case, sent by reputable
overnight courier to the address as specified in the applicable Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the
Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee (as indicated in the applicable Exercise
Notice), for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise.
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(iii) If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this

Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this Warrant submitted for exercise is greater
than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then, at the request of the Holder, the
Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3) Business Days after any exercise
and at its own expense, issue and deliver to the Holder (or its designee) a new Warrant (in accordance with
Section 5(d)) representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares purchasable immediately prior
to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is
exercised. No fractional shares of Common Stock are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but
rather the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole
number. The Company shall pay any and all taxes and fees which may be payable with respect to the
issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company’s failure to deliver Warrant Shares to the Holder on or prior to the second (2nd) Trading Day after
the Company’s receipt of the Aggregate Exercise Price shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Warrant.

 
( b ) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $0.50, subject to

adjustment as provided herein.
 
(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company shall fail, for any reason or for no

reason, to issue to the Holder within the later of (i) three (3) Trading Days after receipt of the applicable Exercise
Notice (or four (4) Trading Days if the Exercise Notice is delivered after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) and (ii) two (2) Trading Days after the Company’s receipt of the Aggregate Exercise Price (or three (3)
Trading Days if the Company receives the Aggregate Exercise Price after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) (such later date, the “Share Delivery Deadline”), a certificate for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or
to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for such number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is
entitled upon the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant (as the case may be), and if after such Share Delivery Deadline
the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction
of a sale by the Holder of all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, or a sale of a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, issuable upon such
exercise that the Holder so anticipated receiving from the Company, then, in addition to all other remedies available
to the Holder, the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s
discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including
brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(including, without limitation, by any other Person in respect, or on behalf, of the Holder) (the “Buy-In Price”), at
which point the Company’s obligation to so issue and deliver such certificate or credit the Holder’s balance account
with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise
hereunder (as the case may be) (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor
its obligation to so issue and deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common
Stock or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the
Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise hereunder (as the case may be) and pay cash to the Holder in an
amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common
Stock multiplied by (B) the lowest Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock on any Trading Day during the period
commencing on the date of the applicable Exercise Notice and ending on the date of such issuance and payment
under this clause (ii).
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(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic

calculation of the number of Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant to the terms hereof, the Company shall promptly
issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with
Section 12.

 
(e) Limitations on Exercises. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Warrant, this

Warrant shall not be exercisable by the Holder hereof to the extent (but only to the extent) that the Holder together
with any of its affiliates would beneficially own in excess of 9.99% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the Common
Stock after giving effect to such exercise and as a result of such exercise. To the extent the above limitation applies,
the determination of whether this Warrant shall be exercisable (vis-à-vis other convertible, exercisable or
exchangeable securities owned by the Holder or any of its affiliates) and of which such securities shall be exercisable
(as among all such securities owned by the Holder) shall, subject to such Maximum Percentage limitation, be
determined on the basis of the first submission to the Company for conversion, exercise or exchange (as the case
may be). No prior inability to exercise this Warrant pursuant to this paragraph shall have any effect on the
applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent determination of exercisability. For the
purposes of this paragraph, beneficial ownership and all determinations and calculations (including, without limitation,
with respect to calculations of percentage ownership) shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be
implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this paragraph to correct this
paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Maximum Percentage
beneficial ownership limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to
properly give effect to such Maximum Percentage limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to
a successor Holder of this Warrant. For any reason at any time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the
Company shall within one (1) Business Day confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of
Common Stock then outstanding, including by virtue of any prior conversion or exercise of convertible or exercisable
securities into Common Stock, including, without limitation, pursuant to this Warrant or securities issued pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement. By written notice to the Company, any Holder may increase or decrease the Maximum
Percentage to any other percentage specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase will not be effective
until the 61st day after such notice is delivered to the Company, and (ii) any such increase or decrease will apply only
to the Holder sending such notice and not to any other holder of the Warrants. At any time when this Warrant, in its
entirety or a portion thereof, is not exercisable by Holder in accordance with the Maximum Percentage limitation
described above, Holder may not assign or otherwise transfer this Warrant in its entirety (in the event that the entirety
of the Warrant is not exercisable as described) or the portion of this Warrant that is not exercisable as described (in
the event that a portion of this Warrant is not exercisable as described).
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(f) Insufficient Authorized Shares. The Company shall at all times keep reserved for issuance under

this Warrant a number of shares of Common Stock as shall be necessary to satisfy the Company’s obligation to issue
shares of Common Stock hereunder (without regard to any limitation otherwise contained herein with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock that may be acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant). If, notwithstanding the
foregoing, and not in limitation thereof, at any time while any of the Warrants remain outstanding the Company does
not have a sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve
for issuance upon exercise of the Warrants at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of
shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of the Warrants then
outstanding (the “Required Reserve Amount”) (an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall promptly
take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount sufficient to
allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for all the Warrants then outstanding. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized
Share Failure, but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure, the
Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares
of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting, the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy
statement or information statement and shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to solicit its stockholders’
approval of such increase in authorized shares of Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to
the stockholders that they approve such proposal.
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Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Warrant Shares. (a) If the Company, at any time on or after the Issuance Date,
(i) pays a stock dividend on one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock or otherwise makes a
distribution on any class of capital stock that is payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivides (by any stock split, stock
dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger
number of shares or (iii) combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its then
outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the Exercise Price shall be
multiplied by a fraction (the “Adjustment Metric”) of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event and the number of Warrant Shares shall be divided by the Adjustment Metric. Any
adjustment made pursuant to clause (i) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution, and any adjustment pursuant to clause (ii) or
(iii) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the effective date of such subdivision or combination. If any
event requiring an adjustment under this paragraph occurs during the period that an Exercise Price is calculated hereunder,
then the calculation of such Exercise Price shall be adjusted appropriately to reflect such event.

 
2. Noncircumvention. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its

Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of
arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or
performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all the provisions of this Warrant
and take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant
above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the
Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this
Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep
available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the exercise of the
Warrants, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of
the Warrants then outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise).

 
3 . Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in its

capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share
capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder,
solely in its capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give
or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock,
consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or
otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which it is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise
of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to
purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such
liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
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4. Reissuance of Warrants.

 
(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to

the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant
(in accordance with Section 5(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then
underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) to the Holder
representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

 
( b ) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably

satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant (as to which a written
certification and the indemnification contemplated below shall suffice as such evidence), and, in the case of loss,
theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary and reasonable
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and
deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant.

 
(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by

the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 5(d))
representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and
each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by
the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however, no warrants for fractional shares of Common Stock shall
be given.

 
(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant

to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as
indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or
in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 5(a) or Section 5(c), the Warrant Shares designated
by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this
Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the
Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.
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5. Registration Rights. The Holder is entitled to the benefit of certain registration rights with respect to this Warrant

and the Warrant Shares, pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement. The Company shall prepare and, as soon as
practicable, but in no event later than the Filing Deadline, file with the SEC the Registration Statement on such applicable
form covering the resale of all of the Registrable Securities (subject to any cutbacks based on Rule 415 of the 1933 Securities
Act). The Company shall use its commercially reasonable best efforts to have such Registration Statement declared effective
by the SEC as soon as practicable, but in no event later than the applicable Effectiveness Date for such Registration
Statement. If the Registration Statement is not declared effective by the Effectiveness Date, this warrant may be exercised on
a cashless basis.

 
6. Notices. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice

shall be given in accordance with the Subscription Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written
notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including in reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason
therefor.

 
7. Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended and

the Company may take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if
the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder. The Holder shall be entitled, at its option, to the benefit of any
amendment of any other similar warrant issued under the Subscription Agreement. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.

 
8 . Severability. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable
shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or
unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this
Warrant as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject
matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially
impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would
otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid
or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited,
invalid or unenforceable provision(s).
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9 . Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all

questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the
internal laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of
the State of Delaware or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than
the State of Delaware. Each of the Parties submits to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in the State of
Delaware, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the
action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in
any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to
preclude the Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on
the Company’s obligations to the Holder or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL
FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS
WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

 
10. Construction; Headings. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and

shall not be construed against any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of
reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

 
11. Dispute Resolution. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price,

the Bid Price or fair market value or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares (as the case may be), the Company or
the Holder (as the case may be) shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations (as the case may be) via
facsimile (i) within two (2) Business Days after receipt of the applicable notice giving rise to such dispute to the Company or
the Holder (as the case may be) or (ii) if no notice gave rise to such dispute, at any time after the Holder learned of the
circumstances giving rise to such dispute. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or
calculation (as the case may be) of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price or fair market value or the
number of Warrant Shares (as the case may be) within three (3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic
calculation being submitted to the Company or the Holder (as the case may be), then the Company shall, within two (2)
Business Days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price
or fair market value (as the case may be) to an independent, reputable investment bank selected by the Holder or (b) the
disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant. The Company shall
cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant (as the case may be) to perform the determinations or
calculations (as the case may be) and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days
from the time it receives such disputed determinations or calculations (as the case may be). Such investment bank’s or
accountant’s determination or calculation (as the case may be) shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
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12. Remedies, Characterization, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this

Warrant shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction
Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein
shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this
Warrant. The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this instrument other than
as expressly provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, exercises and the like (and
the computation thereof) shall be the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided
herein, be subject to any other obligation of the Company (or the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a
breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such
breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the
holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach,
without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall
provide all information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the
Company’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this Warrant (including, without limitation, compliance with Section 2
hereof). The issuance of shares and certificates for shares as contemplated hereby upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be
made without charge to the Holder or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, provided that the
Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and
delivery of any certificate in a name other than the Holder or its agent on its behalf.

 
13. Transfer. This Warrant may be offered for sale, sold, transferred or assigned without the consent of the Company,

except as may otherwise be required by the Subscription Agreement.
 
14. Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

 
(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, $0.000001 par value per share, of the Company.
 
(b) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or other security (other than Options) that is at any

time and under any circumstances, directly or indirectly, convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable for, or which
otherwise entitles the holder thereof to acquire, any shares of Common Stock.

 
(c) “Expiration Date” means the date that is the three (3) year anniversary of the Issuance Date or, if

such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which trading does not take place on the Principal Market
(a “Holiday”), the next date that is not a Holiday.
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(d) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common

Stock or Convertible Securities.
 
(e) “Per Share Market Value” means on any particular date (a) the last closing bid price per share of

the Common Stock on such date on the OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange on which the
Common Stock is then listed, or if there is no such price on such date, then the closing bid price on such exchange
or quotation system on the date nearest preceding such date, or (b) if the Common Stock is not listed then on the
OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange, the last closing bid price for a share of Common Stock
in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices) at the close of business on such date, or (c) if
the Common Stock is not then reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. (or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), then the average of the “Pink Sheet” quotes
for the five (5) Trading Days preceding such date of determination, or (d) if the Common Stock is not then publicly
traded the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by the Board.

 
( f ) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a

corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any other entity or a government or any department or agency
thereof.

 
(g) “Principal Market” means the OTC Bulletin Board.
 
(h) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or,

if the Principal Market is not the principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities
exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded, provided that “Trading Day” shall not
include any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5
hours or any day that the Common Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange
or market (or if such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such
exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time) unless such day is otherwise
designated as a Trading Day in writing by the Holder.

 
[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.
 

 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
  
 By:  
 Name:Riccardo Delle Coste
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
 

EXERCISE NOTICE
 

BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
 

The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase _________________ of the shares of Common Stock
(“Warrant Shares”) of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by Series D Warrant to
Purchase Common Stock No. _______ (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

 
1. Payment of Exercise Price. The Holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $___________________ to

the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
 
2. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to Holder, or its designee or agent as specified below, __________

Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant. Delivery shall be made to Holder, or for its benefit, to the following
address:

_______________________
_______________________
_______________________
_______________________

 
Date:    
   Registered Holder
    
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:  
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EXHIBIT B
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
 

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs ______________ to issue the above indicated
number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated ______________, from the Company
and acknowledged and agreed to by _______________.

 
Date:   BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
    
   By:  
   Name:
   Title:   
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NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES
INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD,
TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER (IF
REQUESTED BY THE COMPANY), IN A FORM REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS
NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD OR ELIGIBLE TO BE SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE
144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH
A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

 
BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.

 
PLACEMENT AGENT WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

 
Warrant No. PA-   
   
Number of Placement Agent Warrants 132,520  Issuance Date: ________________
 

Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, _____________, the registered holder hereof or its
permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price
(as defined below) then in effect, upon exercise of this Placement Agent Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any
Placement Agent Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, the “Warrant”), at any
time or times on or after the Issuance Date set forth above (“Issuance Date”), but not after 11:59 p.m., New York time, on the
Expiration Date (as defined below), ____________ (subject to adjustment as provided herein) fully paid and non-assessable shares
of Common Stock (as defined below) (the “Warrant Shares”).

 
This Warrant is issued pursuant to that certain Placement Agent’s Agreement, dated May 6, 2013 by and among the

Company and the Holder (the “Placement Agent’s Agreement”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this
Warrant shall have the meanings set forth in that certain Subscription Agreement entered into by the investor in the private placement
which terminated on August 7, 2013.

 
1

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
  

1. Exercise of Warrant.
 

(a) Mechanics of Exercise.
 

( i ) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the
limitations set forth in Section 1(e)), the purchase rights represented by this Warrant are exercisable by the
Holder in whole or in part at any time, or from time to time, by the surrender of this Warrant and the Notice of
Exercise annexed hereto as Exhibit A duly completed and executed on behalf of the Holder, at the office of
the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to the
Holder at the address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company), upon payment (i) in cash or by
check acceptable to the Company, or (ii) by cashless exercise as set forth in Section 1(a)(ii), below, of the
purchase price of the shares to be purchased.
 

(ii) This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised immediately prior to the
close of business on the date of its surrender for exercise as provided above and payment of the Exercise
Price if exercised for cash, and the person entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon
such exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the holder of record of such shares as of the close of
business on such date (the “Exercise Date”). As promptly as practicable on or after the Exercise Date, but in
no event more than three (3) business days thereafter (the “Warrant Share Delivery Date”), the Company at
its expense shall issue and deliver to the person or persons entitled to receive the same a certificate or
certificates for the number of shares issuable upon such exercise. In the event that this Warrant is exercised
in part, the Company at its expense will execute and deliver a new Warrant of like tenor exercisable for the
number of shares for which this Warrant may then be exercised.
 

(iii) The Holder, at its option, may exercise this Warrant in a cashless exercise
transaction pursuant to this subsection (c) (a “Cashless Exercise”). In order to effect a Cashless Exercise,
the Holder shall surrender this Warrant at the principal office of the Company together with an Exercise
Form, completed and executed, indicating Holder’s election to effect a Cashless Exercise, in which event the
Company shall issue Holder a number of shares of Common Stock computed using the following formula:
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X = Y (A-B)/A
 
where: X = the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued to Holder.
 
Y = the number of shares of Common Stock for which this Warrant is being Exercised.
 
A = the Market Price of one (1) share of Common Stock (for purposes of this Section 1(c), where “Market Price,” means the

Volume Weighted Average Price (as defined herein) of one (1) share of Common Stock during the ten (10) consecutive Trading Day
period immediately preceding the Exercise Date.

 
B = the Exercise Price.

 
As used herein, the “Volume Weighted Average Price” for any security as of any date means the volume weighted average

sale price on The NASDAQ Global Market (“NASDAQ”) as reported by, or based upon data reported by, Bloomberg Financial
Markets or an equivalent, reliable reporting service mutually acceptable to and hereafter designated by holders of a majority in
interest of the Warrants and the Company (“Bloomberg”) or, if NASDAQ is not the principal trading market for such security, the
volume weighted average sale price of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is
listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no volume weighted average sale price is reported for such security, then the last
closing trade price of such security as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no last closing trade price is reported for such security by
Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices of any market makers for such security that are listed in the over the counter market by the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. or in the “pink sheets” by the Pink OTC Market, Inc. If the Volume Weighted Average
Price cannot be calculated for such security on such date in the manner provided above, the volume weighted average price shall be
the fair market value as determined in good faith by the Company’s Board of Directors. “Trading Day” shall mean any day on which
the Common Stock is traded for any period on NASDAQ, or on the principal securities exchange or other securities market on which
the Common Stock is then being traded.

 
For purposes of Rule 144 and sub-section (d)(3)(ii) thereof, it is intended, understood and acknowledged that the Common

Stock issued upon Exercise of this Warrant in a Cashless Exercise transaction shall be deemed to have been acquired at the time
this Warrant was issued. Moreover, it is intended, understood and acknowledged that the holding period for the Common Stock
issued upon Exercise of this Warrant in a Cashless Exercise transaction shall be deemed to have commenced on the date this
Warrant was issued.

 
In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the closing price or the Volume Weighted Average Price of the Company’s
Common Stock or the arithmetic calculation of the Exercise Price or Market Price, the Company shall submit the disputed
determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within four (4) business days of receipt, or deemed receipt, of the Exercise
Notice, or other event giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and the Company are unable to
agree upon such determination or calculation within two (2) business days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation
being submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall, within two (2) business days submit via facsimile (i) the disputed
determination of the closing price or the Volume Weighted Average Price of the Company’s Common Stock to an independent,
reputable investment bank selected by the Company and approved by the Holder, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld
or delayed or (ii) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Exercise Price, Market Price to the Company’s independent, outside
accountant, or another accounting firm of national standing selected by the Company. The Company shall cause the investment bank
or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and notify the Company and the Holder of the
results no later than the later of (i) five (5) business days from the time it receives the disputed determinations or calculations or (ii)
five (5) business days from the selection of the investment bank and accounting firm, as applicable. Such investment bank’s or
accountant’s determination or calculation, as the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
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( b ) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $0.25, subject to
adjustment as provided herein.
 

(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company shall fail, for any reason or for no
reason, to issue to the Holder within the later of (i) three (3) Trading Days after receipt of the applicable Exercise
Notice (or four (4) Trading Days if the Exercise Notice is delivered after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) and (ii) two (2) Trading Days after the Company’s receipt of the Aggregate Exercise Price (or three (3)
Trading Days if the Company receives the Aggregate Exercise Price after 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the
Exercise Date) (such later date, the “Share Delivery Deadline”), a certificate for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or
to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for such number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is
entitled upon the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant (as the case may be), and if after such Share Delivery Deadline
the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction
of a sale by the Holder of all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, or a sale of a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, issuable upon such
exercise that the Holder so anticipated receiving from the Company, then, in addition to all other remedies available
to the Holder, the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s
discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including
brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(including, without limitation, by any other Person in respect, or on behalf, of the Holder) (the “Buy-In Price”), at
which point the Company’s obligation to so issue and deliver such certificate or credit the Holder’s balance account
with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise
hereunder (as the case may be) (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor
its obligation to so issue and deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common
Stock or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the
Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise hereunder (as the case may be) and pay cash to the Holder in an
amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common
Stock multiplied by (B) the lowest Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock on any Trading Day during the period
commencing on the date of the applicable Exercise Notice and ending on the date of such issuance and payment
under this clause (ii).
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(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic
calculation of the number of Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant to the terms hereof, the Company shall promptly
issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with
Section 12.
 

(e) Limitations on Exercises. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Warrant, this
Warrant shall not be exercisable by the Holder hereof to the extent (but only to the extent) that the Holder together
with any of its affiliates would beneficially own in excess of 9.99% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the Common
Stock after giving effect to such exercise and as a result of such exercise. To the extent the above limitation applies,
the determination of whether this Warrant shall be exercisable (vis-à-vis other convertible, exercisable or
exchangeable securities owned by the Holder or any of its affiliates) and of which such securities shall be exercisable
(as among all such securities owned by the Holder) shall, subject to such Maximum Percentage limitation, be
determined on the basis of the first submission to the Company for conversion, exercise or exchange (as the case
may be). No prior inability to exercise this Warrant pursuant to this paragraph shall have any effect on the
applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent determination of exercisability. For the
purposes of this paragraph, beneficial ownership and all determinations and calculations (including, without limitation,
with respect to calculations of percentage ownership) shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the
Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be
implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this paragraph to correct this
paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Maximum Percentage
beneficial ownership limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to
properly give effect to such Maximum Percentage limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to
a successor Holder of this Warrant. For any reason at any time, upon the written or oral request of the Holder, the
Company shall within one (1) Business Day confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of
Common Stock then outstanding, including by virtue of any prior conversion or exercise of convertible or exercisable
securities into Common Stock, including, without limitation, pursuant to this Warrant or securities issued pursuant to
the Placement Agent’s Agreement. By written notice to the Company, any Holder may increase or decrease the
Maximum Percentage to any other percentage specified in such notice; provided that (i) any such increase will not
be effective until the 61st day after such notice is delivered to the Company, and (ii) any such increase or decrease
will apply only to the Holder sending such notice and not to any other holder of the Warrants. At any time when this
Warrant, in its entirety or a portion thereof, is not exercisable by Holder in accordance with the Maximum Percentage
limitation described above, Holder may not assign or otherwise transfer this Warrant in its entirety (in the event that
the entirety of the Warrant is not exercisable as described) or the portion of this Warrant that is not exercisable as
described (in the event that a portion of this Warrant is not exercisable as described).
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(f) Insufficient Authorized Shares. The Company shall at all times keep reserved for issuance under
this Warrant a number of shares of Common Stock as shall be necessary to satisfy the Company’s obligation to issue
shares of Common Stock hereunder (without regard to any limitation otherwise contained herein with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock that may be acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant). If, notwithstanding the
foregoing, and not in limitation thereof, at any time while any of the Warrants remain outstanding the Company does
not have a sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve
for issuance upon exercise of the Warrants at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of
shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of the Warrants then
outstanding (the “Required Reserve Amount”) (an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall promptly
take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount sufficient to
allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for all the Warrants then outstanding. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized
Share Failure, but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure, the
Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares
of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting, the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy
statement or information statement and shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to solicit its stockholders’
approval of such increase in authorized shares of Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to
the stockholders that they approve such proposal.
 

Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Warrant Shares. (a) If the Company, at any time on or after the Issuance Date,
(i) pays a stock dividend on one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock or otherwise makes a
distribution on any class of capital stock that is payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivides (by any stock split, stock
dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its then outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger
number of shares or (iii) combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its then
outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the Exercise Price shall be
multiplied by a fraction (the “Adjustment Metric”) of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event and the number of Warrant Shares shall be divided by the Adjustment Metric. Any
adjustment made pursuant to clause (i) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution, and any adjustment pursuant to clause (ii) or
(iii) of this paragraph shall become effective immediately after the effective date of such subdivision or combination. If any
event requiring an adjustment under this paragraph occurs during the period that an Exercise Price is calculated hereunder,
then the calculation of such Exercise Price shall be adjusted appropriately to reflect such event.
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2. Noncircumvention. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its
Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of
arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or
performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all the provisions of this Warrant
and take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant
above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the
Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this
Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep
available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the exercise of the
Warrants, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of
the Warrants then outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise).
 

3 . Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in its
capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share
capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder,
solely in its capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give
or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock,
consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or
otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which it is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise
of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to
purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such
liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.
 

4. Reissuance of Warrants.
 

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to
the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant
(in accordance with Section 4(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then
underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 4(d)) to the Holder
representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.
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(b ) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably
satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant (as to which a written
certification and the indemnification contemplated below shall suffice as such evidence), and, in the case of loss,
theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary and reasonable
form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and
deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 4(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant.
 

(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by
the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 4(d))
representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and
each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by
the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however, no warrants for fractional shares of Common Stock shall
be given.
 

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant
to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as
indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or
in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 4(a) or Section 4(c), the Warrant Shares designated
by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants
issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this
Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the
Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.
 
5. Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended and

the Company may take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if
the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder. The Holder shall be entitled, at its option, to the benefit of any
amendment of any other similar warrant issued under the Placement Agent’s Agreement. No waiver shall be effective unless
it is in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.
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6 . Severability. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable
shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or
unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this
Warrant as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject
matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially
impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would
otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid
or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited,
invalid or unenforceable provision(s).
 

7 . Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all
questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the
internal laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of
the State of Delaware or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than
the State of Delaware. Each of the Parties submits to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in the State of
Delaware, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the
action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in
any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to
preclude the Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on
the Company’s obligations to the Holder or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL
FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS
WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
 

8. Construction; Headings. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and
shall not be construed against any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of
reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.
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9. Dispute Resolution. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price,
the Bid Price or fair market value or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares (as the case may be), the Company or
the Holder (as the case may be) shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations (as the case may be) via
facsimile (i) within two (2) Business Days after receipt of the applicable notice giving rise to such dispute to the Company or
the Holder (as the case may be) or (ii) if no notice gave rise to such dispute, at any time after the Holder learned of the
circumstances giving rise to such dispute. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or
calculation (as the case may be) of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price or fair market value or the
number of Warrant Shares (as the case may be) within three (3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic
calculation being submitted to the Company or the Holder (as the case may be), then the Company shall, within two (2)
Business Days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price, the Closing Sale Price, the Bid Price
or fair market value (as the case may be) to an independent, reputable investment bank selected by the Holder or (b) the
disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant. The Company shall
cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant (as the case may be) to perform the determinations or
calculations (as the case may be) and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days
from the time it receives such disputed determinations or calculations (as the case may be). Such investment bank’s or
accountant’s determination or calculation (as the case may be) shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
With regard to any conflict of methods for dispute resolution as described in this paragraph compared to methods described
in 1(a)(iii) above, the latter shall prevail and be the applicable method in that circumstance.
 

10. Remedies, Characterization, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this
Warrant shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction
Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein
shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this
Warrant. The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this instrument other than
as expressly provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, exercises and the like (and
the computation thereof) shall be the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided
herein, be subject to any other obligation of the Company (or the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a
breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such
breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the
holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach,
without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall
provide all information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the
Company’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this Warrant (including, without limitation, compliance with Section 2
hereof). The issuance of shares and certificates for shares as contemplated hereby upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be
made without charge to the Holder or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, provided that the
Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and
delivery of any certificate in a name other than the Holder or its agent on its behalf.
 

11. Transfer. This Warrant may be offered for sale, sold, transferred or assigned without the consent of the Company,
except as may otherwise be required by the Placement Agent’s Agreement.
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12. Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, $0.000001 par value per share, of the Company.
 

(b) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or other security (other than Options) that is at any
time and under any circumstances, directly or indirectly, convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable for, or which
otherwise entitles the holder thereof to acquire, any shares of Common Stock.
 

(c) “Expiration Date” means the date that is the three (3) year anniversary of the Issuance Date or, if
such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which trading does not take place on the Principal Market
(a “Holiday”), the next date that is not a Holiday.
 

(d) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common
Stock or Convertible Securities.
 

(e) “Per Share Market Value” means on any particular date (a) the last closing bid price per share of
the Common Stock on such date on the OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange on which the
Common Stock is then listed, or if there is no such price on such date, then the closing bid price on such exchange
or quotation system on the date nearest preceding such date, or (b) if the Common Stock is not listed then on the
OTC Bulletin Board or any registered national stock exchange, the last closing bid price for a share of Common Stock
in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices) at the close of business on such date, or (c) if
the Common Stock is not then reported by the OTC Bulletin Board or by Pink OTC Markets Inc. (or similar
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), then the average of the “Pink Sheet” quotes
for the five (5) Trading Days preceding such date of determination, or (d) if the Common Stock is not then publicly
traded the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by the Board.
 

( f ) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a
corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any other entity or a government or any department or agency
thereof.
 

(g) “Principal Market” means the OTC Bulletin Board.
 

(h) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or,
if the Principal Market is not the principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities
exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded, provided that “Trading Day” shall not
include any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5
hours or any day that the Common Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange
or market (or if such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such
exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time) unless such day is otherwise
designated as a Trading Day in writing by the Holder.
 

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.
 

 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
  
 By:  
 Name:Riccardo Delle Coste
 Title: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
 

EXERCISE NOTICE
 

BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
 
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase _________________ of the shares of Common Stock

(“Warrant Shares”) of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by Placement Agent Warrant
to Purchase Common Stock No. _______ (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

 
1. Payment of Exercise Price. The Holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $___________________ to

the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
 
2. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to Holder, or its designee or agent as specified below, __________

Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant. Delivery shall be made to Holder, or for its benefit, to the following
address:

 
_______________________

 
_______________________

 
_______________________

 
_______________________

 
Date:    
   Registered Holder
    
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:  
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EXHIBIT B
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
 
The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs ______________ to issue the above indicated

number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated ______________, from the Company
and acknowledged and agreed to by _______________.

 
Date:   BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
    
   By:  
   Name:  
   Title:  
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WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

 
of
 

Barfresh Food Group Inc.
 

Void after September 6, 2016
  

Warrant No. 2013-CN_ Date of Issuance: September 6, 2013
 

This certifies that, for value received, ____________________________, or its registered assigns (the “Holder”) is entitled,
subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from Barfresh Food Group Inc. (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation,
_____________ (______) (being an amount equal to 100% x the “Principal Amount” of the related Senior Subordinated Promissory
Note issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement – as defined below –, divided by the Exercise Price) shares of the Common Stock
of the Company (the “Shares”), upon surrender hereof, at the principal office of the Company referred to below and simultaneous
payment therefor in lawful money of the United States or otherwise as hereinafter provided, at the Exercise Price as set forth in
Section 2 below. This warrant (the “Warrant”) is issued pursuant to the “Senior Subordinated Convertible Promissory Note Purchase
Agreement” dated as of August 29, 2012, among the Company and certain “Purchasers” named therein (the “Purchase Agreement”).
The number, character and Exercise Price of such shares of Common Stock (the “Common Stock”) are subject to adjustment as
provided below. The term “Warrant” as used herein shall include this Warrant and any warrants delivered in substitution or exchange
therefor as provided herein.

 
1. Term of Warrant. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, this Warrant shall be exercisable, in whole or in

part, during the term commencing on the Date of Issuance, and ending at the sooner of: (i) the sale, conveyance or disposal of all or
substantially all of the Company’s property, assets or business or the Company’s merger with or into or consolidation with any other
corporation, limited liability company or other entity (other than a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) or any other transaction
or series of related transactions in which more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of the Company is disposed of (the
“Change of Control”), provided that (A) this Section 1(i) shall not apply to a merger effected exclusively for the purpose of changing
the domicile of the Company or to an equity financing in which the Company is the surviving corporation, and (B) a majority of the
number of shares for which the Warrants are exercisable vote to approve the Change of Control, and (ii) 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time on
the third anniversary of the Date of Issuance, and shall be void thereafter. For the avoidance of doubt, the Warrants shall not
automatically expire upon the closing of a Pubco Transaction (as defined in the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation) or a Qualified Initial Public Offering (as defined in the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation).

 
2. Exercise Price. The Exercise Price per share of Common Stock at which this Warrant may be exercised shall be equal to

$0.25 per share as adjusted from time to time pursuant to Section 10 below (the “Exercise Price”). If the Exercise Price is adjusted,
then the number of Shares issuable pursuant to this Warrant shall be appropriately adjusted, using the formula set forth in Section 1
hereof.
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3. Exercise of Warrant.
 

(a) The purchase rights represented by this Warrant are exercisable by the Holder in whole or in part, at any time, or
from time to time, by the surrender of this Warrant and the Notice of Exercise annexed hereto duly completed and executed on behalf
of the Holder, at the office of the Company (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to
the Holder at the address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company), upon payment in cash or by check acceptable to
the Company.

 
(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, upon exercise of this Warrant, the Holder may, at the

Holder’s election, either (i) exercise this Warrant by paying to the Company an amount equal to the aggregate Exercise Price of the
Shares being purchased or (ii) receive Shares equal to the value (as determined below) of this Warrant, or the portion thereof being
cancelled, in which event the Company shall issue to the Holder a number of Shares computed using the following formula:

 
 

X =
Y(A-B)  

 A  
 

 Where: X = the number of Shares to be issued to the Holder
   
  Y = the total number of Shares for which this Warrant is being exercised
   
  A = the Current Fair Market Value of one Share
   
  B = the Exercise Price then in effect

 
As used herein, Current Fair Market Value of one Share shall mean, as of any particular date: (a) the volume weighted

average of the closing sales prices of the Common Stock for such day on all domestic securities exchanges on which the Common
Stock may at the time be listed; (b) if there have been no sales of the Common Stock on any such exchange on any such day, the
average of the highest bid and lowest asked prices for the Common Stock on all such exchanges at the end of such day; (c) if on any
such day the Common Stock is not listed on a domestic securities exchange, the closing sales price of the Common Stock as quoted
on the OTC Bulletin Board, the Pink OTC Markets or similar quotation system or association for such day; or (d) if there have been
no sales of the Common Stock on the OTC Bulletin Board, the Pink OTC Markets or similar quotation system or association on such
day, the average of the highest bid and lowest asked prices for the Common Stock quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, the Pink OTC
Markets or similar quotation system or association at the end of such day; in each case, averaged over twenty (20) consecutive
Business Days ending on the business day immediately prior to the day as of which “Current Fair Market Value” is being determined;
provided, that if the Common Stock is listed on any domestic securities exchange, the term “Business Day” as used in this sentence
means Business Days on which such exchange is open for trading. If at any time the Common Stock is not listed on any domestic
securities exchange or quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, the Pink OTC Markets or similar quotation system or association, the
“Current Fair Market Value” of the Common Stock shall be the fair market value per share as determined in good faith by the Board of
Directors of the Company, unless the Holder shall purchase such shares in conjunction with an underwritten public offering of
Common Stock pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the “Securities Act”), in which
case the Current Fair Market Value shall be the price at which the Common Stock is sold to the public in such offering.
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(c) This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised immediately prior to the close of business on the date of its
surrender for exercise as provided above, and the person entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such
exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the holder of record of such shares as of the close of business on such date. As promptly
as practicable on or after such date, the Company at its expense shall issue and deliver to the person or persons entitled to receive
the same a certificate or certificates for the number of shares issuable upon such exercise. In the event that this Warrant is exercised
in part, the Company at its expense will execute and deliver a new Warrant of like tenor exercisable for the number of shares for
which this Warrant may then be exercised.

 
4. No Fractional Shares or Scrip. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the

exercise of this Warrant. In lieu of any fractional share to which the Holder would otherwise be entitled, the Company shall make a
cash payment equal to the Exercise Price multiplied by such fraction.

 
5. Replacement of Warrant. On receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction, or

mutilation of this Warrant and, in the case of loss, theft, or destruction, on delivery of an indemnity agreement reasonably satisfactory
in form and substance to the Company or, in the case of mutilation, on surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company at its
expense shall execute and deliver, in lieu of this Warrant, a new warrant of like tenor and amount.

 
6. Rights of Stockholders. Until the Holder exercises this Warrant and the Company issues the Holder Shares purchasable

upon the exercise hereof, as provided herein, The Holder shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of
Common Stock or any other securities of the Company that may at any time be issuable on the exercise hereof for any purpose, nor
shall anything contained herein be construed to confer upon the Holder, as such, any of the rights of a shareholder of the Company
or any right to vote for the election of directors or upon any matter submitted to shareholders at any meeting thereof, or to give or
withhold consent or assert dissenter’s rights with respect to any corporate action (whether upon any recapitalization, issuance of
stock, reclassification of stock, change of par value, or change of stock to no par value, consolidation, merger, conveyance, or
otherwise) or to receive notice of meetings, or to receive dividends or subscription rights or otherwise.
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7. Transfer of Warrant.
 

(a) Warrant Register. The Company will maintain a register (the “Warrant Register”) containing the names and
addresses of the Holder. The Holder may change his address as shown on the Warrant Register by written notice to the Company
requesting such change. Any notice or written communication required or permitted to be given to the Holder may be delivered or
given by mail to the Holder as shown on the Warrant Register and at the address shown on the Warrant Register. Until this Warrant is
transferred on the Warrant Register, the Company may treat the Holder as shown on the Warrant Register as the absolute owner of
this Warrant for all purposes, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

 
(b ) Warrant Agent. The Company may, by written notice to the Holder, appoint an agent for the purpose of

maintaining the Warrant Register referred to in Section 7(a) above, issuing the Common Stock or other securities then issuable upon
the exercise of this Warrant, exchanging this Warrant, replacing this Warrant, or any or all of the foregoing. Thereafter, any such
registration, issuance, exchange, or replacement, as the case may be, shall be made at the office of such agent.

 
(c) Transferability and Non-negotiability of Warrant. This Warrant may not be transferred or assigned in whole or in

part without compliance with the terms of this Warrant and all applicable federal and state securities laws by the transferor and the
transferee (including the delivery of investment representation letters reasonably satisfactory to the Company, if such are requested
by the Company).

 
(d) Compliance with Securities Laws.

 
(i) The Holder understands that the Warrant and the Shares are characterized as “restricted securities” under

the 1933 Act inasmuch as they are being acquired from the Company in a transaction not involving a public offering, and that under
the 1933 Act and applicable regulations thereunder, such securities may be resold without registration under the 1933 Act only in
certain limited circumstances. In this connection, the Holder represents that it is familiar with SEC Rule 144, as presently in effect,
and understands the resale limitations imposed thereby and by the 1933 Act. The Holder understands that the Company is under no
obligation to register any of the securities sold hereunder except as provided in Section 11 hereof. The Holder understands that no
public market now exists for this Warrant or the Shares and that it is uncertain whether a public market will ever exist for this Warrant
or the Shares.

 
(ii) This Warrant and all certificates for the Shares issued upon exercise hereof shall be stamped or imprinted

with a legend in substantially the following form (in addition to any legend required by state securities laws):
 
“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933. THE SHARES MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OFFERED FOR SALE IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SHARES UNDER SUCH ACT, (B) A “NO ACTION” LETTER OF THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SALE OR OFFER OR (C)
SATISFACTORY ASSURANCES TO THE CORPORATION THAT REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT IS NOT
REQUIRED WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SALE OR OFFER.”
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(e) Disposition of the Holder's Rights.
 

( i) Transferability. Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws, this Warrant and all rights
hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this Warrant at
the principal office of the Company or its designated agent, together with a written assignment of this Warrant substantially in the
form attached hereto duly executed by the Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon
the making of such transfer. Upon such surrender and, if required, such payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new
Warrant or Warrants in the name of the assignee or assignees, as applicable, and in the denomination or denominations specified in
such instrument of assignment, and shall issue to the assignor a new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned,
and this Warrant shall promptly be cancelled. The Warrant, if properly assigned in accordance herewith, may be exercised by a new
holder for the purchase of Warrant Shares without having a new Warrant issued.

 
(ii) New Warrants. This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at

the aforesaid office of the Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and denominations in which new Warrants
are to be issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 7(e)(i), as to any transfer which
may be involved in such division or combination, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for
the Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice. All Warrants issued on transfers or exchanges
shall be dated the initial exercise date and shall be identical with this Warrant except as to the number of Warrant Shares issuable
pursuant thereto.

 
(f) Market Stand-Off.

 
(i) In connection with any underwritten public offering by the Company of its equity securities pursuant to an

effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act, including the Company's initial public offering, the Holder shall not sell,
make any short sale of, loan, hypothecate, pledge, grant any option for the purchase of, or otherwise dispose or transfer for value or
otherwise agree to engage in any of the foregoing transactions with respect to, any shares of Common Stock to be issued upon
exercise hereof, without the prior written consent of the Company or its underwriters. Such restriction (the “Market Stand-Off”) shall
be in effect for such period of time from and after the effective date of the final prospectus for the offering as may be requested by the
Company or such underwriters. In no event, however, shall such period exceed one hundred eighty (180) days, and the Market
Stand-Off shall in all events terminate two (2) years after the effective date of the Company's initial public offering.

 
(ii) The Holder shall be subject to the Market Stand-Off only if the officers and directors of the Company are

also subject to similar restrictions.
 

(iii) Any new, substituted or additional securities which are by reason of any recapitalization or reorganization
of the Company distributed with respect to the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon exercise hereof shall be immediately
subject to the Market standoff, to the same extent the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon exercise hereof are at such time
covered by such provisions.
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(iv) In order to enforce the Market Stand-Off, the Company may impose stop-transfer instructions with
respect to the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon exercise hereof until the end of the applicable stand-off period.

 
(g) Any entity to whom the Holder transfers any right to purchase the Shares pursuant to this Warrant or any of the

Shares issuable upon the exercise of such right shall become a “Holder” for purposes of this Section 7.
 
8. Reservation of Stock. The Company covenants that during the term this Warrant is exercisable, the Company will reserve

from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the
exercise of this Warrant and, from time to time, will take all steps necessary to amend its Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation (the “Certificate”) as the same may be amended from time to time to provide sufficient reserves of shares of Common
Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant. The Company further covenants that all shares that may be issued upon the exercise of
rights represented by this Warrant, upon exercise of the rights represented by this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price, all as
set forth herein, will be free from all taxes, liens, and charges in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in respect of any
transfer occurring contemporaneously or otherwise specified herein). The Company agrees that its issuance of this Warrant shall
constitute full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary
certificates for shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant.

 
9. Amendments.
 

(a) Any term of the Warrants, including this Warrant, may be amended, and any waiver of any term of the Warrants
may be granted, with the written consent of the Company and the holders of Warrants exercisable for at least a majority of the shares
of Common Stock for which all Warrants are exercisable. Any amendment or waiver effected in accordance with this Section 9 shall
be binding upon the Holder and each future holder of the Warrant and the Company, notwithstanding the fact that the Holder or such
future holder did not consent to such amendment or waiver.

 
(b) No waivers of or exceptions to any term, condition or provision of the Warrants, in any one or more instances,

shall be deemed to be, or construed as, a further or continuing waiver of any such term, condition or provision.
 
10. Adjustments. The Exercise Price and the number of shares purchasable hereunder are subject to adjustment from time

to time as follows:
 

(a) Reclassification, etc. If the Company at any time while this Warrant, or any portion thereof, remains outstanding
and unexpired shall, by reclassification of securities or otherwise, change any of the securities as to which purchase rights under this
Warrant exist into the same or a different number of securities of any other class or classes, this Warrant shall thereafter represent
the right to acquire such number and kind of securities as would have been issuable as the result of such change with respect to the
securities which were subject to the purchase rights under this Warrant immediately prior to such reclassification or other change and
the Exercise Price therefor shall be appropriately adjusted, all subject to further adjustment as provided in this Section 10.
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(b) Split, Subdivision or Combination of Shares. If the Company at any time while this Warrant, or any portion thereof,
remains outstanding and unexpired shall split, subdivide or combine the securities as to which purchase rights under this Warrant
exist, into a different number of securities of the same class, the Exercise Price for such securities shall be proportionately decreased
in the case of a split or subdivision or proportionately increased in the case of a combination.

 
(c) Certificate as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment pursuant to this Section

10, the Company at its expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms hereof and
furnish to each holder of this Warrant a certificate setting forth such adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon
which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The Company shall, upon the written request, at any time, of any such holder,
furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth: (i) such adjustments and readjustments; (ii) the Exercise
Price at the time in effect; and (iii) the number of shares and the amount, if any, of other property which at the time would be received
upon the exercise of the Warrant.

 
13. Miscellaneous.
 

(a) Additional Undertaking. The Holder hereby agrees to take whatever additional action and execute whatever
additional documents the Company may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out or effect one or more of the obligations or
restrictions imposed on either the Holder or the shares of Common Stock issued upon exercise hereof pursuant to the provisions of
this Warrant.

 
(b) Governing Law. This Warrant shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of

New York without resort to that State's conflict-of-laws rules.
 

(c) Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the
Company and its successors and assigns and upon the Holder, the Holder's permitted assigns and the legal representatives, heirs
and legatees of the Holder's estate, whether or not any such person shall have become a party to this Warrant and have agreed in
writing to join herein and be bound by the terms hereof.

 
(d) Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of

evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant or any stock certificate relating to the
Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case of
the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate, if
mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in lieu
of such Warrant or stock certificate.
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(e) Jurisdiction. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Warrant
shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement.

 
(f) Notices. Any notice, request or other document required or permitted to be given or delivered to the Holder by the

Company shall be delivered in accordance with the notice provisions of the Purchase Agreement.
 
(g) Limitation of Liability. No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by the Holder to exercise this

Warrant to purchase Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of the Holder, shall give rise to any liability of the
Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the
Company or by creditors of the Company.

 
(h) Remedies. The Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of

damages, will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant. The Company agrees that monetary damages would
not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to
waive and not to assert the defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate.

 
(Signatures appear on the following page.)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Barfresh Food Group Inc. has caused this Warrant to be executed by its officer thereunto
duly authorized.
 
Dated as of September 6, 2013.
 
 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
   
 By:  
 Name:Arnold Tinter
 Title: Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE
 
To: Barfresh Food Group

Inc.
 

(1) The undersigned hereby elects to purchase ____________ shares of Common Stock of Barfresh Food Group Inc.,
pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant.
 
 [  ] Such exercise is made pursuant to Section 1(a) and the undersigned herewith makes payment of the Warrant Price

for such shares in full in the amount of $___________.
   
 [  ] Such exercise is made pursuant to Section 1(b) and no cash is being paid herewith.
 

(2) In exercising this Warrant, the undersigned hereby confirms and acknowledges that the shares of Common Stock have not
been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and are restricted securities under the 1933 Act and
that the undersigned will not offer, sell, or otherwise dispose of any such shares of Common Stock except under circumstances that
will not result in a violation of the 1933 Act or any state securities laws.
 

(3) Please issue a certificate or certificates representing said shares of Common Stock in the name of the undersigned or in
such other name as is specified below:
 
 Name  
   
 Name  
 

(4) Please issue a new Warrant for the unexercised portion of the attached Warrant in the name of the undersigned or in such
other name as is specified below:
 
   Name  
     
   Name  
     
Date:   Signature: 
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BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
2014 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

 
1. PURPOSE. The Barfresh Food Group Inc. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan has two complementary purposes: (a) to attract and

retain outstanding individuals to serve as officers, employees, directors, consultants and advisors to the Company and its Affiliates,
and (b) to increase stockholder value. The Plan will provide participants with incentives to increase stockholder value by offering the
opportunity to acquire shares of the Company’s Common Stock or receive monetary payments based on the value of such Common
Stock, on the potentially favorable terms that this Plan provides.

 
2. EFFECTIVE DATE. The Plan shall become effective upon its adoption by the Board of Directors of the Company, subject to

approval by the stockholders of the Company within twelve (12) months of the effective date. Any Awards granted under the Plan
prior to such stockholder approval shall be conditioned on such approval.

 
3. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms used in this Plan have the following meanings:

 
(a) “Affiliate” means any entity that, directly or through one or more intermediaries, is controlled by, controls, or is

under common control with, the Company within the meaning of Code Sections 414(b) or (c), provided that, in applying such
provisions, the phrase “at least fifty percent (50%)” shall be used in place of “at least eighty percent (80%)” each place it appears
therein.

 
(b) “Award” means a grant of Options (as defined below), Stock Appreciation Rights (as defined in Section 3(w)

hereof), Performance Shares (as defined in Section 3(p) hereof), Restricted Stock (as defined in Section 3(s) hereof), or Restricted
Stock Units (as defined in Section 3(t) hereof).

 
(c) “Bankruptcy” shall mean (i) the filing of a voluntary petition under any bankruptcy or insolvency law, or a petition

for the appointment of a receiver or the making of an assignment for the benefit of creditors, with respect to the Participant, or (ii) the
Participant being subjected involuntarily to such a petition or assignment or to an attachment or other legal or equitable interest with
respect to the Participant’s assets, which involuntary petition or assignment or attachment is not discharged within 60 days after its
date, and (iii) the Participant being subject to a transfer of its Issued Shares by operation of law (including by divorce, even if not
insolvent), except by reason of death.

 
(d) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
 
(e) “Change of Control” shall be deemed to have occurred as of the first day that any one or more of the following

conditions is satisfied, including, but not limited to, the signing of documents by all parties and approval by all regulatory agencies, if
required:

 
(i) The stockholders approve a plan of complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company; or

 
(ii) The consummation of (A) an agreement for the sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s

assets (other than to an Excluded Person (as defined below)), or (B) a merger, consolidation or reorganization of
the Company with or involving any other corporation, other than a merger, consolidation or reorganization that
would result in the holders of voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to
hold (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity), at least
fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company (or such other surviving
entity) outstanding immediately after such merger, consolidation or reorganization.
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An Excluded Person means: (i) the Company or any of its Affiliates, (ii) a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under any
employee benefit plan of the Company or any of its Affiliates, (iii) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering
of such securities or (iv) a corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same
proportions as their ownership of stock in the Company.
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to an Award that is considered deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A, if
the definition of “Change of Control” results in the payment of such Award, then such definition shall be amended to the minimum
extent necessary, if at all, so that the definition satisfies the requirements of a change of control under Code Section 409A.

 
(f) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Any reference to a specific provision of the Code

includes any successor provision and the regulations promulgated under such provision.
 
(g) “Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board (or a successor committee with similar authority)

or if no such committee is named by the Board, than it shall mean the Board.
 
(h) “Common Stock” means the Common Stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share.
 
(i) “Company” means Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, or any successor thereto.
 
(j) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time. Any reference to a

specific provision of the Exchange Act shall be deemed to include any successor provision thereto.
 
(k) “Fair Market Value” means, per Share on a particular date, the value as determined by the Committee using a

reasonable valuation method within the meaning of Code Section 409A, based on all information in the Company’s possession at
such time, or if applicable, the value as determined by an independent appraiser selected by the Board or Committee.

 
(l) “Issued Shares” means, collectively, all outstanding Shares issued pursuant to an Award and all Option Shares.
 
(m) “Option” means the right to purchase Shares at a stated price upon and during a specified time. “Options” may

either be “incentive stock options” which meet the requirements of Code Section 422, or “nonqualified stock options” which do not
meet the requirements of Code Section 422.
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(n) “Option Shares” means outstanding Shares that were issued to a Participant upon the exercise of an Option.
 
(o) “Participant” means an officer or other employee of the Company or its Affiliates, or an individual that the

Company or an Affiliate has engaged to become an officer or employee, or a consultant or advisor who provides services to the
Company or its Affiliates, including a non-employee director of the Board, whom the Committee designates to receive an Award.

 
(p) “Performance Shares” means the right to receive Shares to the extent the Company, Subsidiary, Affiliate or other

business unit and/or Participant achieves certain goals that the Committee establishes over a period of time the Committee
designates.

 
(q) “Permitted Transferee” means, in connection with a transfer made for bona fide estate planning purposes, either

during a Participant’s lifetime or on death by will or intestacy, to his or her spouse, child (natural or adopted), or any other direct lineal
descendant of such Participant (or his or her spouse) (all of the foregoing collectively referred to as “family members”), or any other
relative approved unanimously by the Board of Directors of the Company, or any custodian or trustee of any trust, partnership or
limited liability company for the benefit of, or the ownership interests of which are owned wholly by, such Participant or any such
family members.

 
(r) “Plan” means this Barfresh Food Group Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time.
 
(s) “Restricted Stock” means Shares that are subject to a risk of forfeiture and/or restrictions on transfer (including but

not limited to stock grants with the recipient having the right to make an election under Section 83(b) of the Code), which may lapse
upon the achievement or partial achievement of performance goals during a specified period and/or upon the completion of a period
of service or upon the occurrence of other events, as determined by the Committee.

 
(t) “Restricted Stock Unit” means the right to receive a Share, or a cash payment, the amount of which is equal to the

Fair Market Value of a Share, which is subject to a risk of forfeiture which may lapse upon the achievement or partial achievement of
performance goals during a specified period and/or upon the completion of a period of service or upon the occurrence of other
events, as determined by the Committee.

 
(u) “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.
 
(v) “Share” means a share of Common Stock.
 
(w) “Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” means the right of a Participant to receive cash, and/or Shares with a Fair

Market Value, equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value of a Share over the grant price.
 
(x) “Subsidiary” means any corporation in an unbroken chain of corporations beginning with the Company if each of

the corporations (other than the last corporation in the chain) owns stock possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other corporations in the chain.
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(y) “10% Owner-Employee” means an employee who, at the time an incentive stock option is granted, owns (directly
or indirectly, within the meaning of Code Section 424(d)) more than ten percent (10%) of the total combined voting power of all
classes of stock of the Company or of any Subsidiary.

 
4. ADMINISTRATION.

 
(a) Committee Administration. The Committee has full authority to administer this Plan, including the authority to (i)

interpret the provisions of this Plan, (ii) prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to this Plan, (iii) correct any
defect, supply any omission, or reconcile any inconsistency in any Award or agreement covering an Award in the manner and to the
extent it deems desirable to carry this Plan into effect, and (iv) make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the
administration of this Plan. All actions or determinations of the Committee are made in its sole discretion and will be final and binding
on any person with an interest therein. If at any time the Committee is not in existence, the Board shall administer the Plan and
references to the Committee in the Plan shall mean the Board.

 
(b) Delegation to Committees or Officers. To the extent applicable law permits, the Board may delegate to another

committee of the Board or to one or more officers of the Company, or the Committee may delegate to a sub-committee, any or all of
the authority and responsibility of the Committee. If the Board or Committee has made such a delegation, then all references to the
Committee in this Plan include such committee, sub-committee or one or more officers to the extent of such delegation.

 
(c) No Liability. No member of the Committee, and no individual or officer to whom a delegation under subsection (b)

has been made, will be liable for any act done, or determination made, by the individual in good faith with respect to the Plan or any
Award. The Company will indemnify and hold harmless such individual to the maximum extent that the law and the Company’s bylaws
permit.

 
5. DISCRETIONARY GRANTS OF AWARDS. Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Committee has full power and authority

to: (a) designate from time to time the Participants to receive Awards under this Plan; (b) determine the type or types of Awards to be
granted to each Participant; (c) determine the number of Shares with respect to which an Award relates; and (d) determine any terms
and conditions of any Award including but not limited to permitting the delivery to the Company of Shares or the relinquishment of an
appropriate number of vested Shares under an exercisable Option in satisfaction of part of all of the exercise price of, or withholding
taxes with respect to, an Award. Awards may be granted either alone or in addition to, in tandem with, or in substitution for any other
Award (or any other award granted under another plan of the Company or any Affiliate). The Committee’s designation of a Participant
in any year will not require the Committee to designate such person to receive an Award in any other year.
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6. SHARES RESERVED UNDER THIS PLAN.
 
(a) Plan Reserve. An aggregate of nine million (9,000,000) Shares are reserved for issuance under this Plan, all of

which may be issued as any form of Award.
 
(b) Replenishment of Shares Under this Plan. If an Award lapses, expires, terminates or is cancelled without the

issuance of Shares or payment of cash under the Award, then the Shares subject to or reserved for in respect of such Award, or the
Shares to which such Award relates, may again be used for new Awards as determined under subsection (a), including issuance
pursuant to incentive stock options. If Shares are delivered to (or withheld by) the Company in payment of the exercise price or
withholding taxes of an Award, then such Shares may be used for new Awards under this Plan as determined under subsection (a),
including issuance pursuant to incentive stock options. If Shares are issued under any Award and the Company subsequently
reacquires them pursuant to rights reserved upon the issuance of the Shares, then such Shares may be used for new Awards under
this Plan as determined under subsection (a), but excluding issuance pursuant to incentive stock options.

 
7 . OPTIONS. Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Committee will determine all terms and conditions of each Option,

including but not limited to:
 
(a) Whether the Option is an incentive stock option or a nonqualified stock option; provided that in the case of an

incentive stock option, if the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined at the time of grant) of the Shares with respect to which such
option and all other incentive stock options issued under this Plan (and under all other incentive stock option plans of the Company or
any Affiliate that is required to be included under Code Section 422) are first exercisable by the Participant during any calendar year
exceeds $100,000, such Option automatically shall be treated as a nonqualified stock option to the extent this limit is exceeded. Only
employees of the Company or a Subsidiary are eligible to be granted incentive stock options;

 
(b) The number of Shares subject to the Option;
 
(c) The exercise price per Share, which may not be less than the Fair Market Value of a Share as determined on the

date of grant; provided that an incentive stock option granted to a 10% Owner-Employee must have an exercise price that is at least
one hundred ten percent (110%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant;

 
(d) The terms and conditions of exercise; and
 
(e) The termination date, except that each Option must terminate no later than the tenth (10th) anniversary of the

date of grant and each incentive stock option granted to any 10% Owner-Employee must terminate no later than the fifth (5th)
anniversary of the date of grant.

 
In all other respects, the terms of any incentive stock option should comply with the provisions of Code Section 422

except to the extent the Committee determines otherwise.
 
8. STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Committee will determine all terms and conditions

of each SAR, including but not limited to:
 
(a) The number of Shares to which the SAR relates;
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(b) The grant price, provided that the grant price shall not be less than the Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to
the SAR as determined on the date of grant;

 
(c) The terms and conditions of exercise or maturity;
 
(d) The term, provided that an SAR must terminate no later than the tenth (10th) anniversary of the date of grant; and
 
(e) Whether the SAR will be settled in cash, Shares or a combination thereof.

 
9 . PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARDS. Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Committee will determine all terms and

conditions of each Performance Share Award, including but not limited to:
 
(a) The number of Shares to which the Performance Share Award relates;
 
(b) The terms and conditions of each Award, including, without limitation, the selection of the performance goals that

must be achieved for the Participant to realize all or a portion of the benefit provided under the Award; and
 
(c) Whether all or a portion of the Shares subject to the Award will be issued to the Participant, without regard to

whether the performance goals have been attained, in the event of the Participant’s death, disability, retirement or other
circumstance.

 
10. RESTRICTED STOCK AND RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARDS. Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Committee will

determine all terms and conditions of each award of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units, including but not limited to:
 
(a) The number of Shares or Restricted Stock Units to which such Award relates;
 
(b) The period of time over which, and/or the criteria or conditions that must be satisfied so that, the risk of forfeiture

and/or restrictions on transfer imposed on the Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units will lapse;
 
(c) Whether all or a portion of the Restricted Shares or Restricted Stock Units will be released from a right of

repurchase and/or be paid to the Participant in the event of the Participant’s death, disability, retirement or other circumstance;
 
(d) With respect to awards of Restricted Stock, the manner of registration of certificates for such Shares, and whether

to hold such Shares in escrow pending lapse of the risk of forfeiture, right of repurchase and/or restrictions on transfer or to issue
such Shares with an appropriate legend referring to such restrictions;

 
(e) With respect to awards of Restricted Stock, whether dividends paid with respect to such Shares will be

immediately paid or held in escrow or otherwise deferred and whether such dividends shall be subject to the same terms and
conditions as the Award to which they relate; and
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(f) With respect to awards of Restricted Stock Units, whether to credit dividend equivalent units equal to the amount of
dividends paid on a Share and whether such dividend equivalent units shall be subject to the same terms and conditions as the
Award to which they relate.

 
11. TRANSFERABILITY. Except as set forth in Section 15 hereof, each award granted under this plan is not transferable

other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, or to a revocable trust, or as permitted by Rule 701 of the Securities Act.
 
12. TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT.

 
(a) Term. Subject to the right of the Board or Committee to terminate the Plan earlier pursuant to Section 12(b), the

Plan shall terminate on, and no Awards may be granted after the tenth (10th) anniversary of the Plan’s effective date.
 
(b) Termination and Amendment. The Board or Committee may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate this

Plan at any time, provided that:
 

(i) the Board must approve any amendment of this Plan to the extent the Company determines such approval
is required by: (a) action of the Board, (b) applicable corporate law, or (c) any other applicable law or rule of a self-
regulatory organization;

 
(ii) stockholders must approve any of the following Plan amendments: (a) an amendment to materially increase

any number of Shares specified in Section 6(a) (except as permitted by Section 14(a)) or expand the class of
individuals eligible to receive an Award to the extent required by the Code, the Company’s bylaws or any other
applicable law, (b) any other amendment if required by applicable law or the rules of any self-regulatory
organization, or (c) an amendment that would diminish the protections afforded by Section 12(e); provided, that
such stockholder approval may be obtained within 12 months of the approval of such amendment by the Board or
Committee.

 
(c) Amendment, Modification or Cancellation of Awards. Except as provided in subsection (e) and subject to the

restrictions of this Plan, the Committee may modify or amend an Award or waive any restrictions or conditions applicable to an Award
(including relating to the exercise, vesting or payment thereof), and the Committee may modify the terms and conditions applicable to
any Award (including the terms of the Plan), and the Committee may cancel any Award, provided that the Participant (or any other
person as may then have an interest in such Award as a result of the Participant’s death or the transfer of an Award) must consent in
writing if any such action would adversely affect the rights of the Participant (or other interested party) under such Award.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee need not obtain Participant (or other interested party) consent for the amendment,
modification or cancellation of an Award pursuant to the provisions of Section 14(a), or the amendment or modification of an Award to
the extent deemed necessary to comply with any applicable law, the listing requirements of any principal securities exchange or
market on which the Shares are then traded, or to preserve favorable accounting treatment of any Award for the Company.

 
(d) Survival of Committee Authority and Awards. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the authority of the Committee to

administer this Plan and modify or amend an Award, and the authority of the Board or Committee to amend this Plan, shall extend
beyond the date of this Plan’s termination. In addition, termination of this Plan will not affect the rights of Participants with respect to
Awards previously granted to them, and all unexpired Awards will continue in full force and effect after termination of this Plan except
as they may lapse or be terminated by their own terms and conditions.
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(e) Repricing Prohibited. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, neither the Committee nor any other
person may decrease the exercise price of any Option or the grant price of any SAR nor take any action that would result in a
deemed decrease of the exercise price or grant price of an Option or SAR under Code Section 409A, after the date of grant, except in
accordance with Section 1.409A-1(b)(5)(v)(D) of the Treasury Regulations (26 C.F.R.), or in connection with a transaction which is
considered the grant of a new Option or SAR for purposes of Section 409A of the Code, provided that the new exercise price or grant
price is not less than the Fair Market Value of a Share on the new grant date.

 
(f) Foreign Participation. To assure the viability of Awards granted to Participants employed or residing in foreign

countries, the Committee may provide for such special terms as it may consider necessary or appropriate to accommodate
differences in local law, tax policy or custom. Moreover, the Committee may approve such supplements to, or amendments,
restatements or alternative versions of this Plan as it determines is necessary or appropriate for such purposes. Any such
amendment, restatement or alternative versions that the Committee approves for purposes of using this Plan in a foreign country will
not affect the terms of this Plan for any other country.

 
13. TAXES.

 
(a) Withholding. In the event the Company or any Affiliate is required to withhold any foreign, Federal, state or local

taxes or other amounts in respect of any income recognized by a Participant as a result of the grant, vesting, payment or settlement
of an Award or disposition of any Shares acquired under an Award, the Company may deduct (or require an Affiliate to deduct) from
any payments of any kind otherwise due the Participant cash, or with the consent of the Committee, Shares otherwise deliverable or
vesting under an Award, to satisfy such tax obligations. Alternatively, the Company may require such Participant to pay to the
Company, in cash, promptly on demand, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the Company regarding the payment to the
Company of the aggregate amount of any such taxes and other amounts required to be withheld. If Shares are deliverable upon
exercise or payment of an Award, the Committee may permit a Participant to satisfy all or a portion of the foreign, Federal, state and
local withholding tax obligations arising in connection with such Award by electing to (a) have the Company withhold Shares
otherwise issuable under the Award, (b) tender back Shares received in connection with such Award, or (c) deliver other previously
owned Shares; provided that the amount to be withheld may not exceed the total minimum foreign, federal, state and local tax
withholding obligations associated with the transaction to the extent needed for the Company to avoid an accounting charge. If an
election is provided, the election must be made on or before the date as of which the amount of tax to be withheld is determined and
otherwise as the Company requires. In any case, the Company may defer making payment or delivery under any Award if any such
tax may be pending unless and until indemnified to its satisfaction.

 
(b) No Guarantee of Tax Treatment. Notwithstanding any provisions of the Plan, the Company does not guarantee to

any Participant or any other person with an interest in an Award that any Award intended to be exempt from Code Section 409A shall
be so exempt, nor that any Award intended to comply with Code Section 409A shall so comply, nor that any Award designated as an
incentive stock option within the meaning of Code Section 422 qualifies as such, and neither the Company nor any Affiliate shall
indemnify, defend or hold harmless any individual with respect to the tax consequences of any such failure.
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14. ADJUSTMENT PROVISIONS; CHANGE OF CONTROL.
 
(a) Adjustment of Shares. If (i) the Company shall at any time be involved in a merger or other transaction in which

the Shares are changed or exchanged; (ii) the Company shall subdivide or combine the Shares or the Company shall declare a
dividend payable in Shares, other securities or other property; (iii) the Company shall effect a cash dividend the amount of which, on
a per Share basis, exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share at the time the dividend is declared, or the
Company shall effect any other dividend or other distribution on the Shares in the form of cash, or a repurchase of Shares, that the
Committee determines by resolution is special or extraordinary in nature or that is in connection with a transaction that is a
recapitalization or reorganization involving the Shares; or (iv) any other event shall occur, which, in the case of this subsection (iv), in
the judgment of the Committee necessitates an adjustment to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits
intended to be made available under this Plan, then, in each case, the Committee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable,
adjust any or all of: (w) the number and type of Shares subject to this Plan (including the number and type of Shares that may be
issued pursuant to incentive stock options), (x) the number and type of Shares subject to outstanding Awards, (y) the grant, purchase,
or exercise price with respect to any Award, and (z) the performance goals established under any Award.

 
(i) In any such case, the Committee may also make provision for a cash payment, in an amount determined by

the Committee, to the holder of an outstanding Award in exchange for the cancellation of all or a portion of the
Award (without the consent of the holder of an Award), effective at such time as the Committee specifies (which
may be the time such transaction or event is effective); provided that any such adjustment to an Award that is
exempt from Code Section 409A shall be made in a manner that permits the Award to continue to be so exempt,
and any adjustment to an Award that is subject to Code Section 409A shall be made in a manner that complies with
the provisions thereof. However, with respect to Awards of incentive stock options, no such adjustment may be
authorized to the extent that such authority would cause this Plan to violate Code Section 422(b). Further, the
number of Shares subject to any Award payable or denominated in Shares must always be a whole number.

 
(ii) Without limitation, in the event of any reorganization, merger, consolidation, combination or other similar

corporate transaction or event, whether or not constituting a Change of Control, other than any such transaction in
which the Company is the continuing corporation and in which the outstanding Common Stock is not being
converted into or exchanged for different securities, cash or other property, or any combination thereof, the
Committee may provide that awards, without limitation, will be assumed by the surviving corporation or its parent,
will have the vesting accelerated or will be cancelled with or without consideration, in all cases without the consent
of the Participant.
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(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of a stock dividend (other than a stock dividend declared in lieu
of an ordinary cash dividend) or subdivision or combination of the Shares (including a reverse stock split),
adjustments contemplated by this subsection that are proportionate shall nevertheless automatically be made as of
the date of such stock dividend or subdivision or combination of the Shares.

 
(b) Issuance or Assumption. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, and without affecting the number of

Shares otherwise reserved or available under this Plan, in connection with any merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock,
or reorganization, the Committee may authorize the cancellation, with or without consideration, issuance, assumption or acceleration
of vesting of awards upon such terms and conditions as it may deem appropriate, in all cases without the consent of the Participant.

 
(c) Change of Control. Upon a Change of Control, the Committee may, in its discretion, determine that any or all

outstanding Awards held by Participants who are then in the employ or service of the Company or any Affiliate shall vest or be
deemed to have been earned in full, and:

 
(i) If the successor or surviving corporation (or parent thereof) so agrees, all outstanding Awards shall be

assumed, or replaced with the same type of award with similar terms and conditions, by the successor or surviving
corporation (or parent thereof) in the Change of Control. If applicable, each Award which is assumed by the
successor or surviving corporation (or parent thereof) shall be appropriately adjusted, immediately after such
Change of Control, to apply to the number and class of securities which would have been issuable to the Participant
upon the consummation of such Change of Control had the Award been exercised or vested immediately prior to
such Change of Control, and such other appropriate adjustments in the terms and conditions of the Award shall be
made.

 
(ii) If the provisions of paragraph (i) do not apply, then all outstanding Awards shall be cancelled as of the date

of the Change of Control and, at the option of the Committee, may be exchanged for a payment in cash and/or
Shares (which may include shares or other securities of any surviving or successor entity or the purchasing entity
or any parent thereof) equal to:

 
(1) In the case of an Option or SAR, the excess of the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the date of

the Change of Control covered by the vested portion of the Option or SAR that has not been exercised over
the exercise or grant price of such Shares under the Award;

 
(2) In the case of Restricted Stock Units, the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of the Change

of Control multiplied by the number of vested units, unless otherwise provided in the Award agreement and
subject to the repurchase right set forth in Section 15 hereof; and
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(3) In the case of a Performance Share Award, the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of the
Change of Control multiplied by the number of earned Shares.

 
(d) Parachute Payment Limitation.

 
(i) Except as may be set forth in a written agreement by and between the Company and the holder of an

Award, in the event that the Company’s auditors determine that any payment or transfer by the Company under the
Plan to or for the benefit of a Participant (a “Payment”) would be nondeductible by the Company for federal income
tax purposes because of the provisions concerning “excess parachute payments” in Code Section 280G, then the
aggregate present value of all Payments shall be reduced (but not below zero) to the Reduced Amount (defined
herein). For purposes of this Section 14(d), the “Reduced Amount” shall be the amount, expressed as a present
value, which maximizes the aggregate present value of the Payments without causing any Payment to be
nondeductible by the Company because of Code Section 280G.

 
(ii) If the Company’s auditors determine that any Payment would be nondeductible by the Company because

of Code Section 280G, then the Company shall promptly give the Participant notice to that effect and a copy of the
detailed calculation thereof and of the Reduced Amount, and the Participant may then elect, in his or her sole
discretion, which and how much of the Payments shall be eliminated or reduced (as long as after such election the
aggregate present value of the Payments equals the Reduced Amount) and shall advise the Company in writing of
his or her election within ten (10) days of receipt of notice. If no such election is made by the Participant within such
ten (10) day period, then the Company may elect which and how much of the Payments shall be eliminated or
reduced (as long as after such election the aggregate present value of the Payments equals the Reduced Amount)
and shall notify the Participant promptly of such election. For purposes of this Section 14(d), present value shall be
determined in accordance with Code Section 280G(d)(4). All determinations made by the Company’s auditors
under this Section 14(d) shall be binding upon the Company and the Participant and shall be made within sixty (60)
days of the date when a Payment becomes payable or transferable. As promptly as practicable following such
determination and the elections hereunder, the Company shall pay or transfer to or for the benefit of the Participant
such amounts as are then due to him or her under the Plan and shall promptly pay or transfer to or for the benefit of
the Participant in the future such amounts as become due to him or her under the Plan.

 
(iii) Except to the extent such payment was made in connection with a Change of Control, as a result of

uncertainty in the application of Code Section 280G at the time of an initial determination by the Company’s
auditors hereunder, it is possible that Payments will have been made by the Company that should not have been
made (an “Overpayment”) or that additional Payments that will not have been made by the Company could have
been made (an “Underpayment”), consistent in each case with the calculation of the Reduced Amount hereunder.
In the event that the Company’s auditors, based upon the assertion of a deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service
against the Company or the Participant that the auditors believe has a high probability of success, determine that
an Overpayment has been made, such Overpayment shall be treated for all purposes as a loan to the Participant
which he or she shall repay to the Company, together with interest at the applicable federal rate provided in Code
Section 7872(f)(2); provided, however, that no amount shall be payable by the Participant to the Company if and to
the extent that such payment would not reduce the amount subject to taxation under Code Section 4999. In the
event that the auditors determine that an Underpayment has occurred, such Underpayment shall promptly be paid
or transferred by the Company to or for the benefit of the Participant, together with interest at the applicable federal
rate provided in Code Section 7872(f)(2).
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(iv) For purposes of this Section 14(d), the term “Company” shall include affiliated corporations to the extent
determined by the auditors in accordance with Code Section 280G(d)(5).

 
15. STOCK TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS.

 
(a) Restriction on Transfer of Options. No Option shall be transferable by the Participant otherwise than by will or by

the laws of descent and distribution and all Options shall be exercisable, during the Participant’s lifetime, only by the Participant, or by
the Participant’s legal representative or guardian in the event of the Participant’s incapacity. The Participant may elect to designate a
beneficiary by providing written notice of the name of such beneficiary to the Company, and may revoke or change such designation
at any time by filing written notice of revocation or change with the Company, and any such beneficiary may exercise the Participant’s
Option in the event of the Participant’s death to the extent provided herein. If the Participant does not designate a beneficiary, or if the
designated beneficiary predeceases the Participant, the legal representative of the Participant may exercise the Option in the event of
the Participant’s death to the extent provided herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may provide
in the Award agreement regarding a given Option that the Participant may transfer, without consideration for the transfer, his or her
Options to members of his or her immediate family, to trusts for the benefit of such family members, or to partnerships in which such
family members are the only partners, provided that the transferee agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by all of the terms
and conditions of this Plan and the applicable Option.

 
(b) Issued Shares. No Issued Shares shall be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated, given away or in

any other manner disposed of or encumbered, whether voluntarily or by operation of law, unless such transfer is in compliance with
the terms of the applicable Award, all applicable securities laws (including, without limitation, the Securities Act and the Exchange
Act), and with the terms and conditions of this Section 15. In connection with any proposed transfer, the Committee may require the
transferor to provide at the transferor’s own expense an opinion of counsel to the transferor and the Company, satisfactory to the
Committee that such transfer is in compliance with all foreign, federal and state securities laws (including, without limitation, the
Securities Act). Any attempted disposition of Issued Shares not in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Section 15 shall
be null and void, and the Company shall not reflect on its records any change in record ownership of any Issued Shares as a result of
any such disposition, shall otherwise refuse to recognize any such disposition and shall not in any way give effect to any such
disposition of Issued Shares.
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(c) Legends. The Company may cause a legend or legends to be put on any certificates for shares to make
appropriate references to any applicable legal restrictions on transfer.

 
( d ) Adjustments for Changes in Capital Structure. If, as a result of any reorganization, recapitalization,

reclassification, stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split or other similar change in the outstanding Shares of the Company, the
outstanding Shares are increased or decreased or are exchanged for a different number or kind of shares of the Company’s stock,
the restrictions contained in this Section 15 shall apply with equal force to additional and/or substitute securities, if any, received by
Participant in exchange for, or by virtue of his or her ownership of, Issued Shares.

 
16. MISCELLANEOUS.

 
(a) Other Terms and Conditions. The grant of any Award under this Plan may also be subject to other provisions

(whether or not applicable to the Award awarded to any other Participant) as the Committee determines appropriate, subject to any
limitations imposed in the Plan.

 
(b) Code Section 409A. The provisions of Code Section 409A are incorporated herein by reference to the extent

necessary for any Award that is subject to Code Section 409A to comply therewith.
 
(c) Employment or Service. The issuance of an Award shall not confer upon a Participant any right with respect to

continued employment or service with the Company or any Affiliate, or the right to continue as a consultant or director. Unless
determined otherwise by the Committee, for purposes of the Plan and all Awards, the following rules shall apply:

 
(i) a Participant who transfers employment between the Company and any Affiliate, or between Affiliates, will

not be considered to have terminated employment;
 

(ii) a Participant who ceases to be a consultant, advisor or non-employee director because he or she becomes
an employee of the Company or an Affiliate shall not be considered to have ceased service with respect to any
Award until such Participant’s termination of employment with the Company and its Affiliates;

 
(iii) a Participant who ceases to be employed by the Company or an Affiliate of the Company and immediately

thereafter becomes a non-employee director of the Company or any Affiliate, or a consultant to the Company or
any Affiliate, shall not be considered to have terminated employment until such Participant’s service as a director
of, or consultant to, the Company and its Affiliates has ceased; and

 
(iv) a Participant employed by an Affiliate will be considered to have terminated employment when such entity

ceases to be an Affiliate of the Company.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to an Award subject to Code Section 409A, a Participant shall be considered to have
terminated employment (where termination of employment triggers payment of the Award) upon the date of his separation from
service within the meaning of Code Section 409A.

 
(d) No Fractional Shares. No fractional Shares or other securities may be issued or delivered pursuant to this Plan,

and the Committee may determine whether cash, other securities or other property will be paid or transferred in lieu of any fractional
Shares or other securities, or whether such fractional Shares or other securities or any rights to fractional Shares or other securities
will be canceled, terminated or otherwise eliminated.

 
(e) Unfunded Plan. This Plan is unfunded and does not create, and should not be construed to create, a trust or

separate fund with respect to this Plan’s benefits. This Plan does not establish any fiduciary relationship between the Company and
any Participant. To the extent any person holds any rights by virtue of an Award granted under this Plan, such rights are no greater
than the rights of the Company’s general unsecured creditors.

 
(f) Requirements of Law. The granting of Awards under this Plan and the issuance of Shares in connection with an

Award are subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national
securities exchanges as may be required. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan or any award agreement, the Company
has no liability to deliver any Shares under this Plan or make any payment unless such delivery or payment would comply with all
applicable laws and the applicable requirements of any securities exchange or similar entity. In such event, the Company may
substitute cash for any Share(s) otherwise deliverable hereunder without the consent of the Participant or any other person.

 
(g) Governing Law. This Plan, and all agreements under this Plan, shall be construed in accordance with and

governed by the laws of the State of New York, without reference to any conflict of law principles. Any legal action or proceeding with
respect to this Plan, any Award or any award agreement, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect of this Plan,
any Award or any award agreement, may only be brought and determined in a court sitting in the State of New York, New York
County.

 
(h ) Limitations on Actions. Any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Plan, any Award or any Award

agreement, must be brought within one year (365 days) after the day the complaining party first knew or should have known of the
events giving rise to the complaint.

 
(i) Construction. Whenever any words are used herein in the masculine, they shall be construed as though they were

used in the feminine in all cases where they would so apply; and wherever any words are used in the singular or plural, they shall be
construed as though they were used in the plural or singular, as the case may be, in all cases where they would so apply. Titles of
sections are for general information only, and the Plan is not to be construed with reference to such titles.

 
(j) Severability. If any provision of this Plan or any award agreement or any Award (i) is or becomes or is deemed to

be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, or as to any person or Award, or (ii) would disqualify this Plan, any award
agreement or any Award, then such provision should be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot
be so construed or deemed amended without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the intent of this Plan, award
agreement or Award, then such provision should be stricken as to such jurisdiction, person or Award, and the remainder of this Plan,
such award agreement and such Award will remain in full force and effect.

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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C E R T I F I C A T I O N
 

On behalf of the Company, the undersigned hereby certifies that this Barfresh Food Group Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan has been
approved by the Board of Directors and stockholders of the Company as of October __, 2013.

 
 BARFRESH FOOD GROUP INC.
   
 By:
 Name:Riccardo Delle Coste
 Title: Chief Executive Officer/Director
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Exhibit 21.1

 
SUBSIDIARIES

 
(1) Barfresh, Inc., a Nevada corporation, wholly owned subsidiary
 
(2) Smoothie, Inc., a Colorado corporation, wholly owned subsidiary
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Exhibit 31.1

 
Certification of

Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

(Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)
 

I, Riccardo Delle Coste, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Annual Report”);
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual Report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this Annual Report;

 
4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

 
5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit committee of the small business issuer’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the small

business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.
 

June 30, 2014
 

By: /s/ Riccardo Delle Coste  
Name:Riccardo Delle Coste  
Title: Principal Executive Officer  
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Exhibit 31.2

 
Certification of

Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

(Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)
 

I, Arnold Tinter, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Annual Report”);
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual Report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this Annual Report;

 
4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

 
5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit committee of the small business issuer’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the small

business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.
 

June 30, 2014
 

By: /s/ Arnold Tinter  
Name:Arnold Tinter  
Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)  
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Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, on Form 10-K for the year ended March
31, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Riccardo Delle Coste,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

 
1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

 
2. The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

 
Date: June 30, 2014

 
By: /s/ Riccardo Delle Coste  
Name:Riccardo Delle Coste  
Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)  
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Exhibit 32.2

 
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Barfresh Food Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, on Form 10-K for the year ended March
31, 2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Arnold Tinter, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

 
1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

 
2. The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

 
Date: June 30, 2014

 
By: /s/ Arnold Tinter  
Name:Arnold Tinter  
Title: Principal Financial Officer  

 
 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.


